
Multiple files are bound together in this PDF Package.

Adobe recommends using Adobe Reader or Adobe Acrobat version 8 or later to work with 
documents contained within a PDF Package. By updating to the latest version, you’ll enjoy 
the following benefits:  

•  Efficient, integrated PDF viewing 

•  Easy printing 

•  Quick searches 

Don’t have the latest version of Adobe Reader?  

Click here to download the latest version of Adobe Reader

If you already have Adobe Reader 8, 
click a file in this PDF Package to view it.

http://www.adobe.com/products/acrobat/readstep2.html




COUNTY DEPARTMENT AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this issue come before the Commissioners in the past? If so, when?


Do you need audio-visual for the presentation?


 STAFF USE ONLY


Administrator's Approval


Back-up Material Submitted?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


Approved by County Clerk


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


Administration County Administrator Steve Rapson


Approval of reduction in force for the Marshal Department, per Separation of Employment and Policy 452.01. 


                                                   


The following Reduction in Force for the Marshal Department,is presented for your consideration and approval. 


 


Name:                     Title: 


Lemuel Miller          Deputy Marshal - Investigator 


Travis Caldwell       Deputy Marshal - Sergeant 


Katherine Hobbs     Deputy Marshal 


Harold Myers          Deputy Marshal 


Barry Baney            Deputy Marshal 


Henry Derbyshire    Deputy Marshal 


Eric Semon             Deputy Marshal 


James Williamson   Deputy Marshal 


 


Separation of Employment and Policy 452.01 (Attachment)


Approval of reduction in force for the Marshal Department, per Separation of Employment and Policy 452.01. 


FY2014 Budget will reflect whatever action directed by the Board of Commissioners.


No


No No


Yes


Not Applicable


Yes


Yes


Note: Three (3) Marshal positions (Retaining Post-Certification) will be hired to secure and patrol the grounds of the Fayette County’s 


Water System Facilities and Parks and Recreation facilities. Two (2) positions will be hired for Code Enforcement activity. All the above 


positions shall receive preference in rehiring for the above positions and offered a separation agreement. They shall also receive 


preference in rehiring for twelve (12) months for any other county-wide position that becomes available for which they meet the minimum 


requirements as per Separation of Employment and Policy 452.01.


New BusinessMay 23, 2013







 
 
 


Marshal Duties Reassignment 
 
Code Enforcement (New) 
Assist the Zoning Depart. with licensing, building, permit issues such as “stop work orders” 
enforcement  
Enforce the county’s “right of way” code including signs, vehicle parking, & curbside auto sales  
Investigate citizen complaints from littering, & garbage to vacant homes, even bee keeping and 
abandoned swimming pools   
Issue Noise Disturbance Permits  
Inspect businesses for ordinance compliance 
Proactive Patrols – Deputies required driving through subdivisions and neighborhoods looking for 
code enforcement violations  
Administrator for the Licensing of Personal Care Homes, Coin Operated Machines and our Alcohol 
Licensing Ordinances 
Personal Care Home Requirements: inspection reports (Fire Marshal, Building Permits & 
Environmental Health) floor plans, advertisements / pamphlets, state license, fee payment    
Coin Operated Machine Requirements: fire marshal  inspection, zoning compliance, state license 
Alcohol Licensing Requirements: Same as Personal Care & Coin Operated with additional 
requirements of survey, menu / price list, lease or ownership documents, owner or corporation 
statement, fingerprinted, approval by county attorney, copy of advertisements, approval of BOC 
Investigate, issue citations for County Code and State Law Violations 
Serve citations for Animal Control 
Investigate & Cite or Arrest for county code violations such as the Noise ordinance 
 


Finance 
Solicitor permits - $10.00 or free if non profit 
Noise Disturbance Permits - $25.00 
Process insurance claims, assist the county’s insurance representatives and negotiate restitution claims 
made against the county for damages by county employees 
 


Human Resources 
Chairman of the Accident Review Committee – analyze and evaluate the county’s risk exposure by 
investigating workmen comp claims  
Investigations: Workmen compensation claims, and insurance claims filed against the county  
 


Water System 
Security of County Facilities and properties such as cell towers water towers, all recreation parks & 
reservoirs and enforce safety regulations on county owned property such as the landfill 
Check & enforce hunting & fishing licenses and assist local land owners with proper “posting” of 
property to protect themselves and the citizens from illegal / unwanted hunting &  fishing 
Issue parking citations and parking permits at Lake Horton and other county owned property and   
Voting Member of the 911 Communications Board 
Provide security / money escorts  
Responsible for the maintenance of the “out of county” parking machine at Lake Horton and Lake 
McIntosh and the collection and transfer of the collected fees to the Finance Department 
Water and boat safety programs, classes and inspections, assist with fishing events at our reservoirs 
Assist the Georgia Department of Natural Resources by conducting Hunter Safety classes  
Administrator of the County’s Substance Abuse Program 







 


Marshal Duties Reassignment 
 
Sheriff Department 
Personal Care Home Requirements: background check on administrator 
Coin Operated Machine Requirements: background check on all employees, 
Investigate work comp and all accidents on county property and/or with county property, by county 
employees   
Administer the employee training contained in the Fayette County’s “Safety & Loss Control Manuel.” 
Defensive Driving Class. 
Run background checks on new employees, volunteers and obtain employee driver license histories to 
ensure the safe & legal operation of county vehicles and to abide with required insurance regulations 
Security for all public meetings held at the Stonewall complex and check for open or unlocked 
doors/windows at the complex 
Investigations: Bad checks given to county offices such as the Tax Commissioner or Zoning 
Employment backgrounds and vehicle accidents 
Serve citations Environmental Health, Tax Commissioner  
Answer fire, robbery and burglary alarm calls from county offices & buildings and assist county EMS 
with injured / sick citizens 
Special events, festivals, parades and investigations 
Conduct internal investigations as requested by the County Administrator 
 


 
 
 
 
 
 







______________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 1 of 4 


____ Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
____ Employee 


 


SEVERANCE AGREEMENT AND GENERAL RELEASE 
______________________________________________________________________________ 


1. This Severance Agreement and General Release (“Agreement”) is entered into this 
____day of _______________, 2013, by and between ________________________________ 
(“Employee”) and The Fayette County Board of Commisioners (“FCBOC”), on its own behalf 
and on behalf of its parents, subsidiaries and affiliates, and their respective predecessors, 
successors, assigns, representatives, officers, directors, agents and employees.  This Agreement 
will confirm the understanding of the parties hereto with respect to the severance of Employee’s 
employment and the release of claims by Employee in connection with his employment with 
FCBOC.  Employee and FCBOC have reached this Agreement upon the following arrangements. 


2. Employee’s position is being eliminated due to funding restrictions and Employee’s 
employment will terminate with FCBOC on ________________, 2013. In exchange for the 
execution of this Severance Agreement and General Release, FCBOC will pay Employee the 
sum of ___________________________________________and No Cents ($__________), bi-
weekly until June 30, 2013, less all applicable taxes and required withholdings.  Employee 
acknowledges and agrees that payment is provided only as consideration for the signing of this 
Agreement and is more than Employee would be entitled to receive from FCBOC in the absence 
of this Agreement. Employee understands that payment for any accrued vacation and/or sick pay 
will be paid to Employee pursuant to Fayette County policy.  Payment of the amount described 
above will be made only after this Agreement becomes binding which takes place after the 
revocation period runs. 


3. Waiver and Release of Claims. Employee on behalf of Employee, and Employee’s 
descendants, dependents, heirs, executors, administrators, assigns, and successors, covenants not 
to sue, and fully, finally and forever releases FCBOC from all complaints, charges, actions, 
causes of action, suits, rights, grievances, costs, losses, expenses (including attorneys’ fees and 
costs), claim or demands of any nature whatsoever Employee may have based on his 
employment with FCBOC or the termination of that employment (“Claims”).  By way of 
example, and not by way of limitation, Employee specifically releases any and all Claims against 
FCBOC related to or arising under the following:  Title VII of the Civil Rights Act of 1964, 42 
U.S.C. § 1981, the Equal Pay Act, the Americans With Disabilities Act, the Age Discrimination 
in Employment Act, state fair employment statutes, and under other federal, state, local, 
statutory, common law, and the law of contract, tort and any and all claims for attorneys’ fees. 


4. Withdrawal of Claims. Prior to receipt of the payment specified in paragraph 2, 
Employee also agrees to withdraw any other claims, charges, or complaints that Employee has 
initiated or that others have initiated on Employee’s behalf against FCBOC in any forum. 


5. Non-Interference. Nothing in this Agreement shall interfere with Employee’s right to 
file a charge, cooperate or participate in an investigation or proceeding conducted by an outside 
party.  However, the consideration provided to Employee in this Agreement shall be the sole 
relief provided to Employee for the claims that are released by Employee in the Agreement and 
Employee will not be entitled to recover and agrees to waive any monetary benefits in 







______________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 2 of 4 


____ Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
____ Employee 


 


connection with any such claim, charge or proceeding without regard to who brought such 
Complaint or Charge. 


6. Payment of Applicable Taxes. Employee is and shall be solely responsible for all 
federal, state and local taxes that may be owed by Employee by virtue of the receipt of any 
portion of the monetary payment provided under this Agreement.  Employee agrees to indemnify 
and hold FCBOC harmless from any and all liability, including, without limitation, all penalties, 
interest and other costs that may be imposed by the Internal Revenue Service or other 
governmental agencies regarding Employee’s share of any tax obligations that may arise from 
the monetary consideration made to Employee under this Agreement. 


7. Assistance to FCBOC. Employee agrees to cooperate with FCBOC to provide all 
information that FCBOC may hereafter reasonably request with respect to matters involving 
Employee’s present or former relationship with FCBOC, the work Employee has performed, so 
long as such requests do not unreasonably interfere with any other job in which Employee is 
engaged. 


8. Confidentiality and Non-Disclosure. Employee shall not disclose the fact of this 
Agreement, or the settlement amount to anyone other than Employee’s spouse, immediate family 
members, attorney and/or tax and financial advisors unless legally required to do so.  Should 
Employee disclose information about this Agreement to Employee’s spouse, immediate family 
members, attorney and/or tax and financial advisors, Employee shall advise such persons that 
they must maintain the strict confidentiality of such information and must not disclose it unless 
otherwise required by law. In the event that Employee is legally required to disclose the 
information covered by this paragraph, Employee agrees to immediately notify FCSO in writing. 


9. Transfer of Claims. Employee represents and warrants that Employee has not assigned, 
transferred, or purported to assign or transfer, to any person, firm, corporation, association or 
entity whatsoever, any released claim. Employee agrees to indemnify and hold FCBOC harmless 
against, without any limitation, any and all rights, claims, warranties, demands, debts, 
obligations, liabilities, costs, court costs, expenses (including attorney’s fees), causes of action or 
judgments based on or arising out of any such assignment or transfer.  Employee further warrants 
that there is nothing that would prohibit Employee from entering this Agreement. 


10. Return of Property. As a condition precedent to Employee’s receipt of the monetary 
payment provided under this Agreement, Employee shall return all FCBOC property possessed 
by Employee to FCBOC by close of business __________________, 2013. 


11. Non-Admission. This Agreement does not constitute an admission by The Fayette 
County Board of Commissioners of any violation of any law or statute and the parties agree that 
neither this Agreement nor the furnishing of consideration shall be deemed or construed for any 
purposes of evidence or an admission of liability or wrongful conduct of any kind.  Employee 
shall not be considered a prevailing party for any purpose. 







______________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 3 of 4 


____ Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
____ Employee 


 


12. Non-Disparagement and Incitement of Claims. Employee agrees that Employee will 
not make or cause to be made any statements that disparage, are inimical to, or damage the 
reputation of FCBOC.  In the event such a communication is made to anyone, including but not 
limited to the media, public interest groups and publishing companies, business partners and/or 
funding organizations, it will be considered a material breach of the terms of this Agreement and 
Employee will be required to reimburse FCBOC for any and all compensation and benefits paid 
under the terms of this Agreement.  Employee also agrees that Employee will not encourage or 
incite other current or former employees of FCBOC to disparage or assert any complaint, claim 
or charge, or to initiate any legal proceeding, against FCBOC. 


13. Employment Verification. Any request by Employee for an employment reference 
from FCBOC will be responded to with a positive employment reference.  A letter of reference 
will be provided to Employee upon request. 


14. Material Breach. Employee acknowledges that if Employee materially breaches or 
threatens to materially breach this Agreement and/or commences a suit, action, or complaint in 
contravention of this release and waiver of claims, FCBOC’s obligations to pay the monies 
and/or provide the benefits referred to above shall immediately cease and FCBOC shall be 
entitled to all other remedies allowed in law or equity, including but not limited to the return of 
any payments made to Employee under this Agreement. 


15. Entire Agreement. This Agreement contains the entire agreement and understanding 
between Employee and FCBOC with respect to any and all disputes or claims that Employee has, 
or could have had, against FCBOC as of the date this Agreement is executed, and supersedes all 
other agreements between Employee and FCBOC with regard to such disputes or claims.  This 
Agreement shall not be changed unless in writing and signed by both Employee and FCBOC. 


16. Severability. The invalidity or unenforceability of any provision of this Agreement shall 
not affect or impair any other provisions, which shall remain in full force and effect.  If any 
portion of this Agreement is found invalid, the parties agree to enter into a full and general 
Release by Employee that is not invalid. 


17. Employee’s Acknowledgement. Employee acknowledges that no representation, 
promise or inducement has been made other than as set forth in this Agreement, and that 
Employee enters into this Agreement without reliance upon any other representation, promise or 
inducement not set forth herein.  Employee further acknowledges and represents that Employee 
assumes the risk for any mistake of fact now known or unknown, and that Employee understands 
and acknowledges the significance and consequences of this Agreement and represents that its 
terms are fully understood and voluntarily accepted.  Employee also acknowledges that 
Employee has read and understands this Agreement, is fully aware of its legal effect, and has 
entered into it freely and voluntarily based on Employee’s own judgment.  Employee 
acknowledges that Employee has been given a reasonable time to consider the terms of this 
Agreement and time to consult with any person Employee so chooses.  Employee acknowledges 
that the proceeds of this Agreement shall not be cause for the recompilation of any of 







______________________________________________________________________________ 
Page 4 of 4 


____ Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
____ Employee 


 


Employee’s benefits that may have been provided by FCBOC, including but not limited to, 
retirement benefits. 


18. Twenty-One (21)-Day Consideration Period.  Employee acknowledges that 
Employee has been given a period of at least twenty-one (21) days to consider the terms of this 
Agreement and, if Employee should execute it prior to the expiration of the twenty-one (21)-day 
consideration period, Employee knowingly waives his right to consider this Agreement for 
twenty-one (21) days. 


19. Seven (7)-Day Revocation Period. Employee acknowledges that Employee may, for a 
period of seven (7) days following the execution of this Agreement, revoke acceptance thereof. 
This revocation must be done in writing and delivered to FCBOC:  Mr. Steve Rapson at 140 
West Stonewall Ave., Fayetteville, GA 30214 before the close of business on the seventh day.  
This Agreement shall not become effective until the expiration of this seven (7)-day revocation 
period. 


20. Re-employment with Fayette County. If Employee accepts future employment 
with Fayette County, Georgia before June 30, 2013 (“Future Employment”), Employee and 
FCBOC agree that the terms and conditions of this Agreement shall be, and upon acceptance and 
beginning of Future Employment will be, deemed null and void.  All payments Employee would 
have received pursuant to this Agreement subsequent to the date Employee begins Future 
Employment will not be owing and due by FCBOC to Employee, nor shall Employee have any 
expectation that such payments will be made by FCBOC. 


21. Headings.The headings contained in the Agreement are for reference purposes only and 
shall not in any way affect the meaning or interpretation of this Agreement. 


Employee: 
 
_________________________________  Date: ___________ 
 
Fayette County Board 
Of Commissioners: 
 
_________________________________  Date: ___________ 
 
Clerk to Fayette County 
Board of Commissioners 
 
_________________________________  Date: ___________ 
 
 
(SEAL) 





		Commissioners- Marshals Agenda Request with Backup

		Commissioners- Marshals Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Marshals Backup

		Marshal-Reassignment Duties-Final

		Separation Agreement County





		Marshal-Reassignment Duties-Final










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to appoint Ms. Letitia "Tish" Naghise, County Administrator Steve Rapson, and 


Commissioner Randy Ognio to serve on Fayette County's Public Facilities Authority for one-year terms and with said terms beginning 


immediately. 


The Fayette County Public Facilities Authority is comprised of three individuals who serve for one year terms.  Two seats on this Board 


have been vacant since October 31, 2012.   Mr. Brian Cardozza resigned his appointment to the Board on May 6, 2013. 


 


Currently, all three positions on the Public Facilities Authority are vacant and need to be filled. 


 


The vacancies for the Public Facilities Authority were advertised and four people submitted applications for consideration. 


 


Chairman Brown is recommending the appointment of Ms. Letitia "Tish" Naghise, County Administrator Steve Rapson, and 


Commissioner Randy Ognio to serve on the Public Facilities Authority for one year terms, and with said terms beginning immediately. 


 


Copies of applications and resumes are submitted as supporting documentation for these recommendations.


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation to appoint Ms. Letitia "Tish" Naghise, County Administrator Steve Rapson, and 


Commissioner Randy Ognio to serve on Fayette County's Public Facilities Authority for one-year terms and with said terms beginning 


immediately. 


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Four applications to serve on the Public Facilities Authority were submitted.  Chairman Brown interviewed each applicant before making 


his recommendations.


New BusinessThursday, May 9, 2013







 


 


 


 
 


 


From:  Chairman Steve Brown 


 


To:  Board of Commissioners 


 


Date: May 2, 2013 


 


As you know, I took over the review of applications for the Fayette County Public Facilities 


Authority. 


 


Because there is a strong need for business acumen and financial experience on this authority, 


and because we need to keep close tabs on the inner workings of the entity, I asked County 


Administrator Steve Rapson and Commissioner Randy Ognio to apply. 


 


I am recommending Ms. Letitia “Tish” Naghise, Steve Rapson and Randy Ognio for the three 


vacancies. 







1


Floyd Jones


From: Tameca P. White


Sent: Wednesday, May 08, 2013 3:46 PM


To: Floyd Jones (fjones@fayettecountyga.gov)


Subject: FW: Public Facilities Authority


Please below… 
 
 
 
 
Tameca P. White, MBA 


Executive Assistant 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Suite 100 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 
Office: 770-305-5103 
Fax: 770-305-5210 


 


From: Cardoza, Brian   


Sent: Monday, May 06, 2013 9:50 AM 


To: Tameca P. White 
Subject: RE: Public Facilities Authority 


 


Tameca: 


 


Effectively today May 6, 2013, I am resigning my position on the Public Facilities Authority. It’s my understanding an 


appointment will be needed to approve this and to replace my position so please forward this to the commission. 


 


Thanks! 


 


Brian Cardoza 


 


From: Tameca P. White  


Sent: Friday, May 03, 2013 3:35 PM 
To:  


Subject: Public Facilities Authority 


 


Hello Brian, 
 
Please confirm (by email) that you are stepping down from the Public Facilities Authority and that an 
appointment will need to be approved to replace your vacancy.  Please include the effective date of 
you stepping down. 
 
Thank you, 
 
 
 







2


Tameca P. White, MBA 


Executive Assistant 
Fayette County Board of Commissioners 
140 Stonewall Avenue West 
Suite 100 
Fayetteville, GA 30214 
Office: 770-305-5103 
Fax: 770-305-5210 
 





























































		Commissioners- Public Facilit...hority Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Backup

		Commissioners- Public Facilties Authority- Backup 1

		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Backup 2



		Commissioners- Public Facilities Authority Backup-2












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Consideration of the Telecommuting Committee's recommendation to approve both the Teleworking Policy 448.20 and the Fayette 


County Teleworking Agreement; officially allowing the county to begin the process of implementing a Teleworking pilot program.


An internal Telecommuting Committee was established that was comprised of County Administrator Steve Rapson, Human Resources 


Director Lewis Patterson, County Finance Director Mary Holland, and Information Systems Director Russell Prince, and Chairman Steve 


Brown.  The committee met with staff from The Clean Air Campaign and their consultant on creating a pilot program for telecommuting. 


 


The Telecommuting Committee is recommending approval of Teleworking Policy 448.20 and the Fayette County Teleworking 


Agreement, which will officially allow the county to begin the process of implementing the pilot program. 


 


County departments identified for the pilot program are:  Fire, Finance, Human Resources, Tax Assessor, and Administration.  The Clean 


Air Campaign will aid Fayette County in developing appropriate tools for measuring productivity and accountability. 


 


If approved, Fayette County will be the first county in Metropolitan Atlanta to implement a telecommuting program, and it is hoped that 


this action will create a model for local Fayette County businesses and industries to follow.


Approval of the Telecommuting Committee's recommendation to approve both the Teleworking Policy 448.20 and the Fayette County 


Teleworking Agreement; officially allowing the county to begin the process of implementing a Teleworking pilot program.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


Once adopted , Fayette County will be the first county in Metropolitan Atlanta to implement a telecommuting program.  It is hoped that 


this action will create a model for local Fayette County businesses and industries to follow.


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







 
 


MEMORANDUM 


 


From:  Chairman Steve Brown 


 


Date:  May 10, 2013 


 


To: Board of Commissioners 


 


Subject:   INITIATION OF TELECOMMUTING PROGRAM IN FAYETTE COUNTY  


  May 25, 2013, Board of Commissioners Meeting 


 


 


An internal Telecommuting Committee was established comprised of County Administrator 


Steve Rapson, Human Resources Director Lewis Patterson, County Finance Director Mary 


Holland, Information Systems Director Russell Prince and me.  We have had the pleasure of 


working with the staff from The Clean Air Campaign and their consultant on creating a pilot 


program for telecommuting. 


 


After careful review, the Telecommuting Committee is recommending the approval of the 


“Teleworking Policy 448.20” and the “Fayette County Teleworking Agreement” to officially 


allow the county to begin the process of implementing the pilot program. 


 


County departments identified for the pilot program are: Fire, Finance, Human Resources, Tax 


Assessor and Administration. 


 


The Clean Air Campaign will aid us in developing the appropriate tools for measuring 


productivity and accountability.   


 


Fayette County will be one of the first counties in Metropolitan Atlanta to implement a 


telecommuting program and we hope to create a model for local Fayette County business and 


industry to follow. 







 


 


 


 


 


 


MEMORANDUM 


 


From:  Chairman Steve Brown 


 


Date:  May 10, 2013 


 


To: Board of Commissioners 


 


Subject:   INITIATION OF TELECOMMUTING PROGRAM IN FAYETTE COUNTY  


  May 25, 2013, Board of Commissioners Meeting 


 


 


An internal Telecommuting Committee was established comprised of County Administrator 


Steve Rapson, Human Resources Director Lewis Patterson, County Finance Director Mary 


Holland, Information Systems Director Russell Prince and me.  We have had the pleasure of 


working with the staff from The Clean Air Campaign and their consultant on creating a pilot 


program for telecommuting. 


 


After careful review, the Telecommuting Committee is recommending the approval of the 


“Teleworking Policy 448.20” and the “Fayette County Teleworking Agreement” to officially 


allow the county to begin the process of implementing the pilot program. 


 


County departments identified for the pilot program are: Fire, Finance, Human Resources, Tax 


Assessor and Administration. 


 


The Clean Air Campaign will aid us in developing the appropriate tools for measuring 


productivity and accountability.   


 


Fayette County will be one of the first counties in Metropolitan Atlanta to implement a 


telecommuting program and we hope to create a model for local Fayette County business and 


industry to follow. 







Fayette County Human Resources  Teleworking  
Policies and Procedures  448.20 
 


 


  Page 1 of 2 
BOC Approval ________  00-00-00 


PURPOSE 
 
This document defines the teleworking program and the guidelines and rules under which it will operate. 
 
 
POLICY 
 


Employees taking part in Teleworking must comply with all related County personnel policies and 


practices.  This program can be utilized by managers as a tool to promote workforce productivity.  


Employee salary and benefits will not change as a result of participation in Teleworking.  Employees 


agree that Teleworking is voluntary and may be terminated by the County, with or without cause at any 


time.  Terms and conditions of employment for teleworkers and their supervisors remains the same.  


Work hours, overtime compensation and vacation schedules must conform to County guidelines and to 


terms otherwise agreed upon by the employee and their supervisor.  The employee shall abide with all 


policies, rules and regulations of the County while teleworking.  The employee agrees not to conduct 


personal business during the defined teleworking period at the alternate workplace. 
 
 
PROCEDURE 
 


Selection 


 
Department Heads will work with the Human Resources Director to identify employees who are 
teleworking candidates.  Employees will be selected based on the suitability of their jobs, an evaluation of 
potential success as a teleworker and an evaluation of their supervisor to handle remote workers. 
 
Teleworker’s Agreement 
 
Every teleworker will have a signed Teleworker’s Agreement on file with their supervisor and Human 
Resources.  This agreement will be updated when substantial changes are made to the teleworking 
agreement.   
 
Workspace 
 
Since the employee’s remote work space is considered an extension of the County work space, the 
County has workers’ compensation liability for job-related accidents during the employee’s telework 
hours.  The County has the right to make on-site visits to the employee’s residence or other alternative 
work site at mutually agreed upon times, with reasonable notice to determine that the work site is safe.   
 
The employee remains liable for injuries to third persons and members of the employee’s family on the 
employee’s premises. 
 
Individual tax implications related to the home work space shall be the responsibility of the teleworker.  
Participating employees are advised to consult a tax expert. 
 
Equipment, Furniture and Supplies 
 
The use of equipment, software, supplies and furniture, when supplied by the County for use at the 
remote location, is limited to authorized persons and for purposes relating to County business.  The 
employee is responsible for seeing that equipment is properly used.  The County will provide for repairs to 







Fayette County Human Resources  Teleworking 
Polices and Procedures  448.20 


 


  Page 2 of 2 
  00-00-00 


County equipment.  When the employee uses their own equipment, the employee is responsible for 
maintenance and repair of that equipment.  Office supplies (e.g., pens and paper) shall be provided by 
the agency and should be obtained during the teleworker’s in-office work period. 
 
The employee is expected to use their own furniture, telephone lines and other equipment (with the 
exception of any equipment provided by the County).   
 
Security 
 
The teleworker is responsible for maintaining confidentiality and security at the alternate workplace, as 
the teleworker would at the primary workplace.  The employee must protect the security and integrity of 
data, information, paper files and access to agency computer systems.  County Information System 
policies apply to teleworking, the same as they would in the primary workplace.   
 


Child Care, Dependent Care and Business Guests 


 


Teleworkers may not use telework as a child care or dependent care option.  The teleworker may not 


have business guests at the alternate workplace or any other location except at County offices. 


 
Mileage Reimbursement 


 


Mileage between the home and the employee’s assigned office or other telework location shall be 


considered commute mileage and not subject to reimbursement. 


 







Fayette County 


Teleworking Agreement 


 


Telework is working at a location other than at a County office.  This can be either at a home or another 


location.  Telework is an option that management may choose to make available to qualified employees 


when a mutually beneficial situation exists.  It is not a universal employee benefit.  Employees do not 


have a “right” to telework and this work option may be terminated by the employer at any time.   


 


The following conditions for telework must be agreed to by the teleworker and the County: 


 


1.  The employee agrees to work at the following location: 


     ____________________________________________________________________________ 


     (Home or alternate work address) 


 


2.  The employee will telework _____ day(s) a week, or _____ days a month. 


 


3.  The employee’s work hours will be as follows: 


      Day: _________________  From: ________________ To: ________________ 


 


4. Equipment to be used by the employee at the telework worksite will be agreed to by both the                               


employee and their supervisor.  The following equipment is needed to complete the telework 


assignment: 


   __________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


 __________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


5. The supervisor and employee agree to the following arrangement regarding business telephone calls, 


use of cell phone and use of a fax machine: 


 


   __________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


 __________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


6. The employee agrees to call the central office to retrieve work-related messages at least _____ times 


per telework day. 


 


7. The employee agrees to “check out” all supplies needed by contacting the appropriate office staff.   


 


 


 







Additional conditions agreed upon by the supervisor and the employee are as follows: 


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


_____________________________________________________________________________________ 


 


Telework Standards:  When a telework assignment is agreed upon, the following standards apply: 


 


1.   Telework is a management option and may be terminated by the employer at any time. 


2. The duties, obligations, responsibilities and conditions of a teleworker’s employment with the state 


are unchanged.  The employee’s salary and benefits are unchanged. 


3. All records, including training, must be kept for a minimum of three years.  The manager and the 


coordinator within each agency will be responsible for all record keeping associated with telework. 


4. Work hours, overtime compensation and vacation schedule must conform to terms agreed upon by 


the employee and agency.   


5. The use of equipment, software, supplies and furniture, when provided by the County for use at the 


offsite work location, is limited to authorized persons and for purposes relating to County business 


only. 


6. Employees should designate a work space for installation of equipment.  This work space should be   


maintained in a safe condition, free from hazards and other dangers to employees and equipment. 


7. Since the offsite work location shall be considered an extension of the County work space, the      


County’s workers’ compensation liability for job related accidents will continue to exist during the 


employee’s telework hours. 


8. In the event of delay in repair or replacement of equipment or any other circumstances under which 


it would be impossible for the employee to telework, the employee’s supervisor may assign other 


work or request that the employee move to another location.   


9. When County equipment is provided to the employee, the employee is responsible for ensuring that 


the equipment is properly used.  The County will provide for repairs to County equipment. 


10. When the employee uses their own equipment, the employee is responsible for maintenance and 


repair or equipment.   


11. The employee remains liable for injuries to third persons or members of the employee’s family on 


the employee’s premises.   


12. Requests to work overtime or to use sick leave, vacation or other leave must first be approved by 


the employee’s supervisor in the same manner as when working in the regular office. 


13. If a teleworker is sick while working at home, the teleworker is required to report the hours worked, 


and must use sick leave or other accrued time to cover the hours not worked. 


14. Teleworkers may not use telework as a child care or dependent care option.  The teleworker may 


not have business guests at the alternate workplace or any other location except at County offices.   


15. Employees remain obligated to comply with all County rules, policies and instructions.  Violations of 


these rules, policies, etc. may result in preclusion from telework or disciplinary action, up to and 


including termination of employment.   







16. Individual tax implications related to the home work space shall be the responsibility of the 


teleworker.  Participating employees are advised to consult a tax expert. 


17. With reasonable notice, the County may make onsite visits to the employee’s offsite work location 


to determine if the place is safe, to ensure there are no hazards and to maintain, inspect, repair or 


retrieve County owned equipment, software, data or supplies. 


18. As a telework employee, I have reviewed the conditions of this Teleworking Agreement and the 


County Telework Policy with my supervisor and agree to the conditions. 


 


 


 


___________________________________________   ________________________________________ 


Employee Signature and Date                                            Supervisor Signature and Date 


 


 


 


 


___________________________________________ 


Human Resources Director Signature and Date 


      





		Commissioners- Telecommuting Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Telecommuting Backup

		1-a

		Commissioners- Telecommuting Backup

		1

		2

		3










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Update:  2013 Board of Commissioners' Changes in Transparency.


Chairman Brown would like to review changes that have occurred since January 2013 enhancing the County's transparency.


No action is requested for this request.


Not Applicable.


No


Yes Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







UPDATE UPDATE UPDATE UPDATE 


Changes in TransparencyChanges in TransparencyChanges in TransparencyChanges in Transparency


2013 Fayette Board of Commissioners2013 Fayette Board of Commissioners2013 Fayette Board of Commissioners2013 Fayette Board of Commissioners







IRS abuses power in targeting tea 


party
By Michael Macleod-Ball and Gabe Rottman, Special to CNN


updated 2:40 PM EDT, Sun May 12, 2013







((((CNN)CNN)CNN)CNN) -- The extraordinary revelation this week that the 


Internal Revenue Service targeted tea party groups for 


more aggressive enforcement highlights exactly why 


caution is needed in any response to the much-vilified 


Supreme Court decision in Citizens United v. FEC.


It also shows how all Americans, from the most liberal It also shows how all Americans, from the most liberal It also shows how all Americans, from the most liberal It also shows how all Americans, from the most liberal 


to the most conservative, should closely guard their to the most conservative, should closely guard their to the most conservative, should closely guard their to the most conservative, should closely guard their 


First Amendment rights, and why giving the First Amendment rights, and why giving the First Amendment rights, and why giving the First Amendment rights, and why giving the 


government too much power to limit political speech government too much power to limit political speech government too much power to limit political speech government too much power to limit political speech 


will inevitably result in selective enforcement against will inevitably result in selective enforcement against will inevitably result in selective enforcement against will inevitably result in selective enforcement against 


unpopular groups.unpopular groups.unpopular groups.unpopular groups.







“… deriving “… deriving “… deriving “… deriving 


their just their just their just their just 


powers from powers from powers from powers from 


the consent the consent the consent the consent 


of of of of the the the the 


governed”governed”governed”governed”
Declaration of IndependenceDeclaration of IndependenceDeclaration of IndependenceDeclaration of Independence







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings


Fair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public Comment







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings


Fair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public Comment


Comment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the Agenda







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings


Fair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public Comment


Comment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the Agenda


Public Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for Posts







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings


Fair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public Comment


Comment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the Agenda


Public Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for Posts


Direct Access to BOCDirect Access to BOCDirect Access to BOCDirect Access to BOC







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings


Fair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public Comment


Comment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the Agenda


Public Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for Posts


Direct Access to BOCDirect Access to BOCDirect Access to BOCDirect Access to BOC


Televised MeetingsTelevised MeetingsTelevised MeetingsTelevised Meetings







F
a
ye
tt
e
 C
o
u
n
ty


Using Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall MeetingsUsing Town Hall Meetings


Fair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public CommentFair Public Comment


Comment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the AgendaComment to the Agenda


Public Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for PostsPublic Applies for Posts


Direct Access to BOCDirect Access to BOCDirect Access to BOCDirect Access to BOC


Televised MeetingsTelevised MeetingsTelevised MeetingsTelevised Meetings


Email Newsletters ComingEmail Newsletters ComingEmail Newsletters ComingEmail Newsletters Coming







More to come!More to come!More to come!More to come!


We are open to suggestionsWe are open to suggestionsWe are open to suggestionsWe are open to suggestions





		Commissioners- Transparency Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Transparency Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Engineering / SPLOST Phil Mallon


Consideration of staff's request to approve the Bid for Kenwood Road Bridge at Morning Creek (SPLOST Project No. B-3) to the low-


bidder, McCarthy Improvement Company, in the amount of $1,390,422.50, for the construction of a new bridge on Kenwood Road over 


Morning Creek, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents.


Kenwood Road is a minor arterial with an average daily traffic volume of approximately 3,700 vehicles per day.  The road's bridge over 


Morning Creek was constructed in 1972 and is a 200-ft structure with timber piles.  Per the GDOT 2012 Bridge Inspection report, the 


structure is posted with weight restrictions due to insufficient shear capacity of the concrete superstructure.  The timber substructure is 


rated as "poor"condition; some timbers have advanced decay.  The bridge's sufficiency rating is 17.39, which is among the lowest of the 


County's 50+ bridge structures (most have a sufficiency rating of 60 or higher).  The proposed bridge is longer (280'), wider (43') and 


higher (6') than the existing, in order to meet current design standards for both flood conditions and road geometry.   


 


The project was advertised and bid competitively by the Project Engineer, Mallett Consulting, Inc., with oversight by the County's 


Purchasing Department.  Five companies bid on the project.  Four of the bids were within 6% of each other.  McCarthy provided the low 


bid. 


 


The construction schedule for the job was reduced from 12 months to 7 months as a result of public input at the April 8th Detour & Public 


Information Open House meeting.  


Approval of staff's request to approve the Bid for Kenwood Road Bridge at Morning Creek (SPLOST Project No. B-3) to the low-bidder, 


McCarthy Improvement Company, in the amount of $1,390,422.50, for the construction of a new bridge on Kenwood Road over Morning 


Creek, and authorization for the Chairman to sign the contract and related documents.


Funding for this project is available from Account 321-40220-511210 B-3.


No


Yes Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Purchasing reviewed and provided oversight for the bid and proposed recommendation.


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







 


 


To:    Steve Rapson 


From:    Ted L. Burgess 


Date:    May 6, 2013 


Subject:  Mallett ITB – Kenwood Road Bridge at Morning Creek 


SPLOST Project B‐3, as included in County Resolution 2004‐09, will replace the bridge on Kenwood Road 


at Morning Creek.  The concept budget is $2,270,000.  As of 1/1/2013 a total of $145,947.23 of this 


amount had been spent on engineering, surveying, and similar work. 


Mallett Consulting issued an invitation to bid for bridge construction.  As is their custom, they advertised 


in a number of ways.  One was to notify several trade groups, who share the information electronically 


or otherwise with companies in the industry.  They include Reed Construction Data in Norcross, AGC 


Builder’s Exchange Plan Room in Smyrna, and Construction Journal in Florida.  Mallett also contacts 


vendors directly, and advertises in the Fayette News and on their website. 


Contractors who respond to the invitation are placed on a bidders’ plan holder list.  Mallett Construction 


sends firms on this list all bid documents, as well as any addenda.  Eight firms were placed on the plan 


holders’ list. 


Five contractors submitted bids, which were opened on April 30, 2013.  The bid amounts ranged from 


$1,390,422.50 to $1,728,253.31 (please see attached).  During the bid opening process, it was confirmed 


that all five bids included required bid bonds, and that they acknowledged receipt of Addendum #2. 


The Public Works Department recommends the low‐priced bidder, McCarthy Improvement Company, 


for award of the contract.  I support their recommendation. 


Attachment 







KENWOOD RD. BRIDGE REPLACEMENT


AT MORNING CREEK


FOR FAYETTE COUNTY, GA


BID TABULATION


BID DATE: APRIL 30, 2013


EST. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE


 - ROADWAY ITEMS -


150-1000 Traffic Control L.S. 1 LS 12,000.00$         LS 21,550.00$         L.S. 11,200.00$       L.S. 20,106.54$      L.S. 20,000.00$         


151-1000 Mobilization L.S. 1 LS 16,000.00$         LS 46,100.00$         L.S. 56,252.00$       L.S. 64,080.29$      L.S. 56,000.00$         


201-1500 Clearing & Grubbing Complete L.S. 1 LS 27,000.00$         LS 40,950.00$         L.S. 17,751.00$       L.S. 17,842.56$      L.S. 113,000.00$       


210-0100 Grading Complete L.S. 1 LS 216,000.00$       LS 102,360.00$       L.S. 91,785.00$       L.S. 104,858.03$    L.S. 131,000.00$       


310-1101 GR AGGR Base CRS, Include. Matl. TON 1650 17.50$          28,875.00$         17.11$          28,231.50$         17.00$          28,050.00$       17.11$          28,231.50$      17.11$          28,231.50$         


318-3000 AGGR Surf CRS Ton 600 17.20$          10,320.00$         14.78$          8,868.00$           14.75$          8,850.00$         14.78$          8,868.00$        14.78$          8,868.00$           


402-1812 Recycled Asph. Conc. Leveling, Incl. Bitum Matl. & H lime Ton 100 88.00$          8,800.00$           81.75$          8,175.00$           99.50$          9,950.00$         87.10$          8,710.00$        87.10$          8,710.00$           


402-3130 Recycled Asph. Conc. 12.5mm Superpave, GP 2 Only,


Incl. Bitum Matl. & H Lime Ton 300 83.00$          24,900.00$         79.50$          23,850.00$         83.00$          24,900.00$       82.55$          24,765.00$      82.55$          24,765.00$         


402-3190 Recycled Asph. Conc. 19mm Superpave, GP 1 or 2, 


Incl. Bitum Matl. & H Lime Ton 400 76.00$          30,400.00$         76.25$          30,500.00$         75.00$          30,000.00$       75.28$          30,112.00$      75.28$          30,112.00$         


402-3121 Recycled Asph Conc. 25mm Superpave,  GP 1 or 2, 


Incl. Bitum Matl. & H Lime Ton 550 75.00$          41,250.00$         74.75$          41,112.50$         69.25$          38,087.50$       74.92$          41,206.00$      74.92$          41,206.00$         


413-1000 Bitum Tack Coat GL 550 4.25$            2,337.50$           2.75$            1,512.50$           4.50$            2,475.00$         4.17$            2,293.50$        4.17$            2,293.50$           


441-0016 Driveway Concrete, 6" SY 250 42.00$          10,500.00$         35.29$          8,822.50$           31.50$          7,875.00$         35.29$          8,822.50$        35.29$          8,822.50$           


441-5003 8" Header curb, TP 3 LF 150 15.00$          2,250.00$           15.91$          2,386.50$           14.00$          2,100.00$         15.91$          2,386.50$        15.91$          2,386.50$           


432-0206 Mill Asph Conc. Pvmt. 1 1/2" Depth SY 270 16.00$          4,320.00$           17.00$          4,590.00$           22.50$          6,075.00$         15.21$          4,106.70$        15.21$          4,106.70$           


433-1000 Reinf. Conc. Approach Slab SY 110 125.00$        13,750.00$         145.23$        15,975.30$         152.50$        16,775.00$       214.19$        23,560.90$      140.00$        15,400.00$         


444-2000 Saw cut joints in exist. Pavement - asphalt. LF 50 5.00$            250.00$              2.00$            100.00$              7.00$            350.00$            10.00$          500.00$           10.00$          500.00$              


550-2180 Side drain pipe, 18", H: 1-10 LF 60 36.00$          2,160.00$           27.45$          1,647.00$           27.00$          1,620.00$         27.45$          1,647.00$        27.45$          1,647.00$           


634-1200 Conc. Right of Way Markers EA 8 90.00$          720.00$              95.00$          760.00$              145.00$        1,160.00$         149.81$        1,198.48$        149.81$        1,198.48$           


641-1100 Guardrail, TP T LF 100 71.00$          7,100.00$           55.00$          5,500.00$           57.75$          5,775.00$         70.85$          7,085.00$        70.85$          7,085.00$           


641-1200 Guardrail, TP W LF 700 19.50$          13,650.00$         15.00$          10,500.00$         15.75$          11,025.00$       19.20$          13,440.00$      19.20$          13,440.00$         


641-5001 Guardrail Anchorage, TP 1 EA 2 900.00$        1,800.00$           700.00$        1,400.00$           735.00$        1,470.00$         900.00$        1,800.00$        900.00$        1,800.00$           


641-5000 Guardrail Anchorage, TP Alternate "A" EA 2 2,205.00$     4,410.00$           2,300.00$     4,600.00$           2,415.00$     4,830.00$         2,205.00$     4,410.00$        2,205.00$     4,410.00$           


641-5000 Guardrail Anchorage - Bridge EA 4 1.00$            4.00$                  50.00$          200.00$              50.00$          200.00$            1.00$            4.00$               1.00$            4.00$                  


647-8200 Barrier Fence (Orange), 4 Ft. LF 500 1.00$            500.00$              1.43$            715.00$              1.40$            700.00$            0.90$            450.00$           1.00$            500.00$              


 - EROSION CONTROL -


161-1000 Polyacrylamide soil binder AC 2 350.00$        700.00$              367.50$        735.00$              367.50$        735.00$            350.00$        700.00$           500.00$        1,000.00$           


163-0300 Construction Exit, Including Maintenance EA 2 2,343.00$     4,686.00$           1,378.19$     2,756.38$           1,370.00$     2,740.00$         1,378.19$     2,756.38$        1,378.19$     2,756.38$           


163-0232 Temporary Grassing AC 2 310.00$        620.00$              325.50$        651.00$              325.50$        651.00$            100.00$        200.00$           325.50$        651.00$              


TIDWELL CONSTRUCTIONROGERS BRIDGE CO.GREGORY BRIDGE CO. SOUTHEASTERN SITEMcCARTHY IMPROVEMENT CO.







Page 2


EST. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE


163-0240 Mulch Ton 25 230.00$        5,750.00$           241.50$        6,037.50$           241.50$        6,037.50$         200.00$        5,000.00$        241.50$        6,037.50$           


163-0527 Construct and Remove Rip Rap Check dams EA 10 235.00$        2,350.00$           190.76$        1,907.60$           190.00$        1,900.00$         190.76$        1,907.60$        190.76$        1,907.60$           


163-0529 Construct and Remove Baled Straw Erosion Check EA 10 60.00$          600.00$              63.00$          630.00$              63.00$          630.00$            60.00$          600.00$           63.00$          630.00$              


165-0071 Maintenance of Baled Straw Erosion Check EA 10 15.00$          150.00$              15.75$          157.50$              15.00$          150.00$            15.00$          150.00$           15.75$          157.50$              


165-0041 Maintenance of Erosion Control Checkdams- All Types EA 10 15.00$          150.00$              53.94$          539.40$              50.00$          500.00$            15.00$          150.00$           53.94$          539.40$              


165-0030 Maintenance of Silt Fence, Type C LF 5000 0.25$            1,250.00$           0.26$            1,300.00$           0.25$            1,250.00$         0.25$            1,250.00$        0.26$            1,300.00$           


171-0030 Temporary Silt Fence, Type C LF 5,000 2.30$            11,500.00$         2.37$            11,850.00$         2.25$            11,250.00$       2.26$            11,300.00$      2.37$            11,850.00$         


700-6910 Permanent Grassing AC 2 650.00$        1,300.00$           682.50$        1,365.00$           680.00$        1,360.00$         1,200.00$     2,400.00$        682.50$        1,365.00$           


700-7000 Agricultural Lime Ton 4 100.00$        400.00$              105.00$        420.00$              105.00$        420.00$            40.00$          160.00$           105.00$        420.00$              


700-8000 Fertilizer Mixed Grade Ton 1 495.00$        495.00$              519.75$        519.75$              520.00$        520.00$            580.00$        580.00$           519.75$        519.75$              


700-8100 Fertilizer Nitrogen Content LB 100 1.25$            125.00$              1.31$            131.00$              1.30$            130.00$            1.00$            100.00$           1.31$            131.00$              


716-2000 Erosion Control Mats, Slopes (BonTerra CS2 or Equal) SY 5,000 1.45$            7,250.00$           1.52$            7,600.00$           1.50$            7,500.00$         0.90$            4,500.00$        1.52$            7,600.00$           


167-1000 Water Monitoring and Sampling EA 3 75.00$          225.00$              100.00$        300.00$              50.00$          150.00$            100.00$        300.00$           100.00$        300.00$              


167-1500 Water Quality Inspections MO 14 350.00$        4,900.00$           375.00$        5,250.00$           300.00$        4,200.00$         375.00$        5,250.00$        375.00$        5,250.00$           


576-1010 Temp. Pipe Slope Drain, 10" LF 200 31.00$          6,200.00$           10.86$          2,172.00$           10.00$          2,000.00$         10.86$          2,172.00$        10.86$          2,172.00$           


603-2180 Stone Dumped Rip Rap, Typ 3, 12 in. SY 100 18.00$          1,800.00$           27.00$          2,700.00$           27.00$          2,700.00$         27.00$          2,700.00$        27.00$          2,700.00$           


603-7000 Plastic Filter Fabric SY 100 2.55$            255.00$              1.79$            179.00$              2.00$            200.00$            1.79$            179.00$           1.79$            179.00$              


 - SIGNING & MARKING -


636-1020 Highway Signs, Type 1 Matl. Refl. Sheeting, TP 3 SF 40 16.00$          640.00$              16.00$          640.00$              17.00$          680.00$            16.50$          660.00$           16.50$          660.00$              


636-2070 Galv. Steel Posts, TP 7 LF 100 6.00$            600.00$              6.00$            600.00$              8.50$            850.00$            8.00$            800.00$           8.00$            800.00$              


653-1501 Thermoplastic Solid Traf. Stripe, 5" White LF 3,900 0.50$            1,950.00$           0.60$            2,340.00$           0.55$            2,145.00$         0.60$            2,340.00$        0.60$            2,340.00$           


653-1502 Thermoplastic Solid Traf. Stripe, 5" Yellow LF 3,900 0.50$            1,950.00$           0.60$            2,340.00$           0.55$            2,145.00$         0.60$            2,340.00$        0.60$            2,340.00$           


654-1001 Raised Pvmt Markers TP 1 EA 112 7.50$            840.00$              5.00$            560.00$              7.90$            884.80$            5.00$            560.00$           5.00$            560.00$              


 - BRIDGE -


500-0100 Grooved Concrete SY 1200 2.00$            2,400.00$           6.00$            7,200.00$           6.20$            7,440.00$         1.90$            2,280.00$        5.00$            6,000.00$           


500-1006 Superstructure Concrete, CL AA, BR NO-1 LS 1 LS 214,000.00$       LS 265,200.00$       LS 283,947.00$     LS 240,075.18$    LS 305,000.00$       


500-2100 Concrete Barrier Wall LF 550 35.00$          19,250.00$         32.00$          17,600.00$         33.00$          18,150.00$       30.35$          16,692.50$      35.00$          19,250.00$         


500-3101 Class A Concrete CY 100 725.00$        72,500.00$         765.00$        76,500.00$         786.00$        78,600.00$       1,048.61$     104,861.00$    100.00$        10,000.00$         


507-8900 PSC Beams, AASHTO Type I Mod, BR NO-1 LF 1657 85.00$          140,845.00$       89.00$          147,473.00$       91.50$          151,615.50$     80.04$          132,626.28$    85.00$          140,845.00$       


511-1000 Bar Reinforcing Steel LB 11000 0.80$            8,800.00$           0.70$            7,700.00$           0.75$            8,250.00$         0.71$            7,810.00$        1.00$            11,000.00$         


511-3000 Superstructure Reinf. Steel, BR NO-1 LS 1 LS 69,000.00$         LS 64,475.00$         LS 66,400.00$       LS 72,709.94$      LS 75,000.00$         


520-0242 H-Pile Points, Hp 10x42 EA 6 102.00$        612.00$              130.00$        780.00$              134.00$        804.00$            125.08$        750.48$           200.00$        1,200.00$           


520-0353 H-Pile Points, HP 12x53 EA 18 110.00$        1,980.00$           135.00$        2,430.00$           139.00$        2,502.00$         131.11$        2,359.98$        200.00$        3,600.00$           


520-1104 Piling in Place, Steel H, HP 10x42 LF 561 30.00$          16,830.00$         40.00$          22,440.00$         41.20$          23,113.20$       35.26$          19,780.86$      40.00$          22,440.00$         


McCARTHY IMPROVEMENT CO. GREGORY BRIDGE CO. SOUTHEASTERN SITE ROGERS BRIDGE CO. TIDWELL CONSTRUCTION







Page 3


EST. UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL UNIT TOTAL


ITEM # DESCRIPTION UNIT QUANTITY PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE PRICE


520-1125 Piling in Place, Steel H, Hp 12x53 LF 1628 39.00$          63,492.00$         45.00$          73,260.00$         46.35$          75,457.80$       40.51$          65,950.28$      46.00$          74,888.00$         


520-4102 Load Test, Steel H, HP 10x42 EA 1 1.00$            1.00$                  1.00$            1.00$                  1.00$            1.00$                0.01$            0.01$               1.00$            1.00$                  


520-4125 Load Test, Steel H, HP 12x53 EA 1 1.00$            1.00$                  1.00$            1.00$                  1.00$            1.00$                0.01$            0.01$               1.00$            1.00$                  


520-5000 Pilot Holes EA 48 333.00$        15,984.00$         250.00$        12,000.00$         257.50$        12,360.00$       1.00$            48.00$             1,162.00$     55,776.00$         


540-1102 Demolition/Removal Existing Bridge LS 1 38,000.00$   38,000.00$         40,000.00$   40,000.00$         46,350.00$   46,350.00$       133,910.14$ 133,910.14$    337,000.00$ 337,000.00$       


547-2012 Pile Encasement, 12in pile LF 153 165.00$        25,245.00$         135.00$        20,655.00$         139.00$        21,267.00$       147.66$        22,591.98$      200.00$        30,600.00$         


603-2024 Stone Dumped Rip Rap, TP 1, 24 in SY 3000 37.00$          111,000.00$       42.50$          127,500.00$       41.20$          123,600.00$     41.04$          123,120.00$    1.00$            3,000.00$           


603-7000 Plastic Filer Fabric SY 3000 1.50$            4,500.00$           3.00$            9,000.00$           3.10$            9,300.00$         2.46$            7,380.00$        1.00$            3,000.00$           


 - ALLOWANCES -


001-4000 Allowance Per Special Conditions LS 1 LS 50,000.00$         LS 50,000.00$         LS 50,000.00$       LS 50,000.00$      LS 50,000.00$         


TOTAL BASE BID 1,390,422.50$    1,408,301.93$    1,410,142.30$  1,472,486.12$ 1,728,253.31$    *


* Corrected for Math Errors


McCARTHY IMPROVEMENT CO. GREGORY BRIDGE CO. SOUTHEASTERN SITE ROGERS BRIDGE CO. TIDWELL CONSTRUCTION





		Engineering- Kenwood Rd Bridge Award Agenda Request File

		Engineering- Kenwood Road Bridge Award Backup

		1

		2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Legal Interim Attorney Dennis Davenport


Discussion of a draft Ethics Ordinance prepared by Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport.


During the April 25, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting, Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport briefed the Board of 


Commissioners on the possibility of addressing and amending the current Fayette County Ethics Ordinance.   Each Commissioner spoke 


about the Ethics Ordinance and made suggestions on how to amend it. 


 


The Board directed Mr. Davenport to return at a later meeting to provide and discuss a draft Ethics Ordinance.  Mr. Davenport has 


provided a draft ordinance for discussion and further direction from the Board. 


 


Direction is sought on how to proceed with amending the Fayette County Ethics Ordinance.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, April 25, 2013


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Old BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







1 
 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


 


 ORDINANCE NO. 


2013 -- ____ 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY; TO REVISE THE EXISTING CODE OF ETHICS FOR FAYETTE COUNTY; 


…; TO PROMOTE THE PUBLIC HEALTH, SAFETY AND WELFARE, AND FOR 


OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE AUTHORITY OF THE 


SAME, THAT CHAPTER 2 OF THE FAYETTE COUNTY CODE BE AMENDED AS 


FOLLOWS: 


 


[When looking at the enactment of an ethics ordinance, be aware that the Ethics 


Ordinance is in addition to all local, state and federal laws which govern the behavior of 


people, in general.  In addition, there are ethics laws enacted by the state which are 


applicable to all elected officials in the county, and other individuals that fall within the 


statutory definition of “Covered Officials”.  Generally, we’re talking about elected 


officials.  The Employee Handbook is in place to address the behavior of employees of 


Fayette County, though not necessarily for appointed and elected officials. 


The purpose of an Ethics Ordinance is to articulate acceptable standards of behavior 







2 
 


which are over and above those behaviors that are regulated by law.  Some behaviors may 


rise to the level of such concern that legislation is warranted to address the behavior which 


is not otherwise illegal, e.g., the recent enactments by the General Assembly with specific 


dollar limitations on gifts to elected officials. 


This Working Draft Ethics Ordinance is structured to compare the Current Ethics 


Ordinance with the Ethics Ordinance replaced by the Current Ethics Ordinance (the 1999 


Ethics Ordinance).  Following some of the provisions of each of the two ordinances, 


comments are provided to promote discussion and finalization of what areas should and 


should not be covered by an ethics ordinance. Ed. (term designating information provided 


by the Editor of the Working Draft)] 


 


[From 1999 Ethics Ordinance] 


Sec. 2-207.  Purpose and intent. 


The purpose of this Code of Ethics is to establish ethical standards of conduct for all 


officials and employees of Fayette County by identifying acts or actions that are incompatible with 


the best interests of the community and the organization and by requiring disclosure by such 


officials and employees of private financial, or other interests, in matters affecting the County. 


Those covered officials and employees are bound to observe in their official acts the 


highest standards of behavior and to faithfully discharge the duties and responsibilities of their 


office, regardless of personal considerations, recognizing that the public interest must be their 


primary concern. 


Covered officials and employees shall not exceed their authority or breach the law, or ask 







3 
 


others to do so, and they shall work in full cooperation with other public officials and employees 


unless prohibited from so doing by law or by officially recognized confidentiality of their work. 


 


[From Current Ethics Ordinance] 


 The proper operation of local government requires that the public officials be independent, 


impartial and responsible to the people; that the government decisions and policy be made through 


proper channels of the governmental structure; that the public office not be used for personal gain; 


that the public officials be free from the appearance of impropriety; and that the public have 


confidence in the integrity of its government.  In recognition of these goals, a code of ethics for all 


county officials is adopted.  The purpose of this policy is to establish ethical standards of conduct 


for all such officials by setting forth those acts or actions that are incompatible with the best 


interests of the county and by directing disclosure by such officials of private financial or other 


interests in matters affecting the county. 


 


[Definitions from 1999 Ethics Ordinance] 


Sec. 2-208.  Definitions. 


The following words, terms and phrases, when used in the Code of Ethics of Fayette 


County, shall have the meanings ascribed to them in this section: 


(1) "Code of Ethics" means the Code of Ethics of Fayette County. 


(2) "County" means Fayette County, Georgia. 


(3) "Covered Official" means any member of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette 


County and any person who has been appointed to a position by the Board of Commissioners of 







4 
 


Fayette County including, but not limited to, the County Administrator, the County Clerk, 


Department Heads, and any member of the Planning Commission, the Zoning Board of Appeals, 


or any other appointed board.  The County Attorney is subject to the Ethical Considerations and 


Disciplinary Rules enacted by the State Bar of Georgia, and is also considered a covered official 


insofar as the application of this ordinance.  However, enforcement shall be through the 


procedures as established by the State Bar of Georgia. 


(4) "Gift" means the transfer of anything of economic value, regardless of form, 


without adequate and lawful consideration.  AGift@ also means a subscription, membership, loan, 


forgiveness of debt, advance or deposit of money or anything of value, conveyed or transferred. 


(5) AImmediate family@ means parents, spouse and children. 


 


[The above-based definitions are limited in number and broad-based enough to 


cover those behaviors which could reasonably be expected to influence a Covered Official 


in making a decision on behalf of the County.  The definition of Covered Official was 


intentionally broad to ensure every person employed by Fayette County, whether elected, 


appointed, or hired, will be covered by the Ethics Ordinance. 


The position of County Attorney was specifically removed from the definition of 


Covered Official due to the unique position of attorneys in the state of Georgia in relation 


to a regulatory body issuing decisions on the practice of law.  The Supreme Court of 


Georgia is the exclusive body to regulate the practice of law.  Laws which purport to 


allow entities other than the Supreme Court to regulate the practice of law are generally 


problematicl.  Any behavior by the County Attorney that would raise ethical concerns in a 







5 
 


local ordinance would most likely be covered through the State Bar of Georgia as 


regulated by the Supreme Court. Ed.] 


 


[Definitions from Current Ethics Ordinance] 


 Business entity means any business, proprietorship, firm, partnership, person in either a 


representative or a fiduciary capacity, association, venture, trust, or corporation. 


 Confidential information means any information which, by law or practice, is not available 


to the public. 


 


[Is this kind of definition beneficial? Ed.] 


  


County official or official shall mean the county board of commissioners, county 


administrator, county attorney and his assistants, and any county employee who has been 


appointed to the position by the board of commissioners. 


 


[See above comments on the County Attorney.  Is this intended to cover all 


employees of Fayette County?  Taken, literally, employees are not appointed by the Board 


of Commissioners.  Persons who serve on boards (Planning Commission, Zoning Board 


of Appeals, etc.), are appointed by the Board of Commissioners.  All employees are hired 


through Human Resources to work for Fayette County.  I presume that employees of 


Fayette County are to be covered by the Ethics Ordinance.  Making this more clear allows 


for ease of enforcement. Ed.] 







6 
 


 Immediate family means an official and the spouse of an official, their parents, children, 


brothers and sisters related by blood or marriage. 


 


[This definition is broader than in the 1999 Ethics Ordinance.  Are we covering 


the brothers and sisters of just the official, or also the brothers and sisters of the spouse of 


the elected official?  Same for the “related by blood or marriage” language.  Are we 


seeking to cover the brother- and sister-in-law of the spouse in addition to the brother- and 


sister-in-law of the official.  This is not an attempt to pass judgment on the appropriate 


definition, the Ethics Ordinance is put together by the elected officials.  Make the 


definitions as broad or as narrow as you desire.  However terms are defined, the 


definitions should have one reasonable interpretation. Ed.] 


  


Interest means direct or indirect pecuniary or material benefit accruing to a public officer 


or official as a result of a contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or 


action by or with the county except for such contracts or transactions which, by their terms and by 


the substance of their provisions, confer the opportunity and right to realize the accrual of similar 


benefits to all other persons and/or property similarly situated. 


 


[This exclusion of certain types of contracts in the abstract under the definition of 


Interest, does not provide clarity as to how Interest is to be defined.  The term Interest 


requires a good understanding of what you’re trying to define.  Providing an exclusion to 


the general term without a good working knowledge of the general term can be 







7 
 


problematic. Ed.] 


 


For purposes of this policy, a county official shall be deemed to have an interest in the affairs of: 


(1) His or her immediate family; 


(2) Any business entity in which the county official is an officer, director, or member 


having a financial interest in, or employed by it; or 


(3) Any business entity as to which the stock, legal ownership, or beneficial ownership 


of a county official is in excess of five percent of the total stock or total legal and beneficial 


ownership, or which is controlled or owned directly or indirectly by the county official. 


Official act or action means any legislative, administrative, appointive or discretionary act 


of any official of the county or any agency, board, committee, authority or commission thereof. 


 


[Official of the County is a different term than County Official.  Need to use 


consistent terms. Ed.] 


 


Reprimand means an expression of disapproval. 


 


 [Is this definition beneficial? Ed.] 


 


[From 1999 Ethics Ordinance] 


Sec. 2-209.  Text of ethical considerations. 


Notwithstanding any provisions of law to the contrary, each covered official and employee 







8 
 


of Fayette County shall: 


(1) Uphold the Constitution, laws and regulations of the United States, the State of 


Georgia, and all governments therein and never be a party to their evasion; 


(2) Never discriminate by the dispensing of special favors or privileges to anyone, 


whether or not for remuneration; 


(3) Not engage in any business with the government, or allow any member of his/her 


immediate family to engage in any business with the government, either directly or 


indirectly, which is inconsistent with the conscientious performance of his/her 


governmental duties; 


(4) Never use any information coming to him/her confidentially in the performance of 


governmental duties as a means for making private profit; 


(5) Expose corruption wherever discovered; 


(6) Never solicit, accept, or agree to accept gifts, loans, gratuities, discounts, favors, 


hospitality, or services from any person, association, or corporation for himself/herself, or 


any member of his/her immediate family, under circumstances from which it could 


reasonably be inferred that a major purpose of the donor is to influence the performance of 


the official=s/employee's official duties.  For gifts, loans, gratuities, discounts, favors, 


hospitality, or services solicited, accepted, or agreed to accept under circumstances from 


which it cannot be reasonably inferred that a major purpose of the donor was to influence 


the performance of the official=s/employee=s official duties, the following rules shall apply:  


A covered official shall publicly disclose, prior to discussing or taking any official action 


on any matter involving the donor, any gift or campaign contribution (cash or in kind) 







9 
 


received by him/her, or any member of his/her immediate family, greater than $100.00.  


Receipt of gifts and campaign contributions valued at $500.00 or more by a covered 


official, or member of his/her immediate family, will prohibit the covered official from 


participating or taking official action on any matter involving the donor; 


(7) Never accept any economic opportunity for himself/herself, or any member of 


his/her immediate family, under circumstances where he/she knows or should know that 


there is a substantial possibility that the opportunity is being afforded with intent to 


influence his/her conduct in the performance of his/her official duties.  All business 


relationships, regardless of the dollar amount involved, between a covered official, or a 


member of his/her immediate family, and anyone having business with the County shall be 


publicly disclosed prior to any discussion or official action being taken on the matter.  


Should the business relationship provide a covered official, or a member of his/her 


immediate family, with at least $6,000.00 on an annual basis, such covered official shall be 


prohibited from participating or taking official action on any matter involving the person 


with whom such business relationship exists; and 


(8) Never engage in other conduct which is unbecoming to an official/employee or 


which constitutes a breach of public trust. 


  


[The 1999 Ethics Ordinance, very generally, covered a wide range of issues which 


could trigger a potential ethics violation.  Ethics Ordinances are written subjectively, 


e.g., whether the Covered Official felt influenced, or objectively, e.g., whether the Covered 


Official felt influenced or a reasonable Covered Official should have felt influenced.  


Some governmental entities don’t want to leave it up to the subjective discretion of the 







10 
 


Covered Official.  The way to make the standard more objective is to insert thresholds 


which trigger disclosure requirements, or forbidding the Covered Official to participate in 


the issue triggering the ethical concern. 


 The 1999 Ethics Ordinance set the threshold for gifts, etc., to the Covered Official 


or his/her immediate family as greater than $100.  It doesn’t matter what the item is, if its 


value is greater than $100, the Covered Official must disclose the gift, etc., in advance of 


any discussion involving the person or entity who provided the gift.  If the value received 


is greater than $500, the Covered Official is presumed to be influenced by the gift, etc., and 


would therefore by prohibited from participating in the discussion or voting on the action 


from the person or entity who provided the item. 


 Additionally, business relationships were recognized as being problematic between 


the Covered Official and an entity seeking to do business with the County.  The presence 


of the business relationship demands disclosure, but the threshold of the Covered Official 


having to refrain from participating or voting on a matter involving the business entity is 


$6,000 annually.  The reasoning is that any relationship below that would be de minimis 


and should carry no influence over the Covered Official. Ed.] 


 


[From Current Ethics Ordinance] 


(a) Interest in contract or transaction. No county official having the power or duty 


to perform an official act or action related to a contract or transaction which is or may be the 


subject of an official act or action of the county shall; 


(1) Have or thereafter acquire an interest in such contract or transaction; or 


(2) Have an interest in any business entity involved in such contract or 







11 
 


transactions; or 


(3) Have solicited or accepted present or future employment with a person or 


business entity involved in such contract or transaction; or 


(4) Have solicited or accepted a present or future gift, favor, service, or thing of 


value from a person involved in such contract or transaction, except as provided in Sectoin 


2-210 below. 


 


[On its face, there appears to be a prohibition aimed at preventing a County 


Official from having any type of business relationship with an entity seeking to do 


business with the County; however, recognize that an exception is provided in Section 


2-210. Ed.] 


 


(b) Pre-acquisition of interest. No county official shall acquire an interest in a 


contract or transaction which is or may be the subject of an official act or action of the county at a 


time when the county official believes or has reason to believe that such contract or transaction 


will be directly or indirectly affected by an official act or action of the county. 


(c) Disclosure of information. No county official shall without proper legal 


authorization disclose confidential information concerning the property, government, or affairs of 


the county, or use such information to advance the financial or other private interest of himself or 


others. 


 


[An example of the type of regulation that probably should not be part of your 


Ethics Ordinance.  If the information is truly confidential, disclosure of the information 







12 
 


would breach some duty.  The 1999 Ethics Ordinance prohibited the Covered Official 


from profiting from confidential information.  While this, too, may be illegal, it is not as 


clear cut as the disclosure of confidential information. Ed.] 


 


(d) No county official shall waive the attorney-client privilege or disclose any 


documents protected by the attorney-client privilege without the consent of the majority of the 


board of commissioners. 


 


[Another example of behavior which could not occur even without this language. 


Ed.] 


 


(e) No county official shall disclose to others matters discussed in executive session of 


any board of commission without the consent of the majority of the board of commissioners or 


until after the minutes of the meeting is required to be released as a matter of law. 


 


[Generally, executive session minutes will never be released.  Therefore, a duty of 


confidentiality exists among and between the elected officials.  If the elected officials want 


to put this additional burden on themselves, they are free to do so. Ed.] 


 


(f) Incompatible service. No county official shall engage in or accept private 


employment or render service for any private entity, when such employment or service is 


incompatible with the proper discharge of his official duties or would tend to impair his 


independence of judgment or action in the performance of his official duties, unless otherwise 







13 
 


permitted by law and unless disclosure is made as provided in this policy. 


(g) Appearance. No county official shall appear on behalf of any private person other 


than himself, his spouse or minor children, before any county agency, authority or board.  


However, a member of the board of commissioners may appear before such groups on behalf of his 


constituents in the course of his duties as a representative of the electorate or in the performance of 


public or civic obligations. 


 


[I understand the prohibition.  I do not understand the exception. Ed.] 


 


(h) Public property. No county official shall request or permit the unauthorized 


use of county-owned vehicles, equipment, materials or property for personal convenience or 


profit. 


(i) Special treatment. No county official shall grant any special consideration, 


treatment or advantage to any citizen beyond that which is available to every other citizen in the 


same or similar circumstances. 


(j) Later case interest. No county official shall, after termination of service or 


employment with the county, accept remuneration of any kind for any appearance before any 


board, commission, committee, agency or authority of the county on behalf of any adverse party in 


relation to any case, proceeding, or application in which he personally participated during the 


period of his service or employment, which was under his active consideration during the period of 


his service or employment, or as to which he could have acquired knowledge or information 


during the period of his service or employment. 


 







14 
 


[The way to make this enforceable is to penalize the party who seeks to come before 


some board or commission of the County.  The prohibition should be not allowing any 


petitioner to come before the County being represented by or having a relationship with a 


former County Official.  A good practice would be to place some sort of time limit on this 


prohibition.  If the purpose of this provision is to keep a former County Official from 


influencing current County Officials, the passage of time will impair the former County 


Official’s ability to influence. Ed.] 


 


(k) Political recrimination. No county official, whether elected or appointed, 


shall promise an appointment or threaten the dismissal from any county position as a reward or 


punishment for any political activity. 


 


[Problematic in its structure.  Politics aside, you could hire or dismiss without 


promising or threatening.  The prohibited act is the promising or threatening.  This type 


of activity will generally be governed by the Employee Handbook and the Progressive 


Discipline Policy. Ed.] 


 


(l) Withholding of information. No county official shall knowingly withhold any 


information which would impair the proper decision making of any of the county board, 


authorities, agency or commissions. 


 


[Identifying the information and who sets the standard of whether or not the 


applicable board’s decision-making as been impaired is a challenge. Ed.] 







15 
 


 


(m) Payment of debts. All county officials shall settle all accounts between them 


and the county, including the payment of taxes, in a timely fashion. 


Sec. 2-210. Exceptions. 


(a) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if the interest of a 


county official in a person or business entity is a contractual obligation of less than $500.00 which 


has not been preceded by any other obligation, discharged or existing, between the parties, and 


which is not the first in a series of two or more loans or debts which either of the parties is under 


any obligation to make or incur. 


(b) The following shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy: 


(1) Legitimate salary, benefits, fees, commissions, or expenses associated with 


an official’s non-public business; 


 


[What if the business is seeking to do business with the County? Ed.] 


 


(2) An award, plaque, certificate, memento, or similar item given in recognition 


of the official’s civic, charitable, political, professional, or public service; 


(3) Food, beverages, and registration at group events to which all similarly 


situated officials are invited; 


(4) Actual and reasonable expenses for food, beverages, travel, lodging, and 


registration for a meeting which are provided to an official so that he or she may participate 


or speak at the meeting; 


(5) A commercially reasonable loan made in the ordinary course of business; 







16 
 


(6) Any gift with a total value less than $100.00 in any calendar year; 


(7) Promotional items generally distributed to public officials generally; 


(8) A gift from a member of the public official’s immediate family; or 


(9) Food, beverage, or expenses afforded public officials, and members of their 


immediate families, or others that are associated with normal and customary business or 


social functions or activities. 


(c) It shall not be deemed a violation of the standards of this policy if a county official, 


in his capacity as such official, participates in the making of a contract even if such official has a 


private pecuniary interest or performs in regard to that contract some function requiring the 


exercise of discretion on his part, if: 


(1) The contract is awarded through a process of public notice and competitive 


bidding; or 


(2) The board of commissioners at regular meeting, after determining that it is 


in the best interest of the county to do so, authorizes the participation. 


Sec. 2-211. Disclosure of interest in legislative action. 


(a) Any member of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia who has 


financial or personal interest in any proposed legislation before the commission shall immediately 


disclose on the record the nature and extent of such interest. 


(b) Any other official who has a financial or personal interest in any proposed 


legislative action of the board of commissioners, and who participates in discussion with or gives 


an official opinion or recommendation to the commission, shall disclose on the record the nature 


and extent of such interest. 


 







17 
 


[It is not clear who this “other official” would be.  The Ethics Ordinance is 


applicable only to County Officials. Ed.]  


 


Sec. 2-212. Abstentions. 


 A county official who has an interest that he has reason to believe may be affected by an 


official act or action shall abstain from any participation in the same. 


  


[The current Ethics Ordinance has not shifted to a subjective standard.  Having an 


interest is not the determinative factor.  The determinative factor is whether the County 


Official believes the interest may be affected by an official act.  Otherwise, the County 


Official is free to participate. Ed.] 


 


[From 1999 Ethics Ordinance] 


Sec. 2-210.  Procedure for alleged violations. 


A. Alleged violations of this Code of Ethics must be submitted via written, sworn 


complaint to the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County.  Consistent with the 


Open Meetings Laws, the Board of Commissioners shall review all complaints against covered 


officials and employees except those complaints filed against a member of the Board of 


Commissioners.  A majority of the full Board of Commissioners must agree that a sufficient basis 


has been given to warrant a public hearing.  Certain violations alleged against employees may be 


referred through the proper channels within the Employee Handbook=s disciplinary procedures. 


 


[Although the procedures listed in the 1999 Ethics Ordinance are minimal, the 







18 
 


Ethics Ordinance, however constructed, should provide adequate due process safeguards.  


Anyone who has a complaint filed against them should receive adequate notice of the 


charge made against him/her.  The Covered Official who is alleged to have violated the 


Ethics Ordinance should be provided an opportunity to be heard. Ed.] 


 


B. The Board of Commissioners shall conduct the public hearing to determine 


whether, based upon clear and convincing evidence, the covered official or employee violated the 


Code of Ethics.  Covered officials and employees are subject to the following penalties and action 


for violations of this Code of Ethics: 


(1) Written reprimand or public censure; 


(2) Recovery of value transferred or received by the County; 


(3) Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer;  


(4) A monetary fine not to exceed $1,000.00; and 


(5) Demotion or termination. 


 


[The new Ethics Ordinance should probably not carry a monetary fine for 


violation.  There may not be a sufficient authority basis to apply a monetary fine.  One of 


the areas in the law that is not clear; having a fine could subject the ordinance to 


challenge. Ed.] 


 


C. If a complaint is received by the Clerk of the Board of Commissioners which 


alleges a violation of the Code of Ethics by a member of the Board of Commissioners, an 


independent review board will be formed if the complaint alleges sufficient facts which, if proven 







19 
 


to be true, would be a violation of the Code of Ethics.  The County Attorney of any County within 


the Griffin Judicial Circuit, except the County Attorney for Fayette County, shall make the 


determination of whether or not a review board should be impaneled.  If a review board is needed, 


three (3) County Attorneys within reasonably close geographical proximity to the County will be 


requested to conduct a public hearing based upon the complaint.  A majority vote, based on clear 


and convincing evidence, will determine the existence of a violation. 


 


[The 1999 Ethics Ordinance utilized the Board of Commissioners as its Ethics 


Board for all Covered Officials except for members of the Board of Commissioners.  


Where a complaint is filed against a Board member, a panel of County Attorneys is 


impaneled to conduct the hearing.  The initial determination for any complaint filed is 


whether the complaint states facts sufficient to go forward.  Only when that determination 


is made does the complaint go forward to a hearing.  Procedures should be in place so 


that this threshold determination can be made whether the Covered Official involved is a 


Board member or a Covered Official other than a Board member. 


Having the Board of Commissioners conduct the hearing on Covered Officials 


other than Board members was a good fit because members of the Board of Commissioners 


have experience in the conduct of public hearings.  Additionally, the complaint or the 


defense of the complaint is not County-driven.  Neither of the positions would be 


advocated by the County which frees up the County Attorney to advise the Board on 


hearing procedures, generally, should it be needed. 


Very minimal procedures were provided in the 1999 Ethics Ordinance for two 


reasons: 1. The Board of Commissioners had sufficient experience in conducting public 







20 
 


hearings; and 2. If a member of the Board of Commissioners was the focus of an ethics 


complaint, a panel of County Attorneys would be able to conduct an adequate public 


hearing with minimal procedures provided. 


Another option is for another body to hear complaints against Covered Officials.  


If that body is made up of residents with no background in conducting public hearings, 


there should be some level of training provided to ensure the hearing is adequately 


conducted.  The office of County Attorney would probably be able to assist this body if 


need be, unless the complaint was made against a member of the Board of Commissioners, 


which would probably be the time when the body would need assistance the most. 


These bodies are made up any number of ways and have varying numbers of 


members.  Some jurisdictions will populate a pool of potential Ethics Board members and 


when a complaint is filed, draw from the pool to form the Ethics Board on an as-needed 


basis.  Other jurisdictions will select members to serve on an Ethics Board for defined 


terms of service.  Some jurisdictions will allow the Complainant to select a member, the 


Covered Official to select a member and the two selected members to select a third 


member. 


There is no magic in the way a board is set up, what is critical is that adequate 


education and training be provided so that however the Ethics Board is comprise the 


Board will adequately provide a hearing adequately recognizing the rights of the parties 


involved. 


Some jurisdictions use attorneys to sit as the Ethics Board and hear complaints.  


This is an option and would reduce the need for additional training.  If this route is 


chosen, you need to decide whether this Board will be a standing body, or be constituted 







21 
 


only in the event an ethics charge has been filed. Ed.] 


 


[From Current Ethics Ordinance] 


Sec. 2-213. Enforcement and administration. 


(a) Constituting the board; chairman. 


(1) The board of ethics of the county is hereby created and authorized by the 


Board of commissioners. 


(2) The board of ethics of the county shall be composed of three (3) residents of 


the county to be appointed as provided herein.  Each member of the board of ethics shall 


have been a resident of the county for at least one year immediately preceding the date of 


taking office and shall remain a resident of the county while serving as a member of the 


board of ethics.  No person shall serve as a member of the board of ethics if the person has, 


or has had within the preceding one year period, any interest in any contract, transaction, or 


official action of the county. 


(3) The members of the board of commissioners may nominate persons to serve 


on the board of ethics, who shall be appointed by a majority vote of the board of 


commissioners.  These individuals must agree to undergo a criminal background check 


conducted by the County Marshal prior to designation, and/or redesignation, the results of 


which will be forwarded to the board of commissioners.  These individuals should be 


available to be called upon for their term of office.  At the end of each term, the board of 


commissioner shall appoint eligible residents to fill the board.  Current members can be 


reappointed and there shall be no term limits for the members.  If a member of the board of 


ethics does not finish their term, the remainder of the term shall be filled through an 







22 
 


appointment by the board of commissioners. 


(4) Alternates. In addition to the members of the board, the board of 


commissioners shall appoint two alternate members.  These alternates shall be appointed 


in the same manner as members of the board of ethics. 


(5) If any member of the board of ethics has a conflict of interest in any matter 


before the board, the remaining two members of the board of ethics shall select an alternate 


to serve for that matter from the two alternative members appointed by the board of 


commissioners. 


(6) The board shall select a chairman at the beginning of each matter to be 


heard. 


(7) Term of Office. The term of office for each member of the board of 


ethics and alternates shall be for three (3) years; however, in the appointment of the first 


board, one (1) member and one (1) alternate shall be appointed for three (3) years; one (1) 


member and one (1) alternate for two (2) years and one (1) member for one (1) year.  It is 


the intent of this section that their terms be staggered.  Any vacancy in the membership 


shall be filled for the unexpired term in the same manner as the initial appointment. 


(b) Duties of board. The board of ethics shall have the following duties and 


powers: 


(1) To administer the ethics ordinance; 


(2) To receive, review, process, make determinations on, and hear complaints 


of violations of standards required by this chapter.  The board is not designed to be an 


oversight board or to perform investigations; 


 







23 
 


[This inability to perform investigations conflicts with later provisions within the 


Current Ethics Ordinance. Ed.] 


 


(3) To make such response to a complaint as it deems necessary to determine 


whether any person has violated any provisions of this chapter; 


(4) To hold such hearings and make such inquiries as deemed necessary to 


investigate and rule upon complaints; and 


(5) To report its findings and actions to the board of commissioners. 


(c) Administration. 


(1) Complaints. 


a. All complaints of ethical violations must be filed with the county 


clerk, in writing, signed by the complainant, no later than 90 days after the alleged 


act occurred unless the complainant, by exercising reasonable diligence, failed to 


discover the alleged ethical violation within such 90 day period.  In such a case, 


the complainant must file a written complaint with the county clerk no later than 90 


days after the complainant discovered the alleged violation.  In all such cases 


brought after 90 days from the date of the alleged ethical violation, the complainant 


bears the burden of convincing the board of the true date complainant learned of the 


alleged violation. 


b. In no event shall an ethical charge be filed with the county clerk 


more than two years from the date of the alleged ethical violation. 


 


[A 2-year window may be longer than is needed. Ed.] 







24 
 


c. The complainant may withdraw the complaint at any time in 


writing. 


(2) Pay and staff support. 


a. The members of the board of ethics shall serve without 


compensation.  The governing authority of the county shall provide meeting space 


for the board of ethics.  Subject to budgetary procedures and requirements of the 


county, the county shall provide the board of ethics with such supplies and 


equipment as may be reasonably necessary for it to perform its duties and 


responsibilities. 


b. The county clerk shall serve as the recording secretary to the board 


and shall provide such administrative services to the board as may be necessary. 


c. Subject to budgetary procedures and requirements of the county, the 


county shall provide the board of ethics with such legal staffing as may be 


reasonably necessary for it to perform its duties and responsibilities by an attorney 


who does not serve as the County Attorney. 


(3) Action by the board. Within 30 days of receipt of a complaint from the 


county clerk, the board may perform one or more of the following: 


a. Upon receipt of a complaint in proper form, review the complaint to 


determine whether the complaint is unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or 


fails to state facts sufficient to invoke disciplinary jurisdiction.  The board of 


ethics shall be empowered to collect evidence and information concerning any 


complaint and to add the findings and results of its investigation to the file 


containing such complaint; 







25 
 


b. Upon completion of its review and/or investigation of a complaint, 


the board at a public meeting may dismiss those complaints which are unjustified, 


frivolous, patently unfounded or which fail to state facts sufficient to invoke 


disciplinary jurisdiction.  Provided, however, that a rejection of such complaint by 


the board of ethics shall not deprive the complaining party of any action he/she 


might otherwise have at law or in equity against the respondent.  A rejection shall 


prevent refilling of a complaint regarding the same subject(s) and alleged 


perpetrator(s) for the same offense; 


c. Admonish, formally reprimand, publicly censure, any complaining 


party that files an unjustified, frivolous, patently unfounded or factually insufficient 


complaint; 


d. Forward an order to the board of commissioners; or 


e. Hold a public hearing within 60 days after the complaint was 


received. 


(4) Parties rights. At any hearing held by the board of ethics, the official who is 


the subject of a complaint shall have the right to written notice of the allegations at least ten 


business days before a hearing, to be represented by counsel, to hear and examine the 


evidence and witnesses and to present evidence and witnesses in opposition or in 


extenuation according to the procedures contained in subparagraph (6). 


(5) Advisory opinions. When any official has a doubt regarding the 


applicability of any provision of this chapter to a particular situation, or regarding the 


definition of its terms, he may apply in writing or verbally during a public meeting to the 


county attorney for an advisory opinion.  The advisory opinion shall be written unless it is 







26 
 


given verbally during a public meeting, and may be provided directly to the requestor of 


such opinion.  Nothing in this chapter shall be construed to prohibit a request for an 


informal opinion by any public official from the county attorney regarding a potential 


conflict of interest.  Neither a request for an informal opinion, nor the making of a 


statement concerning a potential conflict of interest made by a member of the governing 


body in the course of abstaining from voting shall create a presumption or inference that a 


public servant actually has a personal interest in the matter about which the opinion was 


requested. 


 


[Omitting the County Attorney from the process based upon language in a previous 


section, it appears this section seeks to involve the County Attorney by way of the issuance 


of an “informal opinion”.  The County Attorney should be part of this, or not. If deemed to 


be part of the process, there should be some recognition that the County Attorney would 


not be advising the Ethics Board where a member of the Board of Commissioners is 


accused of an ethics violation. Ed.] 


 


[Balance of this section sets out procedures for hearings and appeals.] 


Sec. 2-214. Penalties. 


County officials are subject to the following penalties and action for breach of ethics: 


(1) Written warning or reprimand; 


(2) Cancellation of the contract or rejection of the bid or offer; 


(3) Recovery of the value transferred or received; and/or 


(4) Debarment or suspension from award of county contract for a period of up 







27 
 


to three years. 


Sec. 2-215. Compliance with applicable laws. 


 No officer or official shall engage in any activity or transaction that is prohibited by any 


law, now existing or hereafter enacted, which is applicable to him or her by virtue of his or her 


office. 


 


II. REPEAL OF CONFLICTING ORDINANCES. This ordinance is intended as the 


Code of Ethics of Fayette County, and all other ordinances in existence which conflict with the 


provisions of this ordinance, including but not limited to the Code of Ethics of 2011, are hereby 


repealed. 


 


III.  EFFECTIVE DATE.  This ordinance shall become effective on the date of its adoption 


by the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County. 


SO ENACTED this ____ day of ________, 2013. 





		Legal- Draft Ethics Ordinance Agenda Request File

		Legal- Draft Ethics Ordinance Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


Planning & Zoning Pete Frisina or Dennis Dutton


Consideration of the City of Peachtree City's request to annex four (4) properties totaling 7.398 acres located between State Route 54 


West and Sumner Road, and to rezone said properties from C-C Conditional  (Community- Commercial) and O-I (Office-Institutional) to 


O-I (Office-Institutional).


The City of Peachtree City has notified Fayette County of an application to annex four (4) properties totalling 7.398 acres located 


between SR 54 West and Sumner Road. The City has also notified the County of its intention to rezone the property from C-C 


Conditional  (Community- Commercial) and  O-I (Office-Institutional) to O-I (Office-Institutional). 


 


The county's governing authority may either  "object" to the annexation, by majority vote, or choose not to object to the annexation 


request. 


 


Per Section 36-36-113 of the Georgia Code, Fayette County must deliver their objection to the annexation by certified mail or statutory 


overnight delivery not later than the end of the thirtieth calendar day following receipt of the notice. The deadline for delivery of an 


objection is March 29, 2013. 


 


Staff has reviewed the application and finds no grounds for a bona-fide land use objection.


Approval of the City of Peachtree City's request to annex four (4) properties totalling 7.398 acres located between State Route 54 West 


and Sumner Road, and to rezone said properties from C-C Conditional  (Community- Commercial) and O-I (Office-Institutional) to O-I 


(Office-Institutional).


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013





















































































































































































		Planning and Zoning- Sumner Annexation Agenda Request File

		Planning and Zoning- Sumner Annexation Backup

		Planning and Zoning- Peachtree City Annexation Backup-1

		PTC SR 54 & Sumner Annex Staff Backup












COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Proposal P869- Dam Engineering Services, to Walden, Ashworth & Associates, Inc. for 


Margaret Phillips Lake Dam, in an amount not to exceed $34,000, and authorization for the County Administrator to sign the contract and 


related documents.


See attached memorandum for justification for award and background on the project need. 


 


Fayette County has been directed by the Safe Dam Program to bring Category 1 dams into compliance.  This recommendation concerns 


only the Margaret Phillips Lake Dam. 


 


A Request for Proposals was prepared by the Engineering Department and advertised through the Purchasing Department.  Additionally, 


notices of the RFP was sent to thirty (30) companies who are identified as Engineers of Record.  Six companies responded to the RFP, 


of which one response was considered incomplete and removed from consideration.  The remaining five companies were evaluated by 


Road and Public Works staff on a number of criteria.  The recommendation of Walden, Ashworth & Associates, Inc. was decided on the 


proposed scope, references, and cost.  Attachment 3 provides additional details on each respondent to the RFP. 


   


The Request for Proposals and associated cost estimates are based on design for a dam breech (i.e.., removal).  Additional fees may be 


incurred if a repair or replacement option is selected in lieu of a breech.  


Approval of staff's recommendation to award Proposal P869- Dam Engineering Services, to Walden, Ashworth & Associates, Inc. for 


Margaret Phillips Lake Dam, in an amount not to exceed $34,000, and authorization for the County Administrator to sign the contract and 


related documents.


This work is being performed under directive by the Safe Dams Program.  Funding is requested from the County's 375 Fund - Capital 


Improvement Projects contingency to fund this project via a budget amendment.  


No


Yes


Yes


Yes Yes


Recommended award is based on a base fee of $30,000 for Phillips plus $4,000 for additional surveying and modeling between 


Longview Road and SR 314.  The fees per task, as provided in proposal, represent not-to-exceed limits.  Engineering services include 


assessment of options for dam repair, replacement or removal.  Further direction from the Board will be required to establish the desired 


course of action. 


ConsentThursday, May 23, 2013







 


_______________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________________ 


Mailing Address:  140 Stonewall Avenue West                                              Main Phone:  770-460-5730                                          Web Site:  www.fayettecounty ga.gov 


 


TO:  Fayette County Board of Commissioners 


 


FROM:  Phil Mallon, Public Works 


 


Cc:   Ted Burgess, Purchasing 


 


DATE:  May 15, 2013 


 


RE:  Award of Proposal P869 – Dam Engineering Services for Phillips Dam 


 


In December 2012, Fayette County Public Works requested proposals from Professional Engineers to 


address compliance issues associated with three dams under the jurisdiction of the Georgia Department 


of Natural Resources, Environmental Protection Division, Safe Dam Program.  Each of the three 


structures is at least partially within Fayette County right-of-way and two are Category 1 structures.   


Per the Safe Dam Program there are four options for the Category 1 structures: 


 Upgrade the dam; 


 Breach the dam; 


 Modify the dam to remove the downstream flood risk; and 


 Remove or modify the downstream structure(s) at risk. 


Fayette County has directive from the Safe Dam Program requiring action to bring the Category 1 


structures into compliance by one of above-referenced four options.  The first step in this process is to 


retain an “Engineer of Record” (i.e., an Engineer approved by the Safe Dam Program for work on 


Category 1 dams) for design work, including preparation of an Engineering Report.   


This memo supports award of P869 for the Phillips Dam only.  Additional input from the Board of 


Commissioners is required prior to award of engineering services for the other dams.  The Engineer of 


Record will work with Fayette County to evaluate the four options for Phillips dam and present a 


recommendation to the Board of Commissioners.   


Proposal Solicitation and Evaluation 


A Request for Proposals was prepared by the Engineering Department and advertised by Purchasing thru 


the standard practices.  In addition, Purchasing sent notices of the RFP to 30 companies who are 


identified as Engineers of Record.   


Six companies responded to the RFP, of which one proposal was considered incomplete and removed 


from consideration.  Of the five proposals deemed complete, they were compared using the evaluation 


criteria identified in the RFP: scope of services, staff qualification, cost and references.  All of the five 


proposals offered knowledgeable and experienced staff, therefore the recommendation was ultimately 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 1







 
 


decided on proposed scope, references and cost.  The proposals were evaluated, independently, by Road 


and Public Works and each reviewer prepared a tabular score using these criteria. 


The cost estimates for the work varied considerably, in some cases by more than a factor of three.  One 


reason for this variation is that the scope was intentionally loose in order to allow the Consultants to 


offer approaches they felt most appropriate for the work.   


 


Recommendation 


It is staff’s recommendation that award of P869 be given to Walden, Ashorth & Associates, Inc. for the 


Margaret Phillips Lake Dam with not-to-exceed costs of 34,000 each.  (Walden Ashworth would be the 


recommended award if action is deemed appropriate for the Kozisek Dam as well.)   


The Walden Ashworth proposal demonstrates a clear understanding of Fayette’s needs, provides a 


logical and clear order of tasks, conveys an adequate quality control/quality assurance process for the 


production of documents, and offers a reasonable schedule.  Of particular note in their proposal was the 


assurance that senior staff would be directly involved in the project implementation.  The proposal also 


demonstrates significant and relevant experience with the Safe Dam Program.   


From a cost perspective, Walden Ashworth offered the lowest fee at $34,000.  The next lowest is 


$41,660.  Staff did not see advantages of the next higher-cost proposal (or others) that justified the 


additional costs.   


On March 27, 2013, I contacted Mr. Martin Walden of Walden Ashworth to confirm that the proposal is 


still valid given the delay in award and that Walden Ashworth is agreeable to billing on a time and 


material basis and only for work items deemed necessary by the County as the project is developed.  For 


example, Task 5, Construction Phase Services, may be substantially reduced if the work is done by 


County crews.  In addition, Mr. Walden agreed that the task fees are “not-to-exceed” limits.   


 


Emerald Lake Dam 


The RFP for this project included three dams.  An award for Emerald Lake Dam is not recommended at 


this time for the following reasons: 


 Emerald Lake Dam has not been classified by the Safe Dam Program as a Category 1 structure.  


We expect it will be at some point in the future but as of now there is no imperative to make 


improvements at this structure. 


 The scope of work for Emerald Lake Dam is substantially different from the other two and 


warrants a separate evaluation.   


 The funding source for the Emerald Lake Dam is also different.  A separate, future award may 


help avoid confusion during the billing process.   


 The work associated with Emerald Lake Dam is more complicated and expensive than the 


existing Category 1 structures.  Staff feels it is in the County’s best interest to gain additional 


experience with the Safe Dam program before proceeding on this project.   


 No substantial discount was offered for award of all three projects, thus separate award does not 


result in a higher cost. 


Background Information on the Dams 


 







 
 


Below is some general information on each of the two dams associated with this proposal.  The Category 1 


classification indicates that the Safe Dams Program has concluded that a dam break or similar failure in the 


structure could result in loss of life or substantial property damage.   


 


Margaret Phillips Lake Dam 


State ID:   056-006-00821 


Classification:   Category 1 


Visual Inspection Report: November 2012 


Location:   The dam is mostly within Longview Road right-of-way.  Longview Road is 


located north of Fayetteville and runs parallel to SR 314.   


Staff Comment: Breech the dam.  Longview Road may be temporarily closed during construction 


and further evaluation is needed to determine if the benefit of maintaining 


Longview Road as a through-road justifies the cost of rebuilding the road with a 


stream crossing.  During the design process, options for Longview Road shall be 


presented to the County for input prior to final design.     


Kozisek Lake Dam (NOT RECOMMENDED AT THIS TIME) 


State ID:   056-018-00910 


Classification:   Category 1 


Visual Inspection Report: April 2012 


Location:   The dam is partially within Neely Road right-of-way.  Neely Road intersects with 


Longview Road and the dam is approximately 1,500 feet upstream of the 


Margaret Phillips Lake Dam.   


Staff Comment: Breech the dam.  Neely Road may be temporarily closed during construction but 


the final design should address any repairs or modifications needed to road for its 


continued operation in the future.  Existing cross drains should be used under 


Neely Road where possible to minimize project costs.   


 


 







 
 
 
 
To:    Steve Rapson 
 
From:    Ted L. Burgess 
 
Date:    May 15, 2013 
 
Subject:  Engineering Services for Margaret Phillips Dam 
 
The Purchasing Department released Request for Proposals #869 to procure the services of 
professional engineers.  The need is to address compliance with requirements of the Georgia 
Department of Natural Resources, Environmental Protection Division, Safe Dam Program.  The 
Department direct‐mailed notice to 30 qualified companies.  In addition, invitations were extended via 
the Fayette News, the county website, Georgia Local Government Access Marketplace 
(www.glga.org), and Channel 23. 
 
Six companies submitted proposals.  As stated in Public Works’ document, one proposal was 
incomplete, leaving five for consideration (please see attachment).  An Evaluation Committee 
composed of Public Works and the Road Department conducted an evaluation of the proposals, based 
70% on technical merit and 30% on price, as stipulated in the Request for Proposals.  Walden, 
Ashworth & Associates, Inc received the best score.  Public Works recommends that firm for the 
compliance work on Margaret Phillips Dam, at a not‐to‐exceed cost of $34,000.  I concur with their 
recommendation. 
 
Attachment 



http://www.glga.org/

fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 2







RESPONDENT NAME:


MARGARET 
PHILLIPS LAKE 


DAM
KOZISEK 


LAKE DAM     
EMERALD LAKE 


DAM            TOTAL


DISCOUNT IF 
AWARDED TWO 


OR MORE


1. GOLDER ASSOCIATES INC. $158,980.50 $151,400.50 $118,532.50 $428,913.50 NONE


2. KIMLEY-HORN AND ASSOCIATES, INC. $89,800.00 $76,400.00 $94,800.00 $261,000.00
$4,000 (1)               


$6,100 (2)


3. RILEY PARK HAYDEN & ASSOCIATES, INC. $41,660.00 $40,230.00 $36,570.00 $118,460.00 $7,575.00


4.
SADLER ASSOCIATES INC., CIVIL ENGINEERING & 
LAND SURVEYING Disqualified Disqualified Disqualified Disqualified Disqualified


5. SCHNABEL DAM ENGINEERING, INC. $95,500.00 $80,000.00 $151,000.00 $326,500.00 N/A


6. WALDEN, ASHWORTH & ASSOCIATES, INC. $34,000.00* $34,000.00 $111,000.00 $179,000.00 $5,000.00


*Includes $4,000 for data gathering & modeling between Lonview Road and SR 314.


(1) Applies to Margaret Phillips Lake Dam & Kozisek Lane Dam only.
(2) Additional discount assumes construction operations for Kozisek & Margaret Phillips Lake dams occur simultaneously.


PROPOSAL NUMBER: _____           #P869                          


PROPOSAL NAME:      DAM ENGINEERING SERVICES _



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 3





		Public Works- P869 Dam Services Phillips Agenda Request File

		Public Works- P869 Dam Services Phillips Backup

		mo Recomendation of Award for P869 5-15-13

		Public Works- P869 Dam Services Phillips Backup

		Phillips Dam - Purchasing Backup 1

		Phillips Dam - Purchasing Backup 2

		Sheet1
















MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


May 9, 2013


 7:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette


County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then


“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single


topic can be heard.


                       


The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on May 9, 2013 at 7:00 p.m. in the


Public Meeting Room of the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman


Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow


Allen McCarty


Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator


Floyd Jones, County Clerk


Dennis Davenport, Interim County Attorney
_______________________________________________________________________________________________


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Chairman Brown called the May 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting to order at 7:01 p.m.


Commissioner Barlow introduced Rabbi Yossi Lew, the spiritual leader and director of the Chabad of Peachtree City that


was established in 2011.  He stated that Rabbi Lew was accompanied by congregants of B’nai Israel.  He asked Rabbi


Lew to offer the invocation, and Rabbi Lew did so.


Chairman Brown led the audience in the Pledge of Allegiance.


Acceptance of Agenda


Commissioner Ognio moved to accept the Agenda as published.  Commissioners Oddo and Barlow seconded the


motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.







Minutes
May 9, 2013
Page Number 2


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


1. Proclamation to be presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau recognizing May 14, 2013 as Farmer
Appreciation Day.


Chairman Brown read the proclamation which was presented to the Fayette County Farm Bureau and which


recognized May 14, 2013 as Farmer Appreciation Day.  Mr. Rick Minter and Ms. Leah Blessitt spoke about the


work and contributions made by farmers in the Fayette Community.  A copy of the request, identified as


“Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


PUBLIC HEARING:


PUBLIC COMMENT:


David Brill: Mr. Brill, President of the North Fayette Community Association, reported that there would be a meeting on


May 18 at Liberty Baptist Church.  He said everyone was welcome to attend; that the Library would give a presentation


on what it has available, along with presentations from “other government people”.


Greg Detwiler: Mr. Detwiler reported that on Friday, June 21, the Southern Conservation Trust would have their annual


Farm Table event.


CONSENT AGENDA:


Commissioner Oddo moved to approve the Consent Agenda as presented.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.


Benjamin Grant: Mr. Grant said he was a current Fayette County employee, and he asked about the proposed changes


to the Defined Benefit Plan.  Specifically, Mr. Grant said his question involved the pre-retirement death benefit, and he


asked that if he was vested in the program and that if he died, would the changes cut out the benefit to his spouse and


children.


County Administrator Steve Rapson replied that the short answer to the question was “no”, and he explained that the


death benefit was if the employee was actually, currently retired and was receiving the benefit, then that benefit would


be payable.  Mr. Rapson replied that Mr. Grant would be covered under his life insurance policy as an active employee.


The motion to approve the Consent Agenda passed unanimously.


2.2. Approval of Defined Benefit Plan amendments as outlined during the April 5, 2013 Retreat. A copy of
the request, identified as “Attachment 2", follows these minutes and is made an official part hereof.


3. Approval of staff’s request recommendation to reduce the County’s participation in the Georgia
Municipal Association Lease Pool Program, including the outstanding amount of Certificates of
Participation and the associated interest-rate swap agreement by the amount of the account balance
determined to be “excess funds”.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 3", follows these
minutes and is made an official part hereof.







Minutes
May 9, 2013
Page Number 3


4. Approval of staff’s request to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement with the City of Fayetteville,
allowing for the County to resurface Beauregard Boulevard, Bradford Square, Creekside Trail, Hillsdale
Drive, and North Park Drive within the City of Fayetteville, and authorization for the Chairman to execute
said agreement.  A copy of the request and Intergovernmental Agreement, identified as “Attachment
4", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


5. Approval of staff’s recommendation to make application to the Hazardous Waste Trust Fund (HWTS)
for reimbursement of groundwater monitoring expenses associated with Monitored Natural Attenuation
(MNA) at the Southside Landfill, and approval for the Chairman to sign Resolution 2013-12 granting staff
authorization to make application for reimbursement.  A copy of the request and Resolution 2013-12,
identified as “Attachment 5", follow these minutes and are made an official part hereof.


6. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to allow the City of Fayetteville to use a waterline
easement on Highway 85 to service 1391 Highway 85 with sewer, with the stipulation that the Water
System will review the plans, will conduct an on-site inspection, and will be given as-built drawings.
A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 6", follows these minutes and is made an official part
hereof.


OLD BUSINESS:


NEW BUSINESS:


7. Approval of the April 11, 2013 Board of Commissioners Minutes.  Commissioner McCarty was not
present for this meeting.


Commissioner Oddo moved to approved the Minutes of the April 11, 2013 Board of Commissioners meeting.


Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed 4-0-1 with


Commissioner McCarty abstaining from the vote.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


Announcement of Budget Meetings: County Administrator Steve Rapson reminded the Board and the public that the


County would have its budget presentation on Monday, May 13 at 6:00 p.m.  He explained that the presentation would


either be in the Commissioner’s Conference Room or the Public Meeting Room; depending on the number of people


who attend.  He said the first active workshop would be on Thursday, May 23 at 5:00 p.m.


Closing Redwine Road: County Administrator Steve Rapson reported that Redwine Road would be closed in order to


film Endless Love.  He said there would have intermittent traffic controls established on May 28.  He added that Redwine


Road would be closed on June 19 from about 5 a.m. until 7 p.m. for additional movie production on the road.  He said


the information concerning Redwine Road would be available from the county’s website.


Commissioner McCarty: County Administrator Steve Rapson said it was good to see Commissioner Allen McCarty


back on the Board.







Minutes
May 9, 2013
Page Number 4


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


Four Items for Executive Session: Interim County Attorney Dennis Davenport reported that two Real Estate matters,


one Personnel matter, and one review of the April 25, 2013 Executive Session Minutes were needed for Executive


Session.  


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


Commissioner McCarty: Commissioner McCarty mentioned that at one of the previous meetings he stated that he was


totally against these bypasses.  However, he said if he had not had four bypasses, he would not be in the meeting


tonight.  He thanked everyone for expressing their best wishes for him.


Commissioner Barlow: Commissioner Barlow said he was glad to see David Brill in the audience because he met with


Linda North earlier in the week.  He said Ms. North is the Georgia “Four District” Administrator for the Little League of


the United States.  He said she has “quite a responsibility”, but one of her goals is to create an urban little league that


reaches out to the minority community.  He said that in addition to meeting with Ms. North, he also met with two former


NFL players: Andrew Provence who played defensive tackle for the Atlanta Falcons and Willie Whitehead who retired


from the New Orleans Saints in 2008.  Commissioner Barlow reported that he had the privilege of working with both


gentlemen and that they would be attend the North Fayette County Homeowners’ Association on May 18, and that they


would work on getting youth sports started in Fayette County and particularly at Kenwood Park.


Commissioner Oddo: Commissioner Oddo pointed out that Mother’s Day would be coming up on Sunday.  He


mentioned that his mother was not here anymore, and while she lived for a long time it was not long enough.  He said


if anyone met her they would find she was an extraordinarily wonderful lady.  He said that while she had a form of


Alzheimer’s in the last years of her life, her family was very thankful that she never lost her personality.  He explained


that during all the frustrations that she had, she always had a warm “I love you” for everybody who came into her


presence.  He said he would paraphrase his mom to all of the wonderful mothers out there saying, “Moms, we love you”.


He pointed out that his mother-in-law from Columbia was also in the audience sitting next to his wife, Pily, and that she


did not understand a word that was being said.  He then spoke Spanish to his mother-in-law, and in doing so, he wished


her a Happy Mother’s Day.


Commissioner Ognio: Commissioner Ognio offered an early “Happy Mother’s Day” to all the mothers out there.  He


said he noticed a sign on the south side of the county that said the month of May was Motorcycle Awareness Month.


He thought that issue should be brought up, and he thought the people should be aware of all the motorcycle riders out


there.  He said they were easy to overlook, and he did not want to see anyone get hurt.


Chairman Brown: Chairman Brown stated it was great to have Commissioner McCarty back.  He pointed out that


Commissioner McCarty was still able to watch the meeting because he was the one who, free of charge, wired the room


and set up the system so that the meetings could be put on Channel 23.


EXECUTIVE SESSION:


Commissioner Barlow moved to go into Executive Session.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion


followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Board recessed into Executive Session at 7:22 p.m. and returned to Official Session at 7:40 p.m.







Minutes
May 9, 2013
Page Number 5


Return to Official Session and Authorization to Sign an Executive Session Affidavit: Commissioner Ognio moved


to exit Executive Session and for the Chairman to sign the affidavit.  Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No


discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.  A copy of the request, identified as “Attachment 7", follows these


minutes and is made an official part hereof.


Approval of the April 25, 2013 Executive Session Minutes: Chairman Brown moved to approve the April 25, 2013


Executive Session Minutes.  Commissioner Ognio seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed


unanimously.


Marshal’s Office:  Chairman Brown explained that in the process of balancing the County budget, the County is going


through a re-organizational process.  Chairman Brown moved that the Marshal’s Office staff be reduced from eleven


employees to three, and for the County to divert many of the current duties of the Marshal’s Office to other departments.


Commissioner Barlow seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


ADJOURNMENT:


Commissioner Barlow moved to adjourn.  Commissioner McCarty seconded the motion.  No discussion followed.  The


motion passed unanimously.


The Board of Commissioners adjourned the May 9, 2013 meeting at 7:41 p.m.


___________________________________                               __________________________________________


      Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,


Georgia, held on the 23rd day of May 2013.


___________________________________


        Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Public Works Phil Mallon


Discussion of the Kozisek Dam and Emerald Lake Dam.


Kozisek Dam is located along Neely Road and is classified by the Safe Dam Program as a Category I structure.  Fayette County has 


received letters from the Safe Dam Program requiring work to bring the structure into compliance. 


 


Emerald Lake Dam is located under Emerald Lake Drive and is classified by the Safe Dam Program as a Category II structure.  The dam 


is scheduled to be re-evaluated by Safe Dams and a reclassification to Category I status is possible.  Currently the dam has several 


items needing repair or maintenance.  The specific scope of work is not known at this time, however, and it will depend on if the Board 


wishes to bring the structure into compliance as a Category I or II structure.   


 


Additional information on each structure will be provided as part of staff's presentation. 


 


Note:  Both Kozisek and Emerald Lake Dams were included in Proposal 869 but were not included as part of the award since Board input 


is needed on overall direction before a recommendation can be made.  


Staff seeks direction from the Board on a preferred course of action for each structure.


No funding is requested at this time.


No


Yes No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


Note:  Legal has expressed concerns with ownership issues and / or the Environmental Protection Division's authority to request County 


action.


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell / Dennis Davenport


Consideration of the Interim County Attorney's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County, 


Georgia and the Town of Woolsey, Georgia regarding the Town of Woolsey's Soil Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control 


Ordinance.


The Town of Woolsey has recently adopted an ordinance entitled "Town of Woolsey Soil Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control 


Ordinance."  This ordinance provides for improved soil erosion and sedimentation control policies and practices, and for pollution control 


within the Town of Woolsey.   


 


The Town of Woolsey submitted the proposed Intergovernmental Agreement with an understanding that this document is needed for 


Fayette County to become the Town of Woolsey's Local Issuing Authority for Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Prevention 


Administration. 


 


Attachment 1 of the supporting documents (pages 1-4) is a copy of the proposed Intergovernmental Agreement between the Town of 


Woolsey and Fayette County.  Attachment 2 of the supporting documents (pages 5-25) is a copy of the Ordinance recently adopted by 


the Town of Woolsey.


Approval of the Interim County Attorney's recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement between Fayette County, 


Georgia and the Town of Woolsey, Georgia regarding the Town of Woolsey's Soil Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control 


Ordinance.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







STATE OF GEORGIA  


COUNTY OF FAYETTE  
  


INTERGOVERNMENTAL AGREEMENT  


BETWEEN FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND  


THE TOWN OF WOOLSEY, GEORGIA  


REGARDING THE TOWN OF WOOLSEY SOIL EROSION,  


SEDIMENTATION AND POLLUTION CONTROL ORDINANCE 
  
 
 THIS AGREEMENT is made and entered into on the date hereinafter set out, by 
and between FAYETTE COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of Georgia acting 
by and through its Board of Commissioners, hereinafter referred to as the “County”, and 
TOWN OF WOOLSEY, a Georgia Municipal Corporation, acting by and through its 
Mayor and Council, hereinafter referred to as the “Town,” and attests the following:  
 
 WHEREAS, The County and the Town share an obligation to protect their 
common watersheds from damaging effects of soil erosion, sedimentation and 
pollution, the Fayette County Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control 
Ordinance, representing in part, its fulfillment of such obligation; and 
 
 WHEREAS, The Town of Woolsey has adopted a like ordinance entitled, “Town 
of Woolsey Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance” and currently 
lacks infrastructure necessary for its implementation and enforcement; and 
 
 WHEREAS, County has infrastructure in place, which without appreciable 
additional burden to County, and within County’s normal schedule of fees and charges 
for like services, can accommodate the Town’s such infrastructural needs, to the 
common benefit of County’s residents both within and outside the Town, and is willing 
to do so; and  
 
 WHEREAS, County and the Town have authority to enter into this agreement 
pursuant to powers vested in each party by the General Assembly of the State of 
Georgia and the Constitution of the State of Georgia, including but not limited to Article 
9, Section 3, ¶ 1, 
 
 NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of mutual interests, the County and the 
Town hereby agree as follows:  
 


1.  
 
 The parties deem a cooperative utilization of existing infrastructure for 
administration and enforcement of their respective above-identified ordinances to be a 
cost-effective means of serving the general health and welfare of their respective 
constituents residing in the incorporated and unincorporated area of the County, and 
contract hereby to that end. 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 1







 
 


2.  
 
 County shall provide for Town within the Town of Woolsey limits, consistent with 
the level of service provided by County throughout the unincorporated area of Fayette 
County, all services required by or related to the implementation, administration, 
enforcement, oversight and supervision of compliance with provisions of the Town of 
Woolsey Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance as currently 
effective and hereafter amended, relating to fulfillment of requirements of Chapter 7 of 
Title 12, of the Official Code of Georgia Annotated, respecting control of soil erosion, 
sedimentation and pollution addressed in said Chapter 7. 
 


3.  
 
 Town hereby agrees and transfers to County, its rights to bill and collect fees and 
charges for County’s such services at the rates set by County’s usual schedule of fees 
and charges, as such schedule now exists, or as it may be hereafter amended, 
throughout the term of this agreement, for and on behalf of Town. 
 


4.  
 
 County has been provided a copy of the Town of Woolsey Soil Erosion, 
Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance currently effective, and will furnish 
County copies of all amendments thereto during the term of this agreement.  Town 
requests, and the parties agree, that actions taken by County shall be taken on Town’s 
behalf by officers, agents and employees of County, with like effect as if such persons 
were agents, officers, and employees of Town, except actions such Ordinance 
specifically requires to be taken by Town’s governing authority or elected officials.  
 


5.  
 
  The term of this agreement shall be for the period of twelve (12) months 
beginning on the date of execution. This agreement will automatically renew for 
successive twelve (12) month terms unless terminated pursuant to Paragraph 10 of this 
agreement.  
 


6.  
 
 The validity, interpretation and performance of this agreement with each of the 
obligations and duties set forth herein shall be governed by and interpreted under the 
laws of the State of Georgia.  
 


7.  
 
 This agreement constitutes the full and complete agreement between the Town 







and the County respecting its subject matter. All promises, representations, terms, 
conditions, agreements, or other understandings related to the subjects addressed in 
this agreement are set forth in this document.  
 


8.  
 
 This agreement constitutes the complete understanding between the parties in 
this matter. All previous agreements in conflict with this agreement are hereby repealed. 
No other agreement, statement or promise relating to the subject matter of this 
agreement that is not contained herein shall be valid or binding unless in writing and 
signed by the Town and the County.  
 


9.  
 
 If any portion of this agreement is found to be unenforceable, the remainder of 
the agreement shall continue in full force and effect and bind the parties hereto.  
 


10.  
 
 This agreement may be terminated by either party with or without cause by 
giving the other party written notice of termination at least six months prior to the annual 
expiration of this agreement. Such notice shall be considered delivered and the service 
thereof completed three days following the deposit, in the United States mail, of said 
notice, either certified or registered, addressed to the other party at the official address 
set forth in Paragraph 12 following.  
 


11.  
 
 The premises stated on the first page of this agreement are specifically made a 
part hereof and incorporated herein by this reference.  
 


12.  
 
 The official address for notification purposes as to each party shall be as follows:  
 
  Clerk  
 Fayette County Board of Commissioners  
 140 West Stonewall Avenue  
 Fayetteville, Georgia 30214  
  
 Town Clerk  
 Mayor and Council of the Town of Woolsey  
 117 B Hill Ave.  
 Woolsey, Georgia 30215  
 
 







 
 
 
  IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have made and entered into this 
agreement on:  
  
 


______________________ ______________ ______________. 
                    MONTH        DAY       YEAR  
 
  
 
    TOWN OF WOOLSEY, GEORGIA          FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA  


 
  
 
  
 
By: ____________________________   By: _____________________________  
                    Mayor                 Chairman 
 
  
 
  
 
Attest: __________________________  


 Attest:_____________________
______  


                Clerk                   Clerk 
 
  
 







 1


 
 
TOWN OF WOOLSEY, 
STATE OF GEORGIA; 
FAYETTE COUNTY 


ORDINANCE NO. 2013-_________ 
 
AN ORDINANCE TO BE ENTITLED, “TOWN OF WOOLSEY SOIL EROSION, 
SEDIMENTATION AND POLLUTION CONTROL ORDINANCE”; TO PROVIDE FOR 
IMPROVED SOIL EROSION AND SEDIMENTATION CONTROL POLICIES AND 
PRACTICES, AND FOR POLLUTION CONTROL WITHIN THE TOWN OF WOOLSEY;  
TO REGULATE AND ENFORCE LAND DISTURBANCE AND CONSTRUCTION 
ACTIVITIES SO AS TO IMPLEMENT SUCH POLICIES AND PRACTICES; TO PROVIDE 
FOR LIAISON AND COOPERATION BETWEEN THE TOWN OF WOOLSEY AND 
STATE, DISTRICT AND COUNTY AUTHORITIES HAVING OVERLAPPING OR 
SIMILAR PURPOSES AND AUTHORITY PURSUANT TO CHAPTER 7 OF TITLE 12 OF 
THE OFFICIAL CODE OF GEORGIA ANNOTATED (O.C.G.A.), AND PURSUANT TO 
OTHER LAWS OF GENERAL APPLICATION; TO PROVIDE STANDARDS, FEES AND 
PROCEDURES FOR ISSUANCE OF PERMITS AND SUSPENSION OR REVOCATION OF 
SAME AND INCENTIVES FOR COMPLIANCE AND PENALTIES FOR NON-
COMPLIANCE WITH ORDINANCE REQUIREMENTS; TO PROVIDE FOR 
SEVERABILITY; TO REPEAL CONFLICTING ORDINANCES; TO PROVIDE AN 
ADOPTION DATE; TO PROVIDE AN EFFECTIVE DATE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES 
ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 


WHEREAS, the duly elected governing authority of the Town of Woolsey is its Mayor 
and Council; 


WHEREAS, The governing authority desires to provide for the regulation of soil erosion 
and sedimentation control for land disturbance activities under laws of the State of Georgia; 


WHEREAS, The health, safety, and welfare of the citizens of the Town of Woolsey, 
Georgia will be improved and protected by adoption and implementation of this Ordinance. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE MAYOR AND COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF 


WOOLSEY IN FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA AND IT IS HEREBY ORDAINED BY 


AUTHORITY THEREOF: 


 
Section 1.  That the Town of Woolsey Soil Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control 
Ordinance shall read as follows: 
 


SOIL EROSION, SEDIMENTATION AND POLLUTION 


 CONTROL ORDINANCE 


 


DIVISION 1.  GENERALLY 
 
Sec. 8-241.  Title.  This ordinance will be known as the “Town of Woolsey Soil 
Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Ordinance.” 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 2







 2


 
DIVISION 2.  DEFINITIONS 


 
Sec. 8-242.  Definitions; Interpretations.  The following definitions shall apply 
in the interpretation and enforcement of this ordinance, unless otherwise 
specifically stated. 
 
Best Management Practices (BMPs): Sound conservation and engineering 
practices to prevent and minimize erosion and resultant sedimentation, that are 
consistent with, and no less stringent than, those practices contained in the 
‘Manual for Erosion and Sediment Control in Georgia’ (Manual.) 
 
Board:  The Board of Natural Resources. 
 
Buffer:  An area of land immediately adjacent to the banks of state waters in its 
natural state of vegetation, which facilitates the protection of water quality and 
aquatic habitat.  
 
Certified Personnel: A person who has successfully completed the appropriate 
certification course approved by the Georgia Soil and Water Conservation 
Commission. 
 
Commission:  The Georgia Soil and Water Conservation Commission (GSWCC.) 
 
CPESC: Certified Professional in Erosion and Sediment Control with current 
certification by Certified Profession in Erosion and Sediment Control Inc., a 
corporation registered in North Carolina that is also referred to as CPESC or 
CPESC, Inc. 
 
Cut:  A portion of land surface or area from which where earth has been removed 
or will be removed by excavation; the depth below original ground surface to the 
excavated surface.  Also known as an excavation. 
 
Design Professional: A professional licensed by the State of Georgia in the field 
of: engineering, architecture, landscape architecture, forestry, geology, or land 
surveying; or  is a CPESC. 
 
Director: The Director of the Environmental Protection Division or an authorized 
representative. 
 
District:  The Towaliga Soil and Water Conservation District. 
 
Division:  The Environmental Protection Division (EPD) of the Department of 
Natural Resources.  
 







 3


Drainage Structure:  A device composed of a virtually non-erodable material 
such as concrete, steel, plastic or other such material than conveys water from one 
place to another by intercepting the flow and carrying it to a release point for 
stormwater management, drainage control, or flood control purposes. 
 
Erosion:  The process by which land surface is worn away by the action of wind, 
water, ice and/or gravity. 
 
Erosion Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan (“Plan”):  A plan required by 
the Erosion and Sedimentation Act, O.C.G.A. § 12-7-1 et seq., that includes, as a 
minimum, protections at least as stringent as the state general permit, BMPs, and 
requirements of this ordinance. 
 
Fill:  A portion of land surface to which soil or other solid material has been 
added; the depth above the original ground or an excavation. 
 
Final Stabilization: The point where all soil disturbing activities at the site have 
been completed, and (unpaved areas and areas not covered by permanent 
structures and areas located outside the waste disposal limits of a landfill cell that 
has been certified by EPD for waste disposal) 100% of the soil surface is 
uniformly covered in permanent vegetation with a density of 70% or greater, or 
equivalent permanent stabilization measures (such as the use of rip rap, gabions, 
permanent mulches or geotextiles) have been used.  Permanent vegetation shall 
consist of: planted trees, shrubs, perennial vines; a crop of perennial vegetation 
appropriate for the time of year and region; or a crop of annual vegetation and a 
seeding of target crop perennials appropriate for the region.  Final stabilization 
applies to each phase of construction. 
 
Finished Grade:  The final elevation and contour of the ground after cutting or 
filling and conforming to the proposed design. 
 
Grading:  Altering the shape of ground surfaces to a predetermined condition; this 
includes stripping, cutting, filling, stockpiling and shaping or any combination 
thereof and shall include the land in its cut or filled condition. 
 
Ground Elevation:  The original elevation of the ground surface prior to cutting or 
filling. 
 
Land-Disturbing Activity:  Any activity that may result in soil erosion from water 
or wind and the movement of sediments into state waters or onto lands within the 
state, including, but not limited to, clearing, dredging, grading, excavating, 
transporting, and filling of land but not including exempted agricultural practices. 
 
Larger Common Plan of Development or Sale: A contiguous area where multiple 
separate and distinct construction activities are occurring under one plan of 
development or sale.  For the purposes of this paragraph, “plan” means an 







 4


announcement; piece of documentation such as a sign, public notice or hearing, 
sales pitch, advertisement, drawing, permit application, zoning request, or 
computer design; or physical demarcation such as boundary signs, lot stakes, or 
surveyor markings, indicating that construction activities may occur on a specific 
plot. 
 
Local Issuing Authority: The governing authority of any county or municipality 
which is certified pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-7-8(a). Fayette County, Georgia is 
the Local Issuing Authority for unincorporated Fayette County. 
 
Manual: The ‘Manual for Erosion and Sediment Control in Georgia’ published by 
the Commission as of January 1 of the year in which the land-disturbing activity 
was permitted and amendments to the Manual as approved by the Commission up 
until the date of Notice of Intent (NOI) submittal. The ‘Manual for Erosion and 
Sediment Control in Georgia’ is hereby incorporated by reference into this 
ordinance. 
 
Natural Ground Surface:  The ground surface in its original state before any 
grading, excavation or filling. 
 
Nephelometric Turbidity Units (NTU):  Numerical units of measure based upon 
photometric analytical techniques for measuring the light scattered by finely 
divided particles of a substance in suspension.  This technique is used to estimate 
the extent of turbidity in water in where colloidally-dispersed particles are 
present. 
 
NOI: A Notice of Intent form provided by EPD for coverage under the state 
general permit. 
 
NOT: A Notice of Termination form provided by EPD to terminate coverage 
under the state general permit. 
 
Operator: A party or parties that have:  
 


(1) operational control of construction project plans and specifications, 
including the ability to make modifications to those plans and 
specifications; or 


 
(2) day-to-day operational control of activities necessary to ensure 


compliance with the Plan for the site or other permit conditions, 
such as a person authorized to direct workers at a site to carry out 
activities required by the Plan or to comply with other permit 
conditions. 


 
Plan: The Erosion and Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan. 
 







 5


Permit:  The authorization necessary to conduct a land-disturbing activity under 
the provisions of this ordinance, known as a “Land-Disturbance Permit”. 
 
Person:  Any individual, partnership, firm, association, joint venture, public or 
private corporation, trust, estate, commission, board, public or private institution, 
utility, cooperative, state agency, municipality or other political subdivision of the 
State of Georgia, any interstate body or any other legal entity. 
 
Project:  The entire proposed development regardless of the size of the area of 
land to be disturbed or multiple sites within a larger common plan of development 
or sale permitted by an owner or operator for compliance with the state general 
permit. 
 
Phase or Phased: Sub-parts or segments of construction projects where the sub-
part or segment is constructed and stabilized prior to completing construction 
activities on the entire construction site. 
 
Properly Designed: Designed in accordance with the design requirements and 
specifications contained in the Manual  
 
Roadway Drainage Structure:  A device such as a bridge, culvert, or ditch, 
composed of a virtually nonerodible material such as concrete, steel, plastic, or 
other such material that conveys water under a roadway by intercepting the flow 
on one side of a traveled way consisting of one or more defined lanes, with or 
without shoulder areas, and carrying water to a release point on the other side. 
 
Sediment:  Solid material, organic and/or inorganic, that is in suspension, is 
transported, and/or is moved from the site of origin by air, water, ice, or gravity as 
a product of erosion. 
 
Sedimentation:  The process where eroded material is transported with and 
deposited by water, wind, ice or gravity. 
 
Soil and Water Conservation District Approved Plan:  An Erosion, and 
Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plan approved in writing by the Towaliga 
Soil and Water Conservation District.  As of July 12, 1992, a Memorandum of 
Agreement between the District, Fayette County, and the State Soil and Water 
Conservation Commission permits Fayette County to review and approve 
Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plans. 
 
Stabilization:  The process of establishing an enduring soil cover by the 
installation of temporary or permanent vegetation and/or structures, for the 
purpose of reducing to a minimum the erosion and sedimentation process. 
 
State General Permit: The National Pollution Discharge Elimination System 
(NPDES) general permit or permits for stormwater runoff from construction 







 6


activities as is now in effect or as may be amended or reissued in the future 
pursuant to the state’s authority to implement the same through federal delegation 
under the Federal Water Pollution Control Act, as amended, 33 U.S.C. § 1251, et 
seq., and O.C.G.A. § 12-5-30(f). 
 
State Waters:  Any and all rivers, streams, creeks, branches, lakes, reservoirs, 
ponds, drainage systems, springs, wells, and other bodies of surface or subsurface 
water, natural or artificial, lying within or forming a part of the boundaries of the 
state that are not entirely confined and retained completely upon the property of a 
single individual, partnership, or corporation. 
 
Structural Erosion and Sediment Control Practices:  Practices for the stabilization 
of erodable or sediment-producing areas by utilizing the mechanical properties of 
matter for the purpose of either changing the surface of the land or storing, 
regulating or disposing of runoff to prevent excessive sediment loss.  Examples of 
structural erosion and sediment control practices are rip-rap, sediment basins, 
dikes, level spreaders, waterways or outlets, diversions, grade stabilization 
structures, sediment traps, land grading, etc.  Such practices can be found in the 
Manual. 
 
Vegetative Erosion and Sedimentation Control Measures:  Measures for the 
stabilization of erodable or sediment-producing areas by covering the soil with: 
 


(1) Permanent seeding, sprigging or planting, producing long-term 
vegetative cover; 


 
(2) Temporary seeding, producing short-term vegetative cover; or 


 
(3) Sodding, covering areas with a turf of perennial sod-forming grass.   


 
Such practices can be found in the Manual. 
 
Watercourse:  Any natural or artificial watercourse, stream, river, creek, channel, 
ditch, canal, conduit, culvert, drain, waterway, gully, ravine, or wash where water 
flows either continuously or intermittently and having a definite channel, bed and 
banks, and including any area adjacent subject to inundation by reason of 
overflow or floodwater. 
 
Wetlands:  Areas that are inundated or saturated by surface or ground water at a 
frequency and duration sufficient to support, and that under normal circumstances 
do support, a prevalence of vegetation typically adapted for life in saturated soil 
conditions.  Wetlands generally include swamps, marshes, bogs, and similar 
areas. 
 
 
 







 7


DIVISION 3.  EXEMPTIONS 
 
Sec. 8-243.  Exemptions.  This ordinance shall apply to any land-disturbing 
activity undertaken by any person on any land within the Town of Woolsey 
except for the following: 
 


(1) Surface mining, as the same is defined in O.C.G.A. § 12-4-72 
“Mineral Resources and Caves Act”; 


 
(2) Granite quarrying and land clearing for such quarrying; 


 
(3) Minor land-disturbing activities such as home gardening, 


individual home landscaping, repairs, maintenance work, fence 
installation, and other related activities resulting in minor soil 
erosion; 


 
(4) The construction of single-family residences, when such 


construction disturbs less than one acre and is not a part of a larger 
common plan of development or sale with a planned disturbance of 
equal to or greater than one acre and not exempted under this 
paragraph. Construction of any such residence shall conform to the 
minimum requirements as set forth in Division 4 of this ordinance.  


 
(5) Agricultural operations as defined in O.C.G.A. § 1-3-3, 


“definitions”, to include raising, harvesting or storing of products 
of the field or orchard; feeding, breeding or managing livestock or 
poultry; producing or storing feed for use in the production of 
livestock includes but is not limited to cattle, calves, swine, hogs, 
goats, sheep, and rabbits or for use in the production of poultry, 
including but not limited to chicken, hens and turkey; producing 
plants, trees, fowl, or animals; the production of aqua culture, 
horticultural, dairy, livestock, poultry, eggs and apiarian products 
and farm buildings and farm ponds; 


 
(6) Forestry land-management practices, including harvesting, 


provided when such exempt forestry practices cause or result in 
land-disturbing activities otherwise prohibited in a buffer, as 
established herein. No other land-disturbing activities, except for 
normal forestry management practices, shall be allowed on the 
entire property upon which the forestry practices were conducted 
for a period of three years after the completion of such forestry 
practices; 


 
(7) Any project carried out under the technical supervision of the 


Natural Resources Conservation Service of the United States 
Department of Agriculture; 







 8


 
(8) Any project involving less than one acre of disturbed area; 


provided this exemption shall not apply to any land-disturbing 
activity within a larger common plan of development or sale with a 
planned disturbance of equal to or greater than one acre or within 
200 feet of the bank of any state waters. For purposes of this 
paragraph, “state waters” excludes channels and drainage ways 
having water in them only during and immediately after rainfall 
events and intermittent streams that do not have water in them year 
round; provided, that any person responsible for a project 
involving less than one acre of land-disturbing activity and within 
200 feet of any such excluded channel or drainage way, must 
prevent sediment from moving beyond the boundaries of the 
property on which such project is located and provided, further, 
that nothing contained herein shall prevent the Local Issuing 
Authority from regulating any such project not specifically 
exempted herein; 


 
(9) Construction and/or maintenance projects undertaken or financed 


in whole and/or in part by the Department of Transportation, the 
Georgia Highway Authority, or the State Road and Tollway 
Authority; and/or any road construction or maintenance project, 
undertaken by Fayette County; provided, that construction or 
maintenance projects of the Department of Transportation or State 
Road and Tollway Authority that disturbs one or more contiguous 
acres of land shall be subject to provisions of O.C.G.A. § 12-7-7.1; 
except where the Department of Transportation, the Georgia 
Highway Authority, or the State Road and Tollway Authority is a 
secondary permittee for a project located within a larger common 
plan of development or sale under the state general permit, in 
which case a copy of a notice of intent under the state general 
permit shall be submitted to the Local Issuing Authority. The 
Local Issuing Authority shall enforce compliance with the 
minimum requirements set forth in O.C.G.A. § 12-7-6 as if a 
permit had been issued, and violations shall be subject to the same 
penalties as violations by permit holders; 


 
(10) Any land-disturbing activities conducted by any electric 


membership corporation or municipal electrical system or any 
public utility under the regulatory jurisdiction of the Public Service 
Commission, any utility under the regulatory jurisdiction of the 
Federal Energy Regulatory Commission, any cable television 
system as defined in O.C.G.A. § 36-18-1, or any agency or 
instrumentality of the United States engaged in the generation, 
transmission, or distribution of power; except where any previous 
referenced entities is a secondary permittee for a  project located 







 9


within a larger common plan of development or sale under the 
state general permit, in which case the Local Issuing Authority 
shall enforce compliance with the minimum requirements set forth 
in O.C.G.A. 12-7-6 as if a permit had been issued.  Violations shall 
be subject to the same penalties as violations by permit holders; 
and 


 
(11) Any public water system reservoir. 


 
Sec. 8-244.  Reserved. 


 
DIVISION 4. MINIMUM REQUIREMENTS FOR EROSION, 


SEDIMENTATION AND POLLUTION CONTROL USING BEST 
MANAGEMENT PRACTICES 


 
Sec. 8-245.  General Provisions.  Excessive soil erosion and resulting 
sedimentation can take place during land-disturbing activities if requirements of 
the ordinance and the NPDES General Permit are not met.  Therefore, plans for 
those land-disturbing activities not exempted by this ordinance shall contain 
provisions for application of soil erosion and sedimentation control measures and 
practices.  Provisions shall be incorporated into the Erosion, Sedimentation and 
Pollution Control Plans.  Soil erosion, sedimentation and pollution control 
measures and practices shall conform to the minimum requirements of this 
ordinance.  Application of measures and practices shall apply to all features of the 
site, including street and utility installations, drainage facilities, and other 
temporary and permanent improvements.  Measures shall be installed to prevent 
or control erosion, sedimentation and pollution during all stages of any land-
disturbing activities in accordance with requirements of this ordinance and the 
NPDES General Permit. 
 
Sec. 8-246.  Minimum Requirements/BMP’s. 


 
(a) Best Management Practices as set forth herein shall be required for all 


land-disturbing activities.  Proper design, installation, and maintenance of 
BMPs shall constitute a complete defense to any action by the 
Director/Local Issuing Authority or to any other allegation of 
noncompliance with Paragraph (b) of this subsection or any substantially 
similar terms contained in a permit for the discharge of stormwater issued 
pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-5-30(f), the “Georgia Water Quality Control 
Act.”  As used in this subsection, the terms “proper design” and “properly 
designed” mean, designed in accordance with the hydraulic design 
specifications contained in the Manual specified in O.C.G.A. § 12-7-6(b). 


 
(b) A discharge of stormwater runoff from disturbed areas where BMPs have 


not been properly designed, installed, and maintained shall constitute a 
separate violation of any land-disturbing permit issued by a Local Issuing 







 10


Authority or of any state general permit issued by the Division pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 12-5-30(f), the “Georgia Water Quality Control Act”, for each 
day on which such discharge results in the turbidity of receiving waters 
being increased by more than 25 nephelometric turbidity units for waters 
supporting warm water fisheries.  The turbidity of the receiving waters 
shall be measured in accordance with guidelines issued by the Director. 
This paragraph shall not apply to any land disturbance associated with the 
construction of single-family homes not part of a larger common plan of 
development or sale unless the planned disturbance for such construction 
is equal to or greater than five (5) acres.  


 
(c) Failure to properly design, install, or maintain BMPs shall constitute a 


violation of any land-disturbing permit issued by a Local Issuing 
Authority or of any state general permit issued by the Division pursuant to 
O.C.G.A. § 12-5-30(f), the “Georgia Water Quality Control Act”, for each 
day on which such failure occurs. 


 
(d) The Director may require, in accordance with regulations adopted by the 


Board, reasonable and prudent monitoring of the turbidity level of 
receiving waters into which discharges from land-disturbing activities 
occur. 


 
Sec. 8-247.  Minimum requirements.  Rules, regulations, ordinances, and/or 
resolutions adopted pursuant to this ordinance for the purpose of governing land-
disturbing activities shall require, as a minimum, protections at least as stringent 
as the state general permit; and BMPs, including sound conservation and 
engineering practices to prevent and minimize erosion and resultant 
sedimentation, consistent with and no less stringent than, those practices 
contained in the Manual, as well as the following: 
 


(1) Stripping of vegetation, regrading and other development activities 
shall be conducted in a manner so as to minimize erosion; 


 
(2) Cut-fill operations must be kept to a minimum; 


 
(3) Development plans must conform to topography and soil type so as 


to create the lowest practicable erosion potential; 
 


(4) Whenever feasible, natural vegetation shall be retained, protected 
and supplemented; 


 
(5) The disturbed area and the duration of exposure to erosive 


elements shall be kept to a practicable minimum; 
 


(6) Disturbed soil shall be stabilized as quickly as practicable; 
 







 11


(7) Temporary vegetation or mulching shall be employed to protect 
exposed critical areas during development; 


 
(8) Permanent vegetation and structural erosion control practices shall 


be installed as soon as practicable; 
 


(9) To the extent necessary, sediment in run-off water must be trapped 
by the use of debris basins, sediment basins, silt traps, or similar 
measures until the disturbed area is stabilized.  As used in this 
paragraph, a disturbed area is stabilized when it is brought to a 
condition of continuous compliance with the requirements of 
O.C.G.A. § 12-7-1 et seq;  


 
(10) Adequate provisions must be provided to minimize damage from 


surface water to the cut face of excavations or the sloping surfaces 
of fills; 


 
(11) Cuts and fills may not endanger adjoining property; 


 
(12) Fills may not encroach upon natural watercourses or constructed 


channels in a manner so as to adversely affect other property 
owners; 


 
(13) Grading equipment must cross flowing streams by means of 


bridges or culverts, except when such methods are not feasible, 
provided, in any case, that such crossings are kept to a minimum; 


 
(14) Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Plans shall include 


provisions for treatment or control of any source of sediments and 
for adequate sedimentation control facilities to retain sediments 
onsite or preclude sedimentation of adjacent waters beyond the 
levels specified herein; 


 
(15) There is an established 25 foot buffer along the banks of any state 


waters, as measured horizontally from the point where vegetation 
has been wrested by normal stream flow or wave action, except:  


 
i. where the Director determines to allow a variance that is at 


least as protective of natural resources and the 
environment, where otherwise allowed by  the Director 
pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-2-8;  


 
ii. where a drainage structure or a roadway drainage structure 


must be constructed, provided that adequate erosion control 
measures are incorporated in the project plans and 
specifications and are implemented; or  







 12


 
iii. along any ephemeral stream. As used in this ordinance, the 


term 'ephemeral stream' means a stream: that under normal 
circumstances has water flowing only during and for a 
short duration after precipitation events; that has the 
channel located above the groundwater table year round; 
where groundwater is not a source of the ephemeral stream; 
and where runoff from precipitation is the primary source 
of water flow. Unless exempted as along an ephemeral 
stream buffers of at least 25 feet established pursuant to 
Part 6 of Article 5, Chapter 5 of Title 12, of the Official 
Code of Georgia Annotated, the “Georgia Water Quality 
Control Act”, shall remain in force unless a variance is 
granted by the Director as provided in this paragraph.  


 
The following requirements shall apply to any such buffer. 


 
i. No land-disturbing activities shall be conducted within a 


buffer and a buffer shall remain in its natural, undisturbed 
state of vegetation until all land-disturbing activities on the 
construction site are completed.  Once the final 
stabilization of the site is achieved, a buffer may be thinned 
or trimmed of vegetation as long as a protective vegetative 
cover remains to protect water quality and aquatic habitat 
and a natural canopy is left in sufficient quantity to keep 
shade on the stream bed; provided, however, that any 
person constructing a single-family residence, when such 
residence is constructed by or under contract with the 
owner for his or her own occupancy, may thin or trim 
vegetation in a buffer at any time as long as protective 
vegetative cover remains to protect water quality and 
aquatic habitat and a natural canopy is left in sufficient 
quantity to keep shade on the stream bed. 


 
ii. The buffer shall not apply to the following land-disturbing 


activities, provided that they occur at an angle, as measured 
from the point of crossing, within 25 degrees of 
perpendicular to the stream; cause a width of disturbance of 
not more than 50 feet within the buffer; and adequate 
erosion control measures are incorporated into the project 
plans and specifications and are implemented:  


 
A. stream crossings for water lines; or  


  
B. stream crossings for sewer lines. 


 







 13


Sec. 8-248.  Watershed Protection.  Nothing contained in this ordinance shall 
supersede the buffer requirements specified in the Fayette County Watershed 
Protection Ordinance.  
 
Sec. 8-249.  Damage to surrounding property. The fact that land-disturbing 
activity for which a permit has been issued results in injury to the property of 
another shall neither constitute proof of nor create a presumption of a violation of 
the standards provided for in this ordinance or the terms of the permit. 
 


DIVISION 5.  APPLICATION/PERMIT PROCESS 
 
Sec. 8-250.  General.  The property owner, developer and designated planners 
and engineers shall review the general development plans and detailed plans of 
the Town of Woolsey that affect the tract to be developed and the area 
surrounding it.  They shall review all development ordinances that regulate land 
within the Town or lands adjacent to said tract if outside the Town.  However, the 
owner and/or operator are the only parties that can obtain a Land Disturbance 
Permit.    
 
Sec. 8-251.  Permit required; Application requirements; fees. 


 
(a) No person shall conduct any land-disturbing activity within the 


jurisdictional boundaries of the Town of Woolsey without first obtaining a 
Permit to perform such activity from the Fayette County Stormwater 
Management Department or such other agency as may be authorized by 
the Town of Woolsey to issue such Permit. 


 
(b) The application for a permit shall be submitted to the Stormwater 


Management Department or other entity designated by the Town and must 
include the applicant’s Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan 
with supporting data, as necessary.  Said Plans shall include, as a 
minimum, the data specified herein. Applications for a permit will not be 
accepted unless accompanied by two (2) copies of the Plan.  All 
applications shall contain a certification stating that the Plan preparer or 
the designee thereof visited the site prior to creation of the Plan or that 
such a visit was not required in accordance with rules and regulations 
established by the Board. 


 
(c) A fee shall be charged for each application as authorized by the Town of 


Woolsey for the disturbed area. 
 
(d) In addition to the local permitting fees, fees will also be assessed pursuant 


to O.C.G.A. § 12-5-23(a)(5), provided that such fees shall not exceed 
$80.00 per acre of land-disturbing activity, and these fees shall be 
calculated and paid by the primary permittee as defined in the state general 
permit for each acre of land-disturbing activity included in the planned 







 14


development or each phase of development.  All applicable fees shall be 
paid prior to issuance of the Permit.  In a jurisdiction that is certified 
pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-7-8(a), half of such fees levied shall be 
submitted to the division; except that fees due from an entity which is 
required to give notice pursuant to O.C.G.A. §§ 12-7-17(9) and (10) shall 
be submitted in full to the Division, notwithstanding that Fayette County 
may be a Local Issuing Authority.  


 
(e) Upon receipt of a permit application and plan, the Stormwater 


Management Department or other authorized permitting entity shall 
review the plan within fourteen (14) calendar days and approve or 
disapprove it concerning the adequacy of the Plan.  No permit will be 
issued unless the plan has been approved by the Stormwater Management 
Department or other permitting entity, all necessary variances have been 
approved, a pre-construction meeting has been conducted where the owner 
or duly-authorized representative is present, and all bonds, if required, 
have been submitted. 


 
(1) When reviewing any application for a land-disturbing activity 


permit, the Stormwater Management Department or other 
permitting entity shall consider the past record of the permit 
applicant in complying with previous land-disturbing activity 
permits and this ordinance.  If a permit applicant has had two or 
more violations of previous permits, this ordinance section, or the 
Erosion and Sedimentation Act, as amended, within three years 
prior to the date of filing of the application under consideration, the 
Stormwater Management Department or other permitting entity 
may deny the application, pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-7-7(f)(1). 


 
(2) The Stormwater Management Department or other permitting 


entity may require the permit applicant to post a bond in the form 
of government security, cash, irrevocable letter of credit, or any 
combination thereof, up to, but not exceeding, $3,000.00 per acre 
or a fraction thereof of the proposed land-disturbing activity, prior 
to issuing the permit.  If the applicant does not comply with this 
ordinance or with the conditions of the permit after issuance, the 
Stormwater Management Department or other permitting entity 
may call the bond or any part thereof to be forfeited and may use 
the proceeds to hire a contractor to stabilize the site of the land-
disturbing activity and bring it into compliance.  These provisions 
shall not apply unless there is in effect an ordinance or statute 
specifically providing for a hearing and judicial review of any 
determination or order of the Stormwater Management Department 
or other permitting entity with respect to alleged permit violations. 


 







 15


(f) The Town of Woolsey may provide by contract with Fayette County or 
another authorized entity for the administration and enforcement of all 
provisions of this ordinance, including the assessment of reasonable fees 
and charges for services required by such entity incident to applications 
for permits and other approvals required in the permit application process; 
which fees and charges, if not otherwise contractually changed, shall be 
the same charged by such entity to applicants for similar actions under 
laws and regulations governing such entity’s fees and charges for such 
services respecting projects located outside the Town of Woolsey. 


 
Sec. 8-252. Plan Requirements. 


 
(a) Plans must be prepared to meet the minimum requirements as contained 


herein, or through the use of more stringent alternate design criteria 
conforming to sound conservation and engineering practices.   


 
(b) The Plan for the land-disturbing activity shall consider the 


interrelationship of the soil types, geological and hydrological 
characteristics, topography, watershed, vegetation, proposed permanent 
structures including roadways, constructed waterways, sediment control 
and stormwater management facilities, local ordinances and state laws. 
Maps, drawings and supportive computations shall bear the signature and 
seal of the certified design professional.  Persons involved in land-
development design, review, permitting, construction, monitoring, or 
inspections or any land-disturbing activity shall meet the education and 
training certification requirements, dependent on his or her level of 
involvement with the process, as developed by the Town or its lawful 
agent and in consultation with the Division and the Stakeholder Advisory 
Board created pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-7-20. 


 
(c) The Plan shall include all the information required from the appropriate 


Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan Review Checklist 
established by the Commission as of January 1 of the year in which the 
land-disturbing activity was permitted. 


 
Sec. 8-253.  Permits. 


 
(a) Permits shall be issued or denied as soon as practicable but no later than 


fifteen (15) days after receipt by the Stormwater Management Department  
or permitting entity of a completed application, provided all state and 
federal permits/variances and local bonding are obtained, as applicable. 


 
(b) Any variances required herein must be obtained; bonding requirements, if 


necessary, must be met; all Town of Woolsey ordinances, rules and 
regulations in effect must be complied with; and the Plan must be 







 16


approved prior to issuance of a Permit by the Stormwater Management 
Department or other permitting entity. 


 
(c) If the Permit is denied, the reason for denial shall be furnished to the 


applicant. 
 
(d) Any land-disturbing activities by a Local Issuing Authority shall be 


subject to the same requirements of this ordinance. 
 
(e) If the tract is to be developed in phases, then a separate Permit shall be 


required for each phase.  If a decision is made to plat the subdivision in 
phases after the Permit has been issued, and the rights-of-way have been 
cleared, the cleared areas outside of the phase to be constructed must be 
mulched and grassed.  A new Permit must be issued before work can 
begin in any subsequent phase, though the work may be continued under 
the initial NOI if a NOT has not be filed with the state. 


 
(f) The Permit may be suspended, revoked, or modified by the Stormwater 


Management Department or other permitting entity, as to all or any 
portion of the land affected by the Plan, upon finding that the holder or his 
or her successor in the title is not in compliance with the approved Plan or 
that the holder or his or her successor in title is in violation of this 
ordinance.  A holder of a permit shall notify any successor in title to him 
or her as to all or any portion of the land affected by the approved Plan of 
the conditions contained in the permit. 


 
(g) A permit shall not be issued for any lot in a subdivision with a minimum 


lot size less than two (2.0) acres unless it is issued in conjunction with a 
building permit.  


 
(h) If the work has not begun within ninety (90) calendar days of the issuance 


of a Permit, then the Permit shall expire.  The Permit will expire if the 
project is not completed and approved within twenty-four (24) months of 
the issuance of the Permit.  If project is a phased project, as indicated on 
the approved site plan or preliminary plat, then each phase of the project 
has a twenty-four (24) months time limit.  When a Permit expires, the 
developer will have to apply for a new Permit, however, once a new 
Permit is issued, work may continue under the initial NOI if a NOT has 
not be filed with the state.  


 
(i) The Permit must be posted at the site entrance in a place where it can 


easily be seen. 
 


 
 
 







 17


DIVISION 6.  INSPECTION AND ENFORCEMENT 
 
Sec. 8-254.  Inspection.  The Stormwater Management Department or other 
permitting entity will periodically inspect the sites of land-disturbing activities for 
which where permits have been issued to determine if the activities are being 
conducted in accordance with the approved Plan and if the measures required in 
the Plan are effective in controlling erosion and sedimentation.  Also, the 
Stormwater Management Department shall regulate primary, secondary, and 
tertiary permittees as such terms are defined in the state general permit.  Primary 
permittees shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of BMPs where 
the primary permittee is conducting land-disturbing activities.  Secondary 
permittees shall be responsible for installation and maintenance of BMPs where 
the secondary permittee is conducting land-disturbing activities. Tertiary 
permittees shall be responsible for installation and maintenance where the tertiary 
permittee is conducting land-disturbing activities. If, through inspection, it is 
deemed that a person engaged in land-disturbing activities, as defined herein, has 
failed to comply with the approved Plan, Permit conditions, or provisions of this 
ordinance, a written notice to comply shall be served upon that person.  The 
notice shall set forth the measures necessary to achieve compliance and shall state 
the time such measures must be completed.  If the person engaged in the land-
disturbing activity fails to comply within the time specified, he or she shall be 
deemed in violation of this ordinance. 
 
Sec. 8-255.  Investigations.  The Stormwater Management Department or other 
permitting entity shall have the power to conduct such investigations as may be 
reasonably deemed necessary to carry out duties as prescribed in this ordinance, 
and for this purpose to enter, at reasonable times, upon any property, public or 
private, for the purpose of investigating and inspecting the sites of land-disturbing 
activities. 
 
Sec 8-256.  Entry.  No person shall refuse entry or access to any authorized 
representative or agent of the Local Issuing Authority, the Commission, the 
District, or Division who requests entry for the purpose of inspection, and who 
presents appropriate credentials, nor shall any person obstruct, hamper or interfere 
with any such representative in the process of carrying out his or her official 
duties. Any such person refusing entry or access to any authorized representative 
or agent of the Local Issuing Authority, the Commission, the District, or Division 
shall be subject to penalties described under Sec. 8-259 of this ordinance. 
 


DIVISION 7.  PENALTIES AND INCENTIVES 
 
Sec. 8-259.  Failure to obtain a Permit for Land-Disturbing Activity.  If any 
person commences any land-disturbing activity requiring a Permit as prescribed in 
this ordinance without first obtaining said Permit, the person shall be subject to 
revocation of his work permit or other authorization for the conduct of a business 







 18


and associated work activities within the jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette 
County. 
 
Sec. 8-260.  Stop-Work Orders.   


 
(a) For the first and second violations of this ordinance the Director or Local 


Issuing Authority shall issue a written warning to the violator.  The 
violator shall have five (5) days to correct the violation.  If the violation is 
not corrected within five (5) days, the Director or Local Issuing Authority 
shall issue a stop-work order requiring that all activities be stopped until 
necessary corrective action or mitigation has occurred. If the violation 
presents an imminent threat to public health or state or if the land-
disturbing activities are conducted without obtaining the necessary Permit, 
the Director or Local Issuing Authority shall issue an immediate stop-
work order in lieu of a warning; 


 
(b) For a third and any subsequent violation, the Director or Local Issuing 


Authority shall issue an immediate stop-work order; 
 
(c) All stop-work orders shall be effective immediately upon issuance and 


shall be in effect until the necessary corrective action or mitigation has 
occurred; and 


 
(d) All such stop work orders shall be effective immediately upon issuance 


and shall be in effect until the necessary corrective action or mitigation has 
occurred. When a violation in the form of taking action without a Permit, 
failure to maintain a stream buffer, or significant amounts of sediment, as 
determined by the Local Issuing Authority or by the Director or his or her 
Designee, have been or are being discharged into state waters and where 
BMPs have not been properly designed, installed and maintained, a stop 
work order shall be issued by the Local Issuing Authority or by the 
Director or his or her Designee. Such stop work orders shall apply to all 
activity on the site with the exception of the installation and maintenance 
of temporary or permanent erosion and sediment controls.  


 
Sec. 8-261.  Bond Forfeiture.  If, through inspection, it is determined that a 
person engaged in land-disturbing activities has failed to comply with the 
approved Plan, a written notice to comply shall be served upon that person.  The 
notice shall set forth the measures necessary to achieve compliance with the Plan 
and shall state the time within which such measures must be completed.  If the 
person engaged in the land-disturbing activity fails to comply with the time 
specified, he or she shall be deemed in violation of this ordinance and, in addition 
to other penalties, shall be deemed to have forfeited his or her performance bond, 
if required.  The Stormwater Management Department may call the bond or any 
part hereof to be forfeited and may use the proceeds to hire a contractor to 
stabilize the site of the land-disturbing activity and bring it into compliance. 







 19


 
Sec. 8-262.  Monetary Penalties.  Any person who violates any provisions of this 
ordinance, or any permit condition or limitations established pursuant to this 
ordinance or who negligently or intentionally fails or refuses to comply with any 
final or emergency order of the Stormwater Management Department or other 
permitting entity issued, as provided in this ordinance, shall be liable for a civil 
penalty not to exceed $2,500.00 per day, per violation, or a sentence of 
imprisonment not to exceed sixty (60) days or both.  Each day during which 
violation or failure or refusal to comply continues shall be a separate violation. 
 


DIVISION 8.  EDUCATION AND CERTIFICATION 
 
Sec. 8-263.  Requirements.   Persons involved in land-development design, 
review, permitting, construction, monitoring, or inspection or any land-disturbing 
activity shall meet the education and training certification requirements, 
dependent on their level of involvement with the process, as developed by the 
Commission in consultation with the Division and the Stakeholder Advisory 
Board created pursuant to O.C.G.A. § 12-7-20. 
 
Sec. 8-264.  Representative.   


 
(a) For each site on where land-disturbing activity occurs, each entity or 


person acting as either a primary, secondary, or tertiary permittee, as 
defined in the state general permit, shall have as a minimum one person 
who is responsible for erosion, sedimentation and pollution control 
activities on behalf of said entity or person and meets the applicable 
education or training certification requirements developed by the 
Commission present on site whenever land-disturbing activities are 
conducted on that site.   


 
(b) Persons or entities involved in projects not requiring a state general permit 


but otherwise requiring certified personnel on site may contract with 
certified persons to meet the requirements of this ordinance. 


 
Sec. 8-265.   On-site representative.   If a state general permittee who has 
operational control of land-disturbing activities for a site has met the certification 
requirements of O.C.G.A. § 12-7-19(b)(1), then any person or entity involved in 
land-disturbing activities at that site and operating in a subcontractor capacity for 
such permittee shall meet those educational requirements specified in O.C.G.A. § 
12-7-19(b)(4) and shall not be required to meet any educational requirements that 
exceed those specified in said paragraph. 
 


DIVISION 9.  ADMINISTRATIVE APPEAL JUDICIAL REVIEW 
 
Sec. 8-266.  Administrative Remedies.  The suspension, revocation, 
modification or grant with condition of a Permit by the Stormwater Management 







 20


Department upon finding that the holder is not in compliance with the approved 
Erosion, Sedimentation and Pollution Control Plan; or that the holder is in 
violation of permit conditions; or that the holder is in violation of any ordinance; 
shall entitle the person submitting the Plan or holding the Permit to a hearing 
before the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County within thirty (30) days 
after receipt by the Stormwater Management Department of written notice of 
appeal. 
 
Sec. 8-267.  Judicial Review.  Any person, aggrieved by a decision or order of 
the Stormwater Management Department or other permitting entity acting 
hereunder, after exhausting his or her administrative remedies, shall have the right 
to appeal de novo to the Superior Court of Fayette County. 
 
 


DIVISION 10.  LIABILITY 
 
Sec. 8-268.  Liability. 


 
(a) Neither the approval of a Plan under the provisions of this ordinance, nor 


the compliance with provisions of this ordinance shall relieve any person 
from the responsibility for damage to any person or property otherwise 
imposed by law nor impose any liability upon the Town of Woolsey, its 
agents or contractors (including Fayette County) or the District for damage 
to any person or property. 


 
(b) The fact that a land-disturbing activity for which a Permit has been issued 


results in injury to the property of another shall neither constitute proof 
nor create a presumption of a violation of the standards provided for in 
this ordinance or the terms of the permit. 


 
(c) No provision of this ordinance shall permit any person to violate the 


Georgia Erosion and Sedimentation Act of 1975, the “Georgia Water 
Quality Control Act” or the rules and regulations promulgated and 
approved hereunder or pollute any waters of the state as defined 
hereunder.  


 
Section 2. That the preamble of this Ordinance shall be considered to be and is hereby 
incorporated by reference as if fully set out herein. 
 


Section 3. a. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that all Sections, 
paragraphs, sentences, clauses and phrases of this Article are and were, upon their enactment, 
believed by the Mayor and Council to be fully valid, enforceable and constitutional. 
 
b. It is hereby declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, each and every section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance 
is severable from every other section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance. It 







 21


is hereby further declared to be the intention of the Mayor and Council that, to the greatest extent 
allowed by law, no Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article is mutually 
dependent upon any other Section, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this Article. 
 
c. In the event that any phrase, clause, sentence, paragraph or section of this Article shall, for any 
reason whatsoever, be declared invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable by the valid 
judgment or decree of any court of competent jurisdiction, it is the express intent of the Mayor 
and Council that such invalidity, unconstitutionality or unenforceability shall, to the greatest 
extent allowed by law, not render invalid, unconstitutional or otherwise unenforceable any of the 
remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs or Sections of the Article and that, to the 
greatest extent allowed by law, all remaining phrases, clauses, sentences, paragraphs and 
Sections of the Article shall remain valid, constitutional, enforceable, and of full force and effect. 
 


Section 4.  All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 
herewith are hereby expressly repealed except those provided for herein. 
 


Section 5.  The effective date of this Ordinance shall be the date of adoption unless otherwise 
specified herein. 
 


IT IS SO ORDAINED THIS ____ DAY OF ________________, 2013. 
 


 


MAYOR AND COUNCIL 


TOWN OF WOOLSEY 


       FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 
       ____________________________ 
       GARY LAGGIS, Mayor 
 
 
 
______________________________   ____________________________ 
FRANK CARDEN     JACK GILSON 
Council Member     Council Member 
 
 
______________________________ 
KENNETH WRIGHT     ATTEST: 
Council Member 
 
       ____________________________ 


STACEY COLLINS 
       Town of Woolsey Clerk 
 


 





		Stormwater- Intergovernmental Agreement Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Intergovernmental Agreement Backup

		Microsoft Word - Intergovernmental Agreement (Soil Erosion) [5-8-13]

		Microsoft Word - Soil Control Ordinance 2013- (5-8-13)












MinutesMinutesMinutesMinutes
Board of Commissioners


May 13, 2013
 6:00 P.M.


Notice: A complete audio recording of this meeting can be heard by accessing Fayette
County’s Website at www.fayettecountyga.gov.  Click on “Board of Commissioners”, then
“County Commission Meetings”, and follow the instructions.  The entire meeting or a single
topic can be heard.


                       
The Board of Commissioners of Fayette County, Georgia, met in Official Session on May 13, 2013 at 6:00 p.m. in the
at the Fayette County Administrative Complex, 140 Stonewall Avenue, Fayetteville, Georgia.


Commissioners Present: Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman
David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


Staff Present: Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Floyd L. Jones, County Clerk
Tameca P. White, Executive Assistant


_______________________________________________________________________________________________


1.  Call To Order


On Monday, May 14, 2013, at approximately 6:04 p.m., the 2014 Budget Presentation meeting was called to
order by Steve Rapson, County Administrator.


2. County Administrator Steve Rapson will give the Budget Presentation


Mr. Rapson spoke from a PowerPoint presentation. There were no questions.  The Board took no action.  A
copy of the PowerPoint presentation, identified as “Attachment 1", follows these minutes and is made an official
part hereof.


3. Closing Comments


Chairman Brown stated that there was a lot of cooperation which made a big difference.  He stated that he
knew there were areas to find savings in the budget and he and Allen had been looking at some of those areas







Minutes
May 13, 2013
Page Number 2


for two years and realized that the savings are there to capitalized on for some things.  He stated that he is
glad that this was able to be done in such an efficient way that doesn’t compromise service. 


Mr. Rapson commented that the department heads stepped up during this process.  He stated that he only
had to meet with about five or six departments that had increases, and most of them were justifiable.  He
stated that one thing that is not shown here is that the 2013 budget had a 3% cut across the board so when
he met with the Sheriff and asked for a $650,000 reduction the Sheriff had that plus another $300,000 on top
of that to reduce.  He stated that they were able to make specific cuts in such a way that it did not impact
service.


Commissioner McCarty stated that “We have a county that we can be proud of .”


Mr. Rapson agreed and stated that this type of correction has been done and now, unless something happens
next year with the digest, no changes will have to be made.


Chairman Brown stated that the digest this year is a marginal decrease.  He stated that the hope is that the
economy stays strong and continues to recover and we start to see the digest head in the other direction. 
 
4. Adjournment


Commissioner David Barlow moved to adjourn.  Commissioner Randy Ognio seconded the motion.  No
discussion followed.  The motion passed unanimously.


The Budget Presentation meeting was adjourned at approximately 6:28 p.m


___________________________________                               __________________________________________
      Tameca P. White, Executive Assistant                                                     Steve Brown, Chairman


The foregoing minutes were duly approved at an official meeting of the Board of Commissioners of Fayette County,
Georgia, held on the 23rd day of May 2013.


___________________________________
        Tameca P. White, Executive Assistant








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Stormwater Management Vanessa Birrell


Consideration of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-03 amending Fayette County Code, Chapter 19, Article IV, Stormwater 


Management and changing the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual.


Proposed amendments to Chapter 19, Fayette County Utilities, Article IV, Stormwater Management, include deleting sections pertaining 


to filing a notice of liens as an enforcement method for collection of delinquent accounts, and adding language allowing for late payment 


penalties. 


 


Proposed amendments to the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual include removing watershed stewardship and rain barrel 


credits, while allowing an automatic no-impact credit by adding both a pond credit and a large-lot credit. 


 


Attachment 1 of the supporting documents (pages 1-15) is a red-lined version that details amendments to Ordinance 2013-03.  


Attachment 2 of the support documents (pages 16-28) is a clean, final copy of Ordinance 2013-03.  Attachment 3 of the supporting 


document (pages 29-58) is a copy of the current Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual with proposed amendments. 


Approval of staff's recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-03 amending Fayette County Code, Chapter 19, Article IV, Stormwater 


Management and changing the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual.


Not Applicable.


Yes Thursday, September 22, 2011


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


The late payment is 10% of the outstanding balance.  Since liens are not available, collection efforts will need to be implemented for 


balances exceeding $500.00.


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







1 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 


2013-___ 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO AMEND ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 19 PERTAINING TO 


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT; TO AMEND THE REQUIREMENTS, 


INSPECTIONS, AND ENFORCEMNTENFORCEMENT METHODS OF THE 


STORMWATER UTILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO CLARIFY 


WHAT CONSTITUTES A DELINQUENCY; TO ASSESS A LATE CHARGE; TO 


MAKE GENERAL CHANGES AS TO FORM; TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 


SAFETY AND WELFARE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE 


AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE CODE 


OF ORDIANNCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT PERTAINS TO STORMWATER 


MANAGEMENT BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By redesignating all the subsections in Section 19-96 of the Fayette County Code 


of Ordinances which are currently designated as (b) through (k), so that when 


redesignated the subsections shall be designated as subsections (a) through (j). 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 1







2 
 


Section 2. By deleting subsections (d), (f), (g) and (h) from Section 19-96 pertaining to 


“Findings” in their entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof new subsections (d), 


(f), (g) and (h) to Section 19-96 pertaining to “Findings” to read as follows: 


 


(d) The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County, Georgia include, but are 


not limited to, protecting the public health, safety and welfare.  ProvisionProvisions of 


stormwater management programs and facilities rendersrender and/or resultsresult in both 


service and benefit to all properties, property owners, citizens, and residents of Fayette County 


in a variety of ways as identified in the professional engineering and financial analyses.  The 


service and benefit rendered or resulting from provisionprovisions of stormwater management 


systems and facilities may differ depending on many factors and considerations, including but 


not limited to location, demands and impacts imposed on the stormwater systems and programs, 


and risk exposure. 


 


 (f) The Board of Commissioners finds, concludes and determines that a 


Stormwaterstormwater Utilityutility provides the most practical and appropriate means of 


properly delivering and funding stormwater management services in unincorporated Fayette 


County. 


  


 (g) An equitable approach to funding stormwater management services and facilities 


can be provided by adopting a schedule of service charges upon properties that isare related to 


the burden of stormwater quality control service requirements and costs posed by properties 


throughout the County.  Such schedule of service charges can be complemented by other 







3 
 


funding methods which address specific needs, including but not limited to, allocations of 


special purpose local option sales taxes to stormwater drainage improvement projects.  A service 


charge credit is an appropriate means of adjusting service charges in recognition that private 


stormwater systems and/or actions can effectively reduce or eliminate the burden of stormwater 


quantity and quality control service requirements and costs that a property or properties pose for 


the County. Impervious area is the most important factor influencing stormwater service 


requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County, and therefore is an 


appropriate parameter for calculating stormwater service charges and associated credits. In 


addition, the value to thea stormwater utility of certain actions and practices performed by 


property owners and other stormwater utility customers may be recognized by credits based on 


other factors, including but not limited to, the avoided cost of public information and education 


realized by the utility when public information and education about stormwater management is 


provided by the public school system. 


  


(h) A schedule of Stormwaterstormwater Utilityutility user fee charges based on the 


area of impervious surface located on each improved property is the most appropriate and 


equitable means of allocating the cost of stormwater management services throughout the 


County.  Such user fee charges may be complemented by other types of charges which address 


specific needs, including but not limited to, special service fees, special assessments, revenue 


bonds, use of proceeds from special purpose local option sales taxes and other forms of revenue, 


as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Section 3. By deleting the definitions for Impervious Area/Impervious Surface, Service 







4 
 


Charge and Stormwater Customers from Section 19-97 in their entirety and by 


enacting in lieu thereof new definitions for Impervious Area/Impervious Surface, 


Service Charge and Stormwater Customers to Section 19-97 to read as follows: 


   


Impervious Area/Impervious Surface. Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the 


infiltration of stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be 


considered "impervious" for purposes of the stormwaterStormwater utilityUtility:  the 


projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved areas; improved 


vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic 


coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of 


stormwater runoff or that change the hydrologic response of the property that existed 


prior to development. 


Service Charge. A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, 


reflective of the service provided by Fayette Countythe Stormwater Utility.  Service 


charges are based on measurable parameters which influence the stormwaterStormwater 


utility'sUtility’s cost of providing services and facilities, with the most important factor 


being the amount of impervious area on each parcel of land, which is the user-rate fee 


charge.  The use of impervious area as a service charge rate parameter shall not preclude 


the use of other parameters to determine the impact on the stormwaterStormwater 


utility'sUtility’s cost of providing stormwater management services and facilities.  


Stormwater service charges may also include special charges to the owners of particular 


properties for services or facilities uniquely related to stormwater management of that 


property, including but not limited to charges for development plan review, inspection of 







5 
 


development projects and on-site stormwater control systems, and enhanced level of 


stormwater services above those normally provided by the County. 


Stormwater Customers. All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or 


benefiting from the Stormwater utility'sUtility’s acquisition, management, maintenance, 


extension, and improvement of the public stormwater management systems and facilities 


and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, and activities related 


thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or benefited 


as a result of the stormwater management program. 


 


Section 4. By deleting Section 19-98 pertaining to the Establishment of a Stormwater Utility 


and Enterprise Fund in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 


19-98 pertaining to the Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise 


Fund to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-98.  Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


(a) There is hereby established a Stormwater Utility within the Fayette County 


Utility Services whichthat shall be responsible for stormwater management services throughout 


the unincorporated County limits, and shall provide for the management, protection, control, 


regulation, use, and enhancement of the County’s stormwater management system.  Such 


utilityUtility shall be under the direction of a Stormwater Management Director. 


(b) The County Administrator and the County Chief Financial Officer shall establish 


a Stormwater Enterprise Fund in the County budget and accounting system, separate and apart 







6 
 


from its General Fund, for the purpose of dedicating and protecting all funding applicable to the 


purposes and responsibilities of the utilityUtility, including but not limited to rentals, rates, 


charges, fees, and licenses as may be established by the Board of Commissioners.  All revenues 


and receipts of the Stormwater utility’sUtility shall be deposited promptly upon receipt into the 


Stormwater Enterprise Fund, to be held and invested in trust for the purposes dedicated, and 


expended exclusively for purposes of the Stormwater utility’sUtility, including capital project 


construction.  No other funds of the County shall be deposited in the Stormwater Enterprise 


Fund or commingled with dedicated stormwater revenues, except that other revenues, receipts, 


and resources not accounted for in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, including but not limited to, 


grants, transfers of County funds, loans, and bond proceeds may be combined with and applied 


to stormwater management as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners, upon 


recommendation of the County Administrator. 


 


Section 5. By deleting subsection (a) of Section 19-99 pertaining to the Scope of 


Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility in its entirety and by enacting in lieu 


thereof a new subsection (a) to Section 19-99 pertaining to the Scope of 


Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility to read as follows: 


 


(a) The stormwaterStormwater utilityUtility shall be responsible for stormwater management 


throughout the unincorporated limits of Fayette County government.  The utilityUtility shall 


provide for the conservation, management, protection, control, use, and enhancement of 


stormwater through planning, acquisition, construction, installation, management, operation, 


maintenance, regulation, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater drainage 







7 
 


systems to collect, control, convey, store, detain, retain, recharge, and treat stormwater and 


through regulation of stormwater management systems on private property.  It shall be the 


long-term objective of the County to provide a comparable and consistent level of stormwater 


service to similarly situated properties throughout the service area. 


 


Section 6. By deleting Section 19-100 pertaining to the Requirements for Stormwater 


Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods in its entirety and by enacting in 


lieu thereof a new Section 19-100 pertaining to the Requirements for Stormwater 


Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-100. Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement 


Methods. 


The appropriate and efficacious management of the stormwater management system by 


the County on behalf of all its citizens and in compliance with applicable state and federal law 


places necessary and appropriate obligations on private property owners as well.  The 


stormwaterStormwater utilityUtility may provide for inspection of private stormwater drainage 


systems and/or facilities to ascertain that the stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities are 


functioning as designed and approved by the County. 


 (a) All property owners of improved property within the incorporated areas of 


unincorporated Fayette County shall provide, manage, maintain, and operate on-site stormwater 


management systems sufficient to collect, convey, detain, and discharge stormwater runoff in a 


safe manner consistent with all applicable County development regulations, ordinances, and 







8 
 


State and Federal laws.  Any failure to meet this obligation shall constitute a violation of this 


article and be subject to citation and prosecution in the Fayette County Municipal State Court.  


Each day such violation exists shall constitute a separate offense, subject to the penalties set 


forth in Section? 1-8 of the Code of Fayette County. 


 (b) The County shall have the right, pursuant to the authority of this ordinance, for 


its designated officers and employees to enter upon private and public property owned by 


entities other than the County, upon reasonable notice to the owner thereof, to inspect the 


property and conduct surveys and engineering tests thereon in order to assure compliance. 


 (c) If determined by the Stormwater Management Department, undocumented 


drainageDrainage systems, located on private property that are connected to the County’s 


stormwater drainage system shall be permitted and improved by the property owner to ensure 


proper function to the public system.  This determination may be based upon on the severity of 


stormwater problems, current or potential damage to the publicly-owned stormwater 


management system and potential hazards to the public health, safety and welfare. 


 (d) In the event a public nuisance is deemed to exist by the Stormwater Management 


Department, the County may elect to sue in the Superior Court of Fayette County to abate such 


nuisance.  In the event a public nuisance is found by the court to exist, which the property owner 


fails to abate within such reasonable time as allowed by the Superior Court, the County may 


enter upon the property and cause work as is reasonably necessary to be performed, with the 


actual cost thereof assessed against the property owner in the same manner as a tax levied 


against the property.  From the date of filing of such abatement action, the County shall have 


lien rights which may be perfected, after judgment, by filing a notice of lien on the general 







9 
 


execution docket of the Superior Court of Fayette County. 


 (e) Any failure to meet the obligations set forth in this Ordinance shall constitute a 


nuisance and be subject to an abatement action filed by the County in the? Court.  In the event a 


public nuisance is found by the Court to exist, which the owner fails to properly abate within 


such reasonable time as allowed by the Court, the County may enter upon the property and 


cause such work as is reasonably necessary to be performed. The actual cost thereof shall be 


assessed against the owner in the same manner as a tax levied against the property. 


 (f) The County shall have lien rights from the date of the filing of the abatement 


action by the County, and said lien rights may be perfected through: 


  (1) A judgment; and, 


  (2) The filing of a writ of fieri facias against all property of the person or entity 


against whom the assessment was made.  Upon issuance of said fi. fa., and forwarding of same 


to the Sheriff, the Sheriff shall be authorized pursuant to Georgia law to levy same upon the 


property of the owner to satisfy the amount due on the judgment. 


These enforcement methods shall be perfected by filing a Notice of Lien on the General 


Execution Docket of the Superior Court of Fayette County.  A fi. fa. issued by any court in the 


State of Georgia can be recorded on the General Execution Docket of the Superior Court of any 


other county in the state in which the owner possesses property.  When the execution has been 


entered upon the docket, the lien shall date from such entry. 


State law reference O.C.G.A. § 9-12-81 (b). 


 


Formatted: Tab stops:  0.35", Left


Formatted: Indent: Left:  0", First line:  0",
Tab stops:  0.35", Left


Formatted: Tab stops:  0.35", Left







10 
 


Section 7. By deleting Section 19-101 pertaining to Stormwater Service Chares in its 


entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 19-101 pertaining to 


Stormwater Service Charges to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-101. Stormwater Service Charges. 


(a) The stormwaterStormwater utilityUtility shall recover the cost of providing 


stormwater services and facilities by imposing a stormwater user fee on all developed properties 


within the service area in a fair and equitable manner.  The stormwaterStormwater management 


utilityUtility shall apportion the cost of delivering stormwater services to all developed 


properties based on the demand the property places on the County's stormwater management 


program and the stormwater services provided by the County. 


(b) It shall be the goal of the Board of Commissioners to establish stormwater user 


fee rates that are fair, equitable and reasonable., and together with other funding sources 


available to the Fayette County stormwater management utility, such as special service fees and 


charges deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners to customers for services, systems, 


and/or facilities related to stormwater management (e.g. credit application fees, plan review 


fees, development inspection fees, regulatory compliance inspection fees, special assessments 


and other fees related to provision of stormwater management services), Such fee shall be are 


sufficient to support the cost of the stormwater management services, including, but not limited 


to, the payment of principal and interest on debt obligations, lease payments, operating 


expenses, capital outlays, non-operating expenses, provisions for prudent reserves and other 


costs as deemed appropriate by the County.  Additional funding sources are also available to 


offset this fee, such as special service fees and charges deemed appropriate by the Board of 


Formatted: Indent: First line:  0.5"







11 
 


Commissioners to customers for services, systems, and/or facilities related to stormwater 


management (e.g., credit application fees, plan review fees, development inspection fees, 


regulatory compliance inspection fees, special assessments and other fees related to provision of 


stormwater management services). 


 
(c) The basis for calculation of the stormwater user fee rate to all developed property 


within the County is established in this article.  The County shall assign or determine the amount 


of impervious area and other pertinent factors as may be needed for the fair, reasonable and 


equitable allocation of the costs to deliver stormwater management services and to calculate the 


stormwater user fee charges for all developed properties in the County. 


 (1) User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


  (A) Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 


1,000 square feet of impervious area located on the property to establish the total 


number of billing units for billing.  The total square footage of impervious area 


will be rounded down to the nearest 1,000-foot ft. increment.  (Ex. A property 


with 1,990 square feet of impervious area shall containcomprise one (1) 


equivalent runoff unit.) 


  (B) Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent 


runoff units, because of the hydrologic response characteristics of these 


materials.  (Ex. A property with 2,000 square feet of gravel area shall be 


equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to one (1) equivalent 


runoff unit.) 







12 
 


 (2) Calculation of Rate. The periodic stormwater use fee charges imposed 


on all developed properties shall be a rate of $0.35 per 1000 square feet of impervious 


surface per month. 


 


Section 8. By deleting Section 19-102 pertaining to Stormwater User-Fee Billing/ 


Collections, and Delinquencies in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a 


new Section 19-102 pertaining to Stormwater User-Fee Billing/Collections, and 


Delinquencies to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-102. Stormwater User-Fee Billing, Collections, and Delinquencies. 


(a) Billing and Collections. 


(1) Stormwater user fee charges shall begin to accrue (date)on January 1, 


2012, and shall be billed periodically, thereafter to customers, except as specific 


exemptions and credits may apply.  A bill for stormwater user fee charges may be 


sent through the United States Postal Service or by alternative means, notifying 


the owner of the property being billed of the amount of the stormwater user fee 


charge, less credits,; and the date the payment is due and the date when payment 


is past due. 


(b) Delinquencies. 


(2) (1) Failure to receive a bill shall not be justification for nonpayment. 


Regardless of the party to whom the bill is initially directed, the owner of each 


developed property is subject to stormwater user fee charges and shall be obligated to 


pay stormwater user fee charges and any interest on delinquent stormwater user fee 


Formatted: Normal, Indent: Left:  0.5", First


line:  0.5", Don't add space between


paragraphs of the same style,  No bullets or
numbering







13 
 


charge payments on the date the bill is due. 


(2) Any service charge or portion of a service charge not paid when due may 


be recovered in an action at law or equity by the County. 


(3)(2) No lien shall be imposed for delinquent collections unless a judgment is 


first obtained from a court of competent jurisdiction.  A late charge of ten (10%) percent 


shall be assessed against the customer for the unpaid balance of any Stormwater Utility 


fee charge that becomes delinquent.  In addition, the County shall assess all costs of 


collection, including attorney’s fees and court costs, against the property owner. 


(4) Suits for collection shall be commenced by the County in the county of 


the owner's residence; provided, however, if the owner is not a resident of this state, suit 


may be filed in the Superior or State Court of Fayette County, Georgia. If a suit is 


instituted by the County for collection, the owner shall pay court costs, litigation 


expenses, and reasonable attorney's fees incurred by the County.  


(5) If suit is instituted for the collection of any fees due hereunder or for the 


enforcement of this Ordinance, the owner shall pay the court costs, litigation expenses, 


and reasonable attorney's fees associated therewith.  


 


Section 9. By deleting subsection (a) (3) from Section 19-103 pertaining to Exemptions and 


Credits Applicable to Stormwater Service Charges in its entirety and by enacting 


in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) (3) to Section 19-103 pertaining to 


Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater Charges to read as follows: 


 


Formatted: List Paragraph, Indent: First line: 


0.5"







14 
 


(3) Fayette County-owned streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from 


stormwater user fee charges.  This exemption is in consideration for the County allowing 


the Stormwater Utility to use the County’s existing street, curbs, gutters, drainage ways 


and ditches, storm sewers, culverts, inlets, catch basins, pipes, head walls and other 


structures, natural and man-made, that controls and diverts surface water for the 


purposes of collecting, diverting, transporting and controlling surface and storm waters. 


However, other improved property owned and used for County purposes shall not be 


exempt from stormwater user fee charges. 


 


Section 10. By deleting subsection (a) of Section 19-105 pertaining to Appeals in its entirety 


and by enacting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to Section 19-105 pertaining 


to Appeals to read as follows: 


 


(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Director.  In the case of service charge appeals, the appeal shall include a survey 


prepared by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer containing information on the 


total property area, the impervious surface area, and any other features or conditions whichthat 


influence the hydrologic response of the property to rainfall events. 


 


 
Section 11. Should any word, phrase or sentence of this ordinance be deemed 


unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is the intent of the Board 


of Commissioners that such unconstitutional parts shall be severed from this 







15 
 


Ordinance and this Ordinance will continue to be in force and effect as if such 


unconstitutional parts had never been a part of this Ordinance. 


 


 


Section 12. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 


 


 
Section 13. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be May 23, 2013. 
 


 
SO ORDAINED this ____ day of _________________, 2013. 


 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


(SEAL) 
 


By: ___________________________________ 


                 Steve Brown, Chairman 
 


ATTEST: 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
Floyd Jones, Clerk 







1 
 


STATE OF GEORGIA 


 


COUNTY OF FAYETTE 
 


ORDINANCE NO. 


2013-03 


AN ORDINANCE TO AMEND THE CODE OF ORDINANCES OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA; TO AMEND ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 19 PERTAINING TO 


STORMWATER MANAGEMENT; TO AMEND THE REQUIREMENTS, 


INSPECTIONS, AND ENFORCEMENT METHODS OF THE STORMWATER 


UTILITY; TO PROVIDE FOR AN EFFECTIVE DATE; TO CLARIFY WHAT 


CONSTITUTES A DELINQUENCY; TO ASSESS A LATE CHARGE; TO MAKE 


GENERAL CHANGES AS TO FORM; TO PROTECT THE PUBLIC HEALTH, 


SAFETY AND WELFARE; AND FOR OTHER PURPOSES. 


BE IT ORDAINED BY THE BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF FAYETTE 


COUNTY, GEORGIA, AND IT IS HEREBY ENACTED PURSUANT TO THE 


AUTHORITY OF THE SAME THAT ARTICLE VI OF CHAPTER 19 OF THE CODE 


OF ORDIANNCES OF FAYETTE COUNTY AS IT PERTAINS TO STORMWATER 


MANAGEMENT BE AMENDED AS FOLLOWS: 


 


Section 1. By redesignating all the subsections in Section 19-96 of the Fayette County Code 


of Ordinances which are currently chronologically designated as (b) through (k), 


so that when redesignated the subsections shall be chronologically designated as 


subsections (a) through (j), respectively. 


 



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 2







2 
 


Section 2. By deleting subsections (d), (f), (g) and (h) from Section 19-96 pertaining to 


Findings in their entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof new subsections (d), (f), 


(g) and (h) to Section 19-96 pertaining to Findings to read as follows: 


 


(d) The stormwater needs in unincorporated Fayette County, Georgia include, but are 


not limited to, protecting the public health, safety and welfare.  Provisions of stormwater 


management programs and facilities render and/or result in both service and benefit to all 


properties, property owners, citizens, and residents of Fayette County in a variety of ways as 


identified in the professional engineering and financial analyses.  The service and benefit 


rendered or resulting from provisions of stormwater management systems and facilities may 


differ depending on many factors and considerations, including but not limited to location, 


demands and impacts imposed on the stormwater systems and programs, and risk exposure. 


 


 (f) The Board of Commissioners finds, concludes and determines that a stormwater 


utility provides the most practical and appropriate means of properly delivering and funding 


stormwater management services in unincorporated Fayette County. 


  


 (g) An equitable approach to funding stormwater management services and facilities 


can be provided by adopting a schedule of service charges upon properties that are related to the 


burden of stormwater quality control service requirements and costs posed by properties 


throughout the County.  Such schedule of service charges can be complemented by other 


funding methods which address specific needs, including but not limited to, allocations of 


special purpose local option sales taxes to stormwater drainage improvement projects.  A service 







3 
 


charge credit is an appropriate means of adjusting service charges in recognition that private 


stormwater systems and/or actions can effectively reduce or eliminate the burden of stormwater 


quantity and quality control service requirements and costs that a property or properties pose for 


the County. Impervious area is the most important factor influencing stormwater service 


requirements and costs posed by properties throughout the County, and therefore is an 


appropriate parameter for calculating stormwater service charges and associated credits. In 


addition, the value to a stormwater utility of certain actions and practices performed by property 


owners and other stormwater utility customers may be recognized by credits based on other 


factors, including but not limited to, the avoided cost of public information and education 


realized by the utility when public information and education about stormwater management is 


provided by the public school system. 


 


(h) A schedule of stormwater utility user fee charges based on the area of impervious 


surface located on each improved property is the most appropriate and equitable means of 


allocating the cost of stormwater management services throughout the County.  Such user fee 


charges may be complemented by other types of charges which address specific needs, 


including but not limited to, special service fees, special assessments, revenue bonds, use of 


proceeds from special purpose local option sales taxes and other forms of revenue, as deemed 


appropriate by the Board of Commissioners. 


 


Section 3. By deleting the definitions for Impervious Area/Impervious Surface, Service 


Charge and Stormwater Customers from Section 19-97 in their entirety and by 


enacting in lieu thereof new definitions for Impervious Area/Impervious Surface, 







4 
 


Service Charge and Stormwater Customers to Section 19-97 to read as follows: 


   


Impervious Area/Impervious Surface. Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the 


infiltration of stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be 


considered "impervious" for purposes of the Stormwater Utility:  the projected area of 


buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved areas; improved vehicular drives 


and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic coverings; and 


other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff or that 


change the hydrologic response of the property that existed prior to development. 


Service Charge. A periodic rate, fee, or charge applicable to a parcel of land, 


reflective of the service provided by the Stormwater Utility.  Service charges are based 


on measurable parameters which influence the Stormwater Utility's cost of providing 


services and facilities, with the most important factor being the amount of impervious 


area on each parcel of land, which is the user-rate fee charge.  The use of impervious 


area as a service charge rate parameter shall not preclude the use of other parameters to 


determine the impact on the Stormwater Utility's cost of providing stormwater 


management services and facilities.  Stormwater service charges may also include 


special charges to the owners of particular properties for services or facilities uniquely 


related to stormwater management of that property, including but not limited to charges 


for development plan review, inspection of development projects and on-site stormwater 


control systems, and enhanced level of stormwater services above those normally 


provided by the County. 







5 
 


Stormwater Customers. All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or 


benefiting from the Stormwater Utility's acquisition, management, maintenance, 


extension, and improvement of the public stormwater management systems and facilities 


and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, and activities related 


thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or benefited 


as a result of the stormwater management program. 


 


Section 4. By deleting Section 19-98 pertaining to the Establishment of a Stormwater Utility 


and Enterprise Fund in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 


19-98 pertaining to the Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise 


Fund to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-98.  Establishment of a Stormwater Utility and Enterprise Fund. 


(a) There is hereby established a Stormwater Utility within the Fayette County 


Utility Services that shall be responsible for stormwater management services throughout the 


unincorporated County limits, and shall provide for the management, protection, control, 


regulation, use, and enhancement of the County’s stormwater management system.  Such Utility 


shall be under the direction of the Stormwater Management Director. 


(b) The County Administrator and the County Chief Financial Officer shall establish 


a Stormwater Enterprise Fund in the County budget and accounting system, separate and apart 


from its General Fund, for the purpose of dedicating and protecting all funding applicable to the 


purposes and responsibilities of the Utility, including but not limited to rentals, rates, charges, 


fees, and licenses as may be established by the Board of Commissioners.  All revenues and 







6 
 


receipts of the Stormwater Utility shall be deposited promptly upon receipt into the Stormwater 


Enterprise Fund, to be held and invested in trust for the purposes dedicated, and expended 


exclusively for purposes of the Stormwater Utility, including capital project construction.  No 


other funds of the County shall be deposited in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund or commingled 


with dedicated stormwater revenues, except that other revenues, receipts, and resources not 


accounted for in the Stormwater Enterprise Fund, including but not limited to, grants, transfers 


of County funds, loans, and bond proceeds may be combined with and applied to stormwater 


management as deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners, upon recommendation of 


the County Administrator. 


 


Section 5. By deleting subsection (a) of Section 19-99 pertaining to the Scope of 


Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility in its entirety and by enacting in lieu 


thereof a new subsection (a) to Section 19-99 pertaining to the Scope of 


Responsibility for the Stormwater Utility to read as follows: 


 


(a) The Stormwater Utility shall be responsible for stormwater management 


throughout the unincorporated limits of Fayette County.  The Utility shall provide for the 


conservation, management, protection, control, use, and enhancement of stormwater through 


planning, acquisition, construction, installation, management, operation, maintenance, 


regulation, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater drainage systems to collect, 


control, convey, store, detain, retain, recharge, and treat stormwater and through regulation of 


stormwater management systems on private property.  It shall be the long-term objective of the 


County to provide a comparable and consistent level of stormwater service to similarly situated 







7 
 


properties throughout the service area. 


 


Section 6. By deleting Section 19-100 pertaining to the Requirements for Stormwater 


Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods in its entirety and by enacting in 


lieu thereof a new Section 19-100 pertaining to the Requirements for Stormwater 


Systems; Inspections and Enforcement Methods to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-100. Requirements for Stormwater Systems; Inspections and Enforcement 


Methods. 


The appropriate and efficacious management of the stormwater management system by 


the County on behalf of all its citizens and in compliance with applicable state and federal law 


places necessary and appropriate obligations on private property owners as well.  The 


Stormwater Utility may provide for inspection of private stormwater drainage systems and/or 


facilities to ascertain that the stormwater drainage systems and/or facilities are functioning as 


designed and approved by the County. 


 (a) All property owners of improved property within unincorporated Fayette County 


shall provide, manage, maintain, and operate on-site stormwater management systems sufficient 


to collect, convey, detain, and discharge stormwater runoff in a safe manner consistent with all 


applicable County development regulations, ordinances, and State and Federal laws.  Any 


failure to meet this obligation shall constitute a violation of this article and be subject to citation 


and prosecution in the Fayette County State Court.  Each day such violation exists shall 


constitute a separate offense, subject to the penalties set forth in Section 1-8 of the Code of 







8 
 


Fayette County. 


 (b) The County shall have the right, pursuant to the authority of this ordinance, for 


its designated officers and employees to enter upon private and public property owned by 


entities other than the County, upon reasonable notice to the owner thereof, to inspect the 


property and conduct surveys and engineering tests thereon in order to assure compliance. 


 (c) Drainage systems located on private property that are connected to the County’s 


stormwater drainage system shall be permitted and improved by the property owner to ensure 


proper function to the public system. 


 (d) In the event a public nuisance is deemed to exist by the Stormwater Management 


Department, the County may elect to sue in the Superior Court of Fayette County to abate such 


nuisance. 


 


Section 7. By deleting Section 19-101 pertaining to Stormwater Service Chares in its 


entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a new Section 19-101 pertaining to 


Stormwater Service Charges to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-101. Stormwater Service Charges. 


(a) The Stormwater Utility shall recover the cost of providing stormwater services 


and facilities by imposing a stormwater user fee on all developed properties within the service 


area in a fair and equitable manner.  The Stormwater Utility shall apportion the cost of 


delivering stormwater services to all developed properties based on the demand the property 







9 
 


places on the County's stormwater management program and the stormwater services provided 


by the County. 


(b) It shall be the goal of the Board of Commissioners to establish stormwater user 


fee rates that are fair, equitable and reasonable.  Such fee shall be sufficient to support the cost 


of the stormwater management services, including but not limited to, the payment of principal 


and interest on debt obligations, lease payments, operating expenses, capital outlays, non-


operating expenses, provisions for prudent reserves and other costs as deemed appropriate by 


the County.  Additional funding sources are also available to offset this fee , such as special 


service fees and charges deemed appropriate by the Board of Commissioners to customers for 


services, systems, and/or facilities related to stormwater management (e.g., credit application 


fees, plan review fees, development inspection fees, regulatory compliance inspection fees, 


special assessments and other fees related to provision of stormwater management services). 


(c) The basis for calculation of the stormwater user fee rate to all developed property 


within the County is established in this article.  The County shall assign or determine the amount 


of impervious area and other pertinent factors as may be needed for the fair, reasonable and 


equitable allocation of the costs to deliver stormwater management services and to calculate the 


stormwater user fee charges for all developed properties in the County. 


 (1) User-Fee Rate Calculation. 


  (A) Properties shall be treated as containing one billing unit for each 


1,000 square feet of impervious area located on the property to establish the total 


number of billing units.  The total square footage of impervious area will be 


rounded down to the nearest 1,000-foot  increment.  (Ex. A property with 1,990 


square feet of impervious area shall comprise one (1) equivalent runoff unit.) 







10 
 


  (B) Gravel and compacted soils shall be calculated as 0.85 equivalent 


runoff units, because of the hydrologic response characteristics of these 


materials.  (Ex. A property with 2,000 square feet of gravel area shall be 


equivalent to 1,700 square feet and then rounded down to one (1) equivalent 


runoff unit.) 


 (2) Calculation of Rate. The periodic stormwater use fee charges imposed 


on all developed properties shall be a rate of $0.35 per 1000 square feet of impervious 


surface per month. 


 


Section 8. By deleting Section 19-102 pertaining to Stormwater User-Fee Billing/ 


Collections, and Delinquencies in its entirety and by enacting in lieu thereof a 


new Section 19-102 pertaining to Stormwater User-Fee Billing/Collections, and 


Delinquencies to read as follows: 


 


Section 19-102. Stormwater User-Fee Billing, Collections, and Delinquencies. 


(a) Billing and Collections. 


(1) Stormwater user fee charges shall begin to accrue on January 1, 2012, and 


shall be billed periodically, thereafter to customers, except as specific exemptions 


and credits may apply.  A bill for stormwater user fee charges may be sent 


through the United States Postal Service or by alternative means, notifying the 


owner of the property of the amount of the stormwater user fee charge, less 


credits; and the date the payment is due. 


(b) Delinquencies. 







11 
 


(1) Failure to receive a bill shall not be justification for nonpayment. 


Regardless of the party to whom the bill is initially directed, the owner of each 


developed property is subject to stormwater user fee charges and shall be obligated to 


pay stormwater user fee charges and any interest on delinquent stormwater user fee 


charge payments on the date the bill is due. 


(2) A late charge of ten (10%) percent shall be assessed against the customer 


for the unpaid balance of any Stormwater Utility user fee charge that becomes 


delinquent. In addition, the County shall assess all costs of collection, including 


attorney’s fees and court costs, against the property owner. 


 


Section 9. By deleting subsection (a) (3) from Section 19-103 pertaining to Exemptions and 


Credits Applicable to Stormwater Service Charges in its entirety and by enacting 


in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) (3) to Section 19-103 pertaining to 


Exemptions and Credits Applicable to Stormwater Charges to read as follows: 


 


(3) Fayette County-owned streets and rights-of-way shall be exempt from 


stormwater user fee charges.  This exemption is in consideration for the County allowing 


the Stormwater Utility to use the County’s existing street, curbs, gutters, drainage ways 


and ditches, storm sewers, culverts, inlets, catch basins, pipes, head walls and other 


structures, natural and man-made, that controls and diverts surface water for the 


purposes of collecting, diverting, transporting and controlling surface and storm waters. 


However, other improved property owned and used for County purposes shall not be 







12 
 


exempt from stormwater user fee charges. 


 


Section 10. By deleting subsection (a) of Section 19-105 pertaining to Appeals in its entirety 


and by enacting in lieu thereof a new subsection (a) to Section 19-105 pertaining 


to Appeals to read as follows: 


 


(a) An appeal must be filed in writing with the Fayette County Stormwater 


Management Director.  In the case of service charge appeals, the appeal shall include a survey 


prepared by a registered land surveyor or professional engineer containing information on the 


total property area, the impervious surface area, and any other features or conditions that 


influence the hydrologic response of the property to rainfall events. 


 
Section 11. Should any word, phrase or sentence of this ordinance be deemed 


unconstitutional by a court of competent jurisdiction, it is the intent of the Board 


of Commissioners that such unconstitutional parts shall be severed from this 


Ordinance and this Ordinance will continue to be in force and effect as if such 


unconstitutional parts had never been a part of this Ordinance. 


 
Section 12. All ordinances or resolutions and parts of ordinances or resolutions in conflict 


herewith are hereby expressly repealed. 


 
Section 13. The effective date of this Ordinance shall be May 23, 2013. 
 


 


 


 


 







13 
 


SO ORDAINED this ____ day of _________________, 2013. 
 
  


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS OF 


FAYETTE COUNTY, GEORGIA 


 


(SEAL) 
 


By:___________________________________ 


                 Steve Brown, Chairman 
 
ATTEST: 


 
 
 
______________________________ 
Floyd Jones, Clerk 







 


 


 
  


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 


Stormwater Management Department 


April 2013 


Deleted: November 


Deleted: 1



fjones

Typewritten Text

Attachment 3







 


 







 


1 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION  


Stormwater Utility user fee credits are given to property owners for being good stewards of the 
natural water resources in Fayette County by performing stormwater best management practices 
(BMPs). The cumulative effect of these BMPs are intended to reduce demand/impact on the 
Fayette County Stormwater Management Programs, improve water quality, reduce flooding, and 
provide a cleaner natural resource for Fayette County.  


These credits, when applied to the customer’s account, will reduce the customer’s user fee amount. 
These credits will also be reviewed on a periodic basis by the County to insure compliance with this 
Stormwater Utility Credit Manual (the Manual.)  


Summary of Stormwater User Fee Credits  


Table 1 summarizes both structural and non-structural user fee credits available to the Stormwater 
Utility customers outlined in this manual.  Per County policy, the maximum user fee credit that a 
customer account can receive is 100% for No-impact parcels and 50% for all other parcels.  


Table 1- Stormwater User Fee Credits 


    Potential Stormwater User Fee Credit 


Best Management Practice  Term1  
Single Family 


Residential (SFR)  
Non Single Family 
Residential (NSFR)  


Residential Environmental Technology  3 YEARS 20 %   
     


Low-Impact Parcel 
2 acres2 5 YEARS 10 %   
5 acres2 5 YEARS 15 %   
10 acres2 5 YEARS 20% 


 15 acres2 5 YEARS 25% 
 No-impact Parcel Never Expires 100 % 100%  


    
Residential Pond 1 YEAR 10% 


 Septic Tank Maintenance  5 YEARS 20 % 20%  


Natural Area Preservation  
Easement 
Duration 20% 20 % 


Water Resources Education Programs   1 YEAR   50 % 
NPDES Industrial Stormwater General 
Permit Compliance   1 YEAR   10 % 


Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria3   
Water Quality 3 YEARS   10 % 


Channel Protection 3 YEARS   10 % 
Overbank Flood Protection 3 YEARS   10 % 


Extreme Flood Protection 3 YEARS   10 % 


Deleted: Rain Barrels 


Deleted: 3 YEARS


Deleted: 20 %


Deleted: 5 YEARS


Deleted: Watershed Stewardship  


Deleted: 1 YEARS


Deleted: 10 %


Deleted:  


Deleted: 5 YEARS


Deleted: S


Deleted: S







 


2 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


 
1- Credits are applicable as long as the property owner of multiple owners (where applicable) account(s) are in good standing 
with Fayette County Stormwater Management. 
2-Shall be automatically applied to all parcels which meet the condition, as long as the property owner’s account is in good 
standing with Fayette County Stormwater Management.  
3- Residential customers that are part of a larger common development (or subdivision) can collectively apply for credits 
related to the GSMM Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria.  


Deleted: 2







 


3 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 2 - Definitions  


Except as specifically defined in this manual, all words used in this title have their customary dictionary 
definitions. For the purpose of this title, certain words or terms used are defined as follows:   


Best Management Practice (BMP):


Credit.  A conditional reduction in the amount of a customer’s stormwater user fee charge in 
recognition of a customer’s efforts to mitigate the stormwater runoff impact that developed property 
has on the County stormwater management systems, and/or the efforts of a customer to offset the 
County’s cost for implementation of the stormwater management program activities that include, but 
not limited to, public education, watershed stewardship, etc.  


  Schedules of activities, general good housekeeping practices, 
pollution prevention and educational practices, maintenance procedures, and other management 
practices to prevent or reduce the discharge of pollutants directly or indirectly to stormwater, 
receiving waters, or stormwater conveyance systems. BMPs also include treatment practices, flood 
controls, operating procedures, and practices to control site runoff, spillage or leaks, sludge or 
water disposal, or drainage from raw materials storage.  


County. The unincorporated jurisdictional boundaries of Fayette County, Georgia.  For purposes of this 
ordinance may also be referred to in this ordinance as Fayette County or the County. 


Developed Land. All real property altered from its natural state by grading, paving, compaction, 
construction of structures, impervious services, or drainage works so that hydrologic response of the 
property is changed from that which would occur in the natural undeveloped condition.  


Georgia Stormwater Management Manual. A stormwater technical guidance manual published by the 
Atlanta Regional Commission. The ‘Georgia Stormwater Management Manual’ is hereby incorporated by 
reference into this ordinance. 
 
Impervious Area/Impervious Surface.  Areas or surfaces that prevent or impede the infiltration of 
stormwater into the soil.  The following types of surfaces will be considered "impervious" for purposes 
of the stormwater utility: the projected area of buildings; asphalt-, concrete-, brick-, or stone-paved 
areas; improved vehicular drives and parking areas; compacted gravel and soil surfaces; fabric or plastic 
coverings; and other surfaces that prevent or impede the natural infiltration of stormwater runoff or 
that change the hydrologic response of the property that existed prior to development. 


Non-Single Family Residential Property (NSFR).  Developed property that consists of various 
non-residential land uses including, but not limited to: (1) multi-family, commercial, office/institutional, 
public, transportation, industrial, manufacturing and storage buildings and facilities; (2) parking lots, 
parks, public and private schools, universities and hospitals; (3) streets, roads, water and wastewater 
treatment plants; and (4) any other form of use not specifically defined as a single family residential 
property. 


Single-Family Residential Property (SFR).  Developed property containing at least one dwelling with 
one (1) or more bedrooms, a bathroom, and cooling facilities, designed for occupancy by one or more 
persons, regardless of relationship, living as a single-family unit.  Improved property may be classified 
as single-family residential even if supplemental detached dwelling units are present that include but 
not limited to garages, carports, storage buildings and barns. 







 


4 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Stormwater Customers.  All persons, properties, and entities served by and/or benefiting from the 
utility's acquisition, management, maintenance, extension, and improvement of the public stormwater 
management systems and facilities and regulation of public and private stormwater systems, facilities, 
and activities related thereto, and persons, properties, and entities which will ultimately be served or 
benefited as a result of the stormwater management program.  


Stormwater Drainage System.  A system designed to provide adequate surface drainage that includes 
inlets, street and roadway gutters, ditches, small channels, swales and underground piping systems. 


Stormwater Management Services.   All services provided by the County that relate to the: 
1. Transfer, control, conveyance or movement of stormwater runoff through the Fayette County 


Stormwater Management System; 
2. Maintenance, repair and replacement of existing stormwater drainage systems; 
3. Regulation of the use of stormwater management services and systems; and, 
4. Compliance with applicable state and federal stormwater management regulations and permit 


requirements. 
Stormwater management services may address the quality of stormwater runoff as well as the quantity 
thereof. 


Stormwater Management System. The structural and nonstructural stormwater drainage systems, 
facilities, operations, and programs that address the issues of drainage management (flooding) and 
environmental quality (pollution, erosion and sedimentation) of receiving rivers, streams, creeks, lakes, 
ponds, and reservoirs through improvements, maintenance, regulation and funding of plants, works, 
instrumentalities and properties used or useful in the collection, retention, detention, and treatment of 
stormwater or surface water drainage.  


Undeveloped Land.   Land in its unaltered natural state or which has been modified to such minimal 
degree as to have a hydrologic response comparable to land in an unaltered natural state shall be 
deemed undeveloped. Undeveloped land shall have no pavement, asphalt, or compacted gravel surfaces 
or structures which create an impervious surface that would prevent infiltration of stormwater or cause 
stormwater to collect, concentrate, or flow in a manner materially different than that which would 
occur if the land was in an unaltered natural state. 







 


5 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 







 


6 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Section 3 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Policies  


The County has established the following general policies regarding consideration and approval of 
stormwater user fee credits. Please refer to Section 19-103 of the Stormwater Management 
Ordinance for additional guidance and requirements pertaining to the stormwater user fee credits.  


• Credit applications for existing facilities may be submitted at any time. However, the credit 
will be applied retroactively to the first stormwater bill cycle only for those credit 
applications received within one year from the end of the month of the first stormwater 
billing. After that time it will be applied in the next billing cycle after the credit has been 
approved.  


• Credit applications for new construction or redevelopment may be submitted once the 
BMPs are in place, approved by the County and the stormwater billing is scheduled.  


• A group of customers can only apply for a credit if: 


o the property owners enter a Memorandum of Agreement (MOA); 


o all property signing the MOA are served by the same BMP(s), and; 


o the MOA is not canceled at any time during the term of the credit.  


• A residential homeowner’s association (HOA), or a common development such as a 
multi-family apartment complex and/or a manufactured home park, which has its own 
properly designed, constructed, and maintained stormwater BMP(s) should contact the 
County Stormwater Management Department to determine if the HOA members, or 
common development customers, are eligible for a credit.  For the purposes of the credit, 
the BMP(s) must be located on a parcel that is platted within the common development and 
owned by the HOA (or a single property owner within the subdivision or common 
development).  BMPs located on County owned properties are not eligible for credits to 
private property owners.  Additionally, BMPs that the County maintains through a 
dedicated maintenance easement or other legal agreement though lying within private 
property cannot be used by the customer for credit purposes.  


o For the purposes of awarding the credit, the credit being applied for must be met for 
the entire common development and must meet the Manual criteria.    


o Any resulting credit awarded will be divided among eligible customers within the 
HOA or the common development. 


 







 


7 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Section 4 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Application Process  


The application for a stormwater user fee credit is as follows: 


1. The customer shall obtain a copy of this manual (available online or in the Fayette County 
Stormwater Management Office) and determine if a credit is applicable to their property. 
 


2. If applicable, the customer shall submit a completed application package, which can be 
found in the appendices of this document, for review based on this manual and an executed 
right of Entry Agreement (if need for inspection purposes.) 
 


3. The County will review the application package and notify the customer if the request is 
approved or denied within 30 days of receipt of the completed application. Incomplete 
application packages will not be considered by the County and will be returned to the 
customer for completion and/or revision.  If the customer’s application is not approved, 
the County send written notification explaining the denial.   
 


4. If the credit application is approved, the County will apply the stormwater user fee credit to 
the next customer billing cycle, except those applications submitted and approved before 
June 1, 2012. Those applications submitted and approved before June 1, 2012 shall be 
retro-actively applied up to the time the user fee was initiated.   
 


5. Once approved the County may choose to conduct an onsite inspection of the applicant’s 
property, or review of non-structural practices, to ensure conformance to the manuals 
criteria. As such, part of a completed application the customer must grant the County a 
Right-of-Entry as outlined in Appendix X. This Right-of-Entry shall be valid for the entire time 
in which the credit is valid.  


Note: Stormwater user fee credits expire automatically at the end of the credit term.  It 
will be the responsibility of the customer to renew the credit at the appropriate time by 
resubmitting the application package for review and approval by the County. If a 
customer’s account is not in good standing with Fayette County Stormwater Management 
all credits (including shared credits) will be voided. The property(s) owner will need to 
reapply for the credits once the account is in good standing.   


 


 


 


 







 


8 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


SECTION 5 – CREDIT POLICY AND PROCEDURES  


This section explains the procedures involved in applying for a stormwater user fee credit.  The 
procedures include step-by-step instructions and eligibility requirements for obtaining the 
Stormwater Utility credit.  


Listed below are the stormwater user fee credits that Stormwater Utility customers are eligible to 
apply for and secure.  Customers should follow the credit application procedures outlined herein 
for each credit they desire to secure.  


• Residential Environmental Technology  


• Low-Impact Parcel  


• No-impact Parcel 


•  


• Residential Pond 


• Septic Tank Maintenance  


• Natural Area Preservation  


• Water Resources Education Programs   


• NPDES Industrial Stormwater General Permit Compliance   


• Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria   


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Water Quality Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Channel Protection Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Overbank Flood Protection Volume  


o Management of Stormwater Runoff Extreme Flood Protection Volume 


 


In order to receive credits, the customer shall continue to conduct maintenance on all structural 
credits and will provide Fayette County Stormwater with the appropriate information for all 
non-structural credits.   


Deleted: <#>Rain Barrels ¶


Deleted: Watershed Stewardship  







 


9 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Residential Environmental Technology (10% credit for 3 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


This credit shall be applied to eligible, 
county approved residential 
environmental technologies. These may 
include but are not limited to cisterns, rain 
gardens, pervious pavements, etc. Home 
owners should work with the County 
Stormwater Utility manager to select the 
appropriate Residential Environmental 
Technology. All residential environmental 
technologies shall be designed using the 
GSMM standards; if the GSMM does not 
have a standard for a technology other 
technical documentation may be used at 
the discretion of the Stormwater Utility 
manager.  


The credit shall be applied once 
documentation has been given to the 
Stormwater Utility manager confirming 
installation of the Residential 
Environmental Technology. 


The customer shall continue to maintain 
the Residential Environmental Technology 
during the full credit term of three years. Renewal of the stormwater user fee credit shall be in 
accordance with the procedures outlined in this Manual.  


Deleted: Rain Barrels (up to 20% for 3 years) ¶
Eligible Customer Classes: SFR¶
<sp>The County recognizes that reducing the 
amount of runoff leaving a SFR property/site via 
interception and storage in rain barrels not only 
reduces the demand on the downstream drainage 
network but also reduces the need for irrigation 
water from the potable water system.  As such, 
the County has implemented a credit for those SFR 
customers who install rain barrels on their property 
to intercept and store runoff. ¶
<sp><sp>A credit shall apply to those SFR customers 
who can provide documentation that either ½ or all 
of the downspouts from their roof gutter system are 
connected to a rain barrel of at least 40 gallons in 
size.  For example, if a home has 4 downspouts 
then a total of 4 rain barrels would need to be 
installed such that a rain barrel has been placed 
under each discharge point in order to receive the 
maximum credit of 20% off their total stormwater 
user fee.  If a homeowner is unable to install rain 
barrels on all downspouts, then they may install rain 
barrels on ½ of their downspouts and be eligible for 
a credit of 10%.  Each SFR customer shall utilize 
the following procedures: ¶
The customer shall provide documentation via a 
sketch of the home and/or photographs of the rain 
barrels such that each downspout is connected to 
an approved rain barrel device. ¶
Approved rain barrels shall consist of a water tight 
barrel with a capacity of 40 gallons or more that 
intercepts runoff from a downspout.  Additionally, 
the rain barrel must have a spigot where stored 
runoff water can be drained in a controlled manner 
at a later time. ¶
If the SFR customer meets all the requirements 
above, the customer will receive a stormwater user 
fee credit of up to 20% off their stormwater user fee 
as outlined herein for a period of five years.   ¶
The customer shall continue to maintain the SFR 
rain barrels during the full credit term of five years. 
Renewal of the stormwater user fee credit shall be 
in accordance with the procedures outlined in this 
Manual.  ¶


Formatted: Font: +Body, 11.5 pt


Formatted: Font: +Body, 11.5 pt







 


10 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Low-Impact Parcel (10%  ,15% 20%, or 25% credit for 5 years)   


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


There are several areas in the County 
where the amount of impervious area, in 
comparison to the total lot size, is 
relatively small. The resulting impact is a 
reduction of runoff impacts since most of 
the parcel is in an undeveloped or low 
impact. 


A credit of 10% shall apply automatically 
to all SFR customers whose parcels are 
larger than 2 acres and their impervious 
area is less than 10% of the total parcel.  


A credit of 15% shall apply automatically 
to all SFR customers whose parcels are 
larger than 5 acres and their impervious 
area is less than 10% of the total parcel.  


A credit of 20% shall apply automatically to all SFR customers whose parcels are larger than 10 
acres and their impervious area is less than 10% of the total parcel. 


A credit of 25% shall apply automatically to all SFR customers whose parcels are larger than 15 
acres and their impervious area is less than 10% of the total parcel.  


Note: If the stormwater utility fee is delinquent or in bad standings with the County, the credit 
will be revoked and the customer will have to reapply for the credit.  


Deleted: or







 


11 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


No-Impact Parcel (100%) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR and NSFR 


  


A property or site that does not contribute to 
the stormwater runoff to the County’s public 
drainage system either directly or indirectly 
may be eligible for a No-impact stormwater 
user fee credit.  


The No-impact Parcel credit is available to 
customers who can demonstrate that the 
following conditions exist with regard to their 
property/site:   


Stormwater runoff after leaving the property 
does not drain or discharge to a 
County-owned drainage facility and/or 
system and ultimately drains or discharges to 
the drainage system of another local 
government or state waters such that the 
site discharge does not flow through the 
Fayette County public drainage system at any 


point downstream and/or Water Supply Watershed as defined by Rules of Georgia Department 
of Natural Resources Environmental Protection Division Chapter 391-3-16 Rules for 
Environmental Planning Criteria.  


A credit of up to 100% will automatically be applied to all No-Impact Parcels.  


Deleted:  for 5 years


Deleted: off the stormwater user fee charge is 
available for No-impact parcel for a period of five 
years. ¶
The customer shall provide the County the 
necessary information pertaining to the drainage 
conveyance from their property to the appropriate 
downstream points.  This information should be 
documented in the form of a topographical (Fayette 
County GIS LiDar base topology is acceptable) based 
drainage map and a statement of accuracy prepared 
by a Georgia Professional Engineer, or Land 
Surveyor, unless otherwise approved by the 
Stormwater Utility Manager.   ¶


Deleted: Watershed Stewardship (10% for 1 year)¶
Eligible Customer Classes: SFR¶
<sp> ¶
The County believes that education and natural 
resource protection is a vital part of holistic 
stormwater management program and a customer 
can receive credit for their efforts in this watershed 
stewardship. This credit is given for customers who 
participate in County approved programs including 
but not limited to Rivers Alive, Adopt-A-Stream, 
storm drain marking, etc. To receive the credit the 
customer must provide the participatory 
certification for the County’s Watershed 
Stewardship Program for each event. ¶
Please see the County for approval any event not 
conducted by or sponsored by the County.¶
¶
A 10% credit off the stormwater user fee is available 
for the Watershed Stewardship Credit for a period 
of one year.   ¶


Formatted: Font: +Body, 11.5 pt, Italic







 


12 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 







 


13 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Residential Pond Credit (10% credit for 1 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR 


Customers are eligible for a 
stormwater user fee credit if the 
customer owns a pond. The pond must 
meet the following criteria: 


• have been constructed prior to 
2010 or built in accordance 
with all Federal, State and 
Local regulations; 


• Be located entirely on a parcel 
with more than 2 acres; and 


• The ponds water surface area 
must be great than or equal to 
the amount of impervious area 
on the parcel; 


 


The customer shall provide the county with all applicable documentation that supports the criteria 
listed above. All applicants for the residential pond credit will receive from the Stormwater 
Management Department information on pond and dam/impoundment maintenance. 


Formatted: Font: +Body, 11.5 pt, Bold, Font
color: Background 1


Formatted: Bulleted + Level: 1 + Aligned at: 
0.25" + Indent at:  0.5"


Deleted: ¶







 


14 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Septic Tank Maintenance (20% for 5 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR and NSFR 


 Customers are eligible for a stormwater 
user fee credit if the customer conducts 
approved maintenance activities on 
existing septic systems utilized for the 
customer’s property. Customers that have 
their septic tanks pumped out and/or 
maintained on a regular basis (minimum of 
every five years) can receive a credit.   


The customer shall provide receipt 
documentation with maintenance 
preformed, date and address from a 
certified hauler of septic waste as long as 
the date of maintenance and address are 
noted on the documentation (including 
receipts). The inspection/ maintenance 
needs to be performed within 6 months of 
the date of the application for a credit.  


A 20% credit off the stormwater user fee charge is available for five years for approved septic tank 
maintenance activities.  


 







 


15 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Natural Area Preservation (20% for the Easement Duration) 


Eligible Customer Classes: SFR and NSFR 


  


A stormwater credit may be granted when 
undisturbed natural areas are conserved on 
a site, thereby retaining their 
pre-development hydrologic and water 
quality characteristics. These areas can 
include: 


• Undeveloped land;   
• Federally recognized wetlands;  
• Lands containing Federally 


Endangered Species;  
• Undeveloped lands within stream 


buffers and/or floodplains; and  
• Constructed stormwater wetlands.  


The natural area must have a minimum 
contiguous area of 1 acre and must be 
located within an acceptable conservation 
easement instrument that ensures 
perpetual protection of the proposed area. 


The customer shall provide the County all 
applicable documentation regarding the conservation easement instrument, including but not 
limited to a plat of the proposed area, the page book and page number recorded at the Clerk’s 
office. 


The customer is eligible to receive a 1% credit for every 1% of the total area of the parcel that is 
permanently protected.  The customer can receive a maximum of up to a 20% credit for the time 
of the easement duration as indicated on the conservation easement instrument.  


 


Deleted: 5 years


Deleted:  sealed by a Georgia Professional Land 
Surveyor


Deleted: an unlimited period of time. 







 


16 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Water Resources Education (50% for 1 years) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  NSFR  


  


The County encourages and supports 
the efforts of both public and private 
organizations to educate and inform the 
public on the importance of water 
conservation and water resources 
issues.   


The Water Resources Education 
Program credit is available for 
educational services in all public or 
private K-12 educational systems. The 
education program must be consistent 
with the County’s approved stormwater 
management education program and 
must also be pre-approved by the 
County. The credit shall be available to 
eligible customers that teach at least 
500 participants in an approved Water 


Resources Education Program.  


The program must address the following elements: stormwater runoff/pollution prevention or 
water conservation. 


The person responsible for the customer account shall certify to the County Stormwater Utility 
Manager, that a water resources based curriculum is being taught at the facility and provide 
detailed documentation verifying the program.    


A 50% credit off the stormwater user fee is available for the Water Resources Education credit for a 
period of five years.  







 


17 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


NPDES Industrial Stormwater Permit (10% for 1 year) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  NSFR  


  


NSFR customers can receive a stormwater 
user fee credit by complying with 
applicable NPDES Industrial Stormwater 
General Permit requirements.  
Implementation of the applicable 
compliance requirements assists the 
County in addressing water quality 
impairment issues at the source prior to 
discharge into the County’s Stormwater 
Management System and/or State Waters.  
If the NSFR customer has properly secured 
coverage under the NPDES Industrial 
Stormwater General Permit, and is in 
compliance with all applicable 
requirements, i.e. development and 
implementation of a Stormwater Pollution 
Prevention Plan (SWP3), a credit 
application may be filed with the County to 
secure a credit.   


NSFR properties that operate NPDES 
Industrial Stormwater Permitted facility 
that must secure coverage per its Standard Industry Code (SIC) are eligible for a stormwater user 
fee credit.  For information regarding NPDES Industrial Stormwater Permit compliance 
requirements, please go to the Georgia Environmental Protection Division website. 
(www.gaepd.org) 


The credit amount available for NPDES Industrial Stormwater General Permit compliance is 10% off 
the stormwater user fee charge for a period of one year.  


In order to maintain the credit, the NSFR customer shall provide a copy of the NOI filed with the 
sate and send a copy of the annual report to the County Stormwater Utility Manager each year.  
Failure to make the required submittals could result in forfeiture of the stormwater user fee credit.    



http://www.gaepd.org/�





 


18 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria (up to 40%) 


Eligible Customer Classes:  NSFR*  


* SFR customers that are part of a larger common development (or subdivision) can collectively apply for the credits 
related to the GSMM Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria after consultation with the Stormwater Utility Manager to 
establish potential eligibility.  


 The Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria is an 
integrated approach to addressing stormwater 
runoff impacts associated with both water 
quality and quantity issues.  Each of the unified 
stormwater sizing criteria is intended to be used 
in conjunction with the others to address the 
overall stormwater runoff impacts from a 
development site.  When used as an overall set 
of criteria, the unified stormwater sizing criteria 
control and manage the entire range of 
stormwater runoff events from the smallest 
storm events to the largest storm events (i.e. the 
100- year storm).  


The customer shall provide a hydrology report 
(or comparable document) prepared by and 


sealed by a Georgia Professional Engineer or Professional Hydrologist demonstrating compliance 
with the requirements and criteria outlined herein. Table 3 presents each treatment level with a 
description of each, as provided in the GSMM. 


A 10% credit off the stormwater user fee charge per the unified stormwater sizing criteria element 
is available for a period of three years.  


Table 3:  Unified Stormwater Sizing Criteria  
Treatment Level  Maximum Available 


Credit  
Criteria Description  


Water Quality  10%  Treat the runoff from 85% of the storms that occur in an average year. Per 
the GSMM, this equates to providing water quality treatment for the runoff 
resulting from a rainfall depth of 1.2 inches. Reduce average annual 
post-development TSS loadings by 80%.  


Channel Protection  10%  Provide extended detention of the 1-year storm event released over a 
period of 24 hours to reduce bankfull flows and protect downstream 
channels from erosive velocities and unstable conditions.  


Overbank Flood Protection  10%  Provide peak discharge control of the 25-year storm event such that the 
post-development peak rate does not exceed the predevelopment rate to 
reduce overbank flooding.  


Extreme Flood Protection  10%  Evaluate the effects of the 100-year storm on the stormwater management 
system, adjacent property, and downstream facilities and property. Manage 
the impacts of the extreme storm event through detention controls and/or 
floodplain management.  


Note:  The criteria description for each stormwater runoff treatment level is in general accordance with information published in the GSMM and the CSS.  


  







 


19 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


The customer shall continue to conduct maintenance as per the maintenance plan provided with 
the original application.  The customer may reapply for the credit every three years.  If a 
customer is reapplying for the unified stormwater sizing criteria user fee credit and site conditions 
have not changed since the original application, the application only needs to include a copy of the 
original design information and certification that all the necessary maintenance has been 
performed per the maintenance plan for re-issuance of the credit.  If significant changes to the site 
layout and/or site stormwater controls has occurred, the County may request design information be 
updated to document compliance with Manual criteria.    


In order to maintain eligibility for the credit, the customer must properly maintain the onsite 
stormwater controls that were documented in the user fee credit application for the term specified 
in the Manual.  Furthermore, all stormwater control design, construction and maintenance shall 
be done in strict accordance with the County’s current ordinances and design standards related to 
stormwater management.  







 


20 Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual | Fayette County, Georgia 
 


STORMWATER USER FEE CREDIT APPLICATION FORMS & OTHER 
MISCELLANEOUS FORMS  


  


Stormwater user fee credit applications are required to secure approval of all credits offered in this 
Manual.  The forms and documents attached to the appendices are summarized below.  


  


Appendix A includes the credit application form for the SFR stormwater user fee credits described 
in this Manual.    


 


Appendix B includes the credit application form for the NSFR stormwater user fee credits described 
in this Manual.    


 


Appendix C includes the credit application forms for each available credit. 


 


Appendix D includes miscellaneous forms required as part of the stormwater user fee credit 
application process, including a Right-of-Entry Agreement.  







 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix A 


SFR Credit Application 







 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix B 


NSFR Credit Application 







 


 







 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix C 


Credit Forms 







 


 







 


 


 


Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual 
Appendix D 


Right-of-Entry Agreement 





		Stormwater- Ordinance 2013-03 Agenda Request File

		Stormwater- Ordinance 2013-03 Backup

		Stormwater- Ordinance 2013-03 Backup-1

		Stormwater- Ordinance 2013-03 Backup

		1 - Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual Update 4-18-2013

		SECTION 1 – GENERAL INFORMATION

		SECTION 2 - Definitions

		Section 3 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Policies

		Section 4 - Stormwater User Fee Credit Application Process

		SECTION 5 – CREDIT POLICY AND PROCEDURES














AgendaAgendaAgendaAgenda
Board of Commissioners


May 23, 2013
 7:00 P.M.


Call to Order, Invocation, Pledge of Allegiance


Acceptance of Agenda


PRESENTATION / RECOGNITION:


PUBLIC HEARING:


PUBLIC COMMENT:


CONSENT AGENDA:


1. Approval of the Water Committee’s recommendation to approve an
increase of $200.000.00 in the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for line extensions.


2. Approval of the May 9, 2013 Board of Commissioners Minutes and the
May 13, 2013 Board of Commissioners Budget Presentation Minutes.


OLD BUSINESS:


3. Discussion of a draft Ethics Ordinance prepared by Interim County
Attorney Dennis Davenport.


NEW BUSINESS:


4. Consideration of Commissioner McCarty’s recommendation to appoint
Reverend John Culbreath to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for
a term to begin immediately and to expire on June 30, 2014, in order to fill the
unexpired term resigned by Ms. Terri Willis.


5. Consideration of Commissioner McCarty’s recommendation to appoint Ms.
Linda Lane to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board for a three-year
term to begin immediately and to expire on May 23, 2016, in order to fill a new
position on the Board.


6. Consideration of Chairman Brown’s recommendation to appoint Ms. Letitia
“Tish” Naghise, County Administrator Steve Rapson, and Commissioner
Randy Ognio to serve on Fayette County’s Public Facilities Authority for one-
year terms and with said terms beginning immediately.


BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS


Steve Brown, Chairman
Charles Oddo, Vice Chairman


David Barlow
Allen McCarty
Randy Ognio


i


STAFF


Steve Rapson, County Administrator
Dennis Davenport, Interim County


Attorney
Floyd Jones, County Clerk


i


MEETING LOCATION
Public Meeting Room
Administrative Complex
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214


i


MEETING TIMES
2nd and 4th Thursday each month 7:00 pm


i


COMMISSION OFFICE
Administrative Complex


Suite 100
140 Stonewall Avenue
Fayetteville, GA 30214
Phone: 770.305.5200
Fax: 770.305.5210


i


WEB SITE


www.fayettecountyga.gov


i


E-MAIL


administration@fayettecountyga.gov







Agenda
May 23, 2013
Page Number 2


7. Consideration of the City of Peachtree City’s request to annex four (4) properties totaling 7.398 acres located
between State Route 54 West and Sumner Road, and to rezone said properties from C-C Conditional
(Community-Commercial) and O-I (Office-Institutional) to O-I (Office-Institutional).


8. Discussion of square-footage limitations for accessory structures in residential zonings.


9. Discussion of Fayette County’s height restrictions on uninhabitable building structures such as church steeples
and high-frame roofs.


10. Discussion of Conditional Use Requirements for churches and existing residential structures that do not meet
the Conditional Use Requirements.


11. Consideration of staff’s recommendation to adopt Ordinance 2013-03 amending Fayette County Code, Chapter
19, Article IV, Stormwater Management, and changing the Stormwater Utility Credit Technical Manual.


12. Consideration of the Interim County Attorney’s recommendation to enter into an Intergovernmental Agreement
between Fayette County, Georgia and the Town of Woolsey, Georgia regarding the Town of Woolsey’s Soil
Erosion, Sedimentation, and Pollution Control Ordinance.


13. Consideration of staff’s request to approve the Bid for Kenwood Road Bridge at Morning Creek (SPLOST
Project No. B-3) to the low-bidder, McCarthy Improvement Company, in the amount of $1,390,422.50, for the
construction of a new bridge on Kenwood Road over Morning Creek, and authorization for the Chairman to sign
the contract and related documents.


14. Approval of staff’s recommendation to award Proposal P869- Dam Engineering Services, to Walden, Ashworth
& Associates, Inc. for Margaret Phillips Lake Dam, in an amount not to exceed $34,000, and authorization for
the County Administrator to sign the contract and related documents.


15. Discussion of the Kozisek Dam and Emerald Lake Dam.


16. Consideration of the Telecommuting Committee’s recommendation to approve both the Teleworking Policy
448.20 and the Fayette County Teleworking Agreement; officially allowing the county to begin the process of
implementing a Teleworking pilot program.


17. Approval of a reduction in force for the Marshal’s Department, per Separation of Employment and Policy 452.01


18. Update: 2013 Board of Commissioners’ Changes in Transparency.


19. Emergency Procurement for Professional Services Contract for the Fayette County Water System’s Taste and
Odor Project.  A copy of the contract will be provided on the dais.


ADMINISTRATOR’S REPORTS:


ATTORNEY’S REPORTS:


COMMISSIONERS’ REPORTS:


ADJOURNMENT:








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also 


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Water System Tony Parrott


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve an increase of $200,000.00 in the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for line 
extensions.


The Water System budgeted $500,000.00 in the current budget for waterline extensions.   
 
Due to the drought of the past two years, the water table has dropped and Fayette County citizens are having problems with their wells.  
There has been an increase this year of requests for line extensions, and there are more inquiries that need to be funded during this 
fiscal year.


Approval of the Water Committee's recommendation to approve an increase of $200,000.00 in the Fiscal Year 2013 budget for line 
extensions.


Funds are available in the Renewal & Extension fund. (50541100-610915)


No


No No


Yes


Not Applicable Yes


The Renewal and Extension Fund is established to handle these types of requests.  Waterline extensions equate to an expansion of the 
Water System's customer base.


ConsentThursday, May 23, 2013








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Discussion of square-footage limitations for accessory structures in residential zonings.


Chairman Brown is requesting the Planning Commission to examine and review the preparation of ordinance changes allowing detached 


accessory structures, such as recreational gyms, on lot sizes of 5-acres or more. 


 


There are many professional athletes, car enthusiasts, and others who want to reside in Fayette County, but who also want to have 


accessory buildings for gyms or collectible automobile storage.   


 


Chairman Brown would like to insure that Fayette County can attract such residents, and their spending power, in a thoughtful manner. 


Chairman Brown is seeking the Board's approval to direct the Planning Commission to review square-footage limitations for accessory 


buildings in residential zonings, and to work on the preparation of an ordinance that will allow detached accessory structures on lot sizes 


of 5-acres or more.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







Date:  May 14, 2013 


 


To:  Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


From:  Pete Frisina 


 


Subject: Discussion of Square Footage Limitations for Accessory Structures in Residential 


Zonings. 


 


 


Accessory structures are regulated under Article V, Sec. 5-20.  Accessory Structures and Uses, of 


the Fayette County Zoning Ordinance.  In A-R and all residential zoning districts, each lot is 


limited to the following in terms of the number and size of accessory structures: 


Number and Size.  The number and size of accessory structures shall conform to the 


requirements described herein.   


1. Accessory structures shall be limited to one (1) of the following options: 


a. Two (2) accessory structures, per individual lot, that shall not 


exceed a combined total of 1,800 square feet of floor area (see 


Total Square Footage.) The square footage of the largest accessory 


structure shall not exceed the total square footage of the principal 


structure.  One (1) of these accessory structures may include up to 


700 square feet of heated and finished floor area to be utilized as a 


guest house.  An accessory structure combined with a guest house, 


under this option, shall be deemed as one (1) accessory structure; 


or (Amended 05/24/12) 


 


b. One (1) accessory structure, per individual lot, not to exceed 1,800 


square feet of floor area (see Total Square Footage), or the total 


square footage of the principal structure, whichever is less.  This 


accessory structure may include up to 700 square feet of heated 


and finished floor area to be utilized as a guest house.  An 


accessory structure combined with a guest house, under this 


option, shall be deemed as one (1) accessory structure.  (Amended 


05/24/12) 


 


Staff needs direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether to study and consider 


amendments to the Zoning Ordinance in regards to this matter. 


 







 

















		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Backup

		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Backup

		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Backup-1

		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Backup-2

		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Backup-3

		Commissioners- Accessory Structures Backup-4








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Discussion of Conditional Use Requirements for churches and existing residential structures that do not meet the Conditional Use 


Requirements.


Fayette County has been apprised of a situation where a local church would like to use an existing house on their newly purchased 


property which does not meet the requirements of the conditional zoning.  


Chairman Brown is seeking Board direction on if it wants to review making changes to the Conditional Use ordinance.


Not Applicable


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







Date:  May 14, 2013 


 


To:  Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


From:  Pete Frisina 


 


Subject: Conditional Use Requirements for a Church and/or other Place of Worship and 


Existing Structures. 


 


A Church and/or Other Place of Worship are Conditional Uses under Article VII of the Fayette 


County Zoning Ordinance. Sec. 7-1.  Conditional Use Approval reads as follows: 


 


Conditional Uses include certain uses which are allowed in a particular zoning district 


provided that all conditions specified under the Zoning Ordinance are met.  The Zoning 


Administrator shall issue a Conditional Use Permit for each use listed below upon 


compliance with all specified conditions and approvals by the appropriate County officials.    


 


Over the years, there have been several churches that were approved with existing structures that 


did not meet the buffers and setbacks for a church.  These structures range from barns to single-


family residences.  Generally the churches were told they could not use the structures for church 


functions and the single-family structures remained as residences.  


 


Since 2010 when Staff began extensive research and revisions to the Zoning Ordinance, it was 


determined that the statement above precluded the approval of a Conditional Use that did not 


meet all conditions and Staff started regulating in that manner. 


 


The proposed Anglican Church on Ebenezer Road is proposing to use an existing single-family 


residence as office space for the church.  The residence is within the conditional use setback but 


not the buffer.  A variance is not allowed for a Conditional Use per Article IV of the Zoning 


Ordinance. 


 


There are several sections of the Zoning Ordinance that allow for the use of existing structures 


that don’t meet setbacks and buffers.  For example, these allowances are in the Office-


Institutional zoning district and the State Route Overlay Zones where a conversion of a 


residential structure to non-residential use is common.   


 


Staff needs direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether to study and consider 


amendments to the Zoning Ordinance in regards to this matter. 


 


   


      





		Commissioners- Conditional Us...ments Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Conditional Use Requirements Backup






COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Chairman Steve Brown


Discussion of Fayette County's height restrictions on uninhabitable building structures such as church steeples and high-frame roofs.


Chairman Steve Brown is recommending that the Planning Commission examine the preparation of ordinances changes allowing for the 


removal of height restrictions for uninhabitable buildings features such as church steeples, high-frame roofs, and similar structures. 


 


Approval of Chairman Brown's recommendation that the Planning Commission examine Fayette County's height restrictions on 


uninhabitable building structures, and for the Planning Commission to work on preparing an ordinance that would allow for the removal of 


said height restrictions.


Not Applicable.


No


No No


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013







Date:  May 14, 2013 


 


To:  Steve Brown, Chairman 


 


From:  Pete Frisina 


 


Subject: Discussion of Height Restrictions on Uninhabitable Building Structures Such as 


Church Steeples and High-Frame Roofs. 


 


Building height limits are contained in each zoning district and range from 35 to 40 feet.  Article 


V, Sec. 5-16.  Structures Permitted above the Height Limit, states the following:   


The height limit shall not apply to structures and architectural features not intended for 


human occupancy, including, but not limited to: a spire, belfry, cupola, dome, monument, 


water tower,  observation tower, telecommunication tower, chimney, smoke stack, 


conveyer, mast or aerial, heating, ventilation, and air conditioning (HVAC) equipment, 


elevator equipment, roofed solar panels, satellite/telecommunications equipment, and 


parapet wall not extending more than four (4) feet above the roof line of the building.  A 


freestanding flagpole is also permitted above the height limit, provided the total height is 


under 70 feet.  Total height shall be measured from the finished grade at the location of 


the flagpole to the highest point.   


 


Article III defines Building Height as follows: 


 The vertical distance of a building measured from the median height of the basement level 


or crawl space to the midpoint of the highest roof. The midpoint shall be measured from 


the ceiling joist of the highest floor level to the top of the highest roof surface. For 


structures constructed without a basement or crawl space, the measurement will be taken 


beginning at the ground floor level. Architectural features, which are not utilized for 


habitable space, shall not be included in the calculation of building height (see Tower 


Height.) 
  


The building height limit does not apply to church steeples (spire) per Sec. 5-16 above.  


However, in terms of a high-framed roof (cathedral/vaulted ceiling), they are not exempt per Sec. 


5-16.  Per Article III building height is measured at the midpoint of the highest roof based on the 


ceiling joist of the highest floor level, a cathedral/vaulted ceiling does not have a ceiling joist. 


Staff needs direction from the Board of Commissioners on whether to study and consider 


amendments to the Zoning Ordinance in regards to this matter. 


 


 


 


 







  













		Commissioners- Height Restrictions Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Height Restrictions Backup

		Commissioners- Height Restrictions Backup

		Commissioners- Height Restrictions Backup-1

		Commissioners- Height Restrictions Backup-2








COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Consideration of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to appoint Reverend John Culbreath to the McIntosh Trail Community 


Service Board for a term to begin immediately and to expire on June 30, 2014, in order to fill the unexpired term resigned by Ms. Terri 


Willis.


The McIntosh Trail Community Service Board (MTCSB) is a public entity created by the Georgia legislature in 1993 to provide mental 


health, developmental disability, and addictive disease services.  Services are available to residents in Butts, Fayette, Henry, Lamar, 


Pike, Spalding and Upson Counties.  The agency is headquartered in Griffin, and works under the Region 3 Board and under the statues 


of the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Development Disabilities. 


 


A few weeks ago, Fayette County was informed that Ms. Terri Willis had decided to resign from the MTCSB.  The county advertised for 


the vacancy created by the resignation and for one other vacant position.  Three applications were submitted.  Commissioner Allen 


McCarty interviewed each applicant and has recommended Reverend John Culbreath to fill Ms. Willis' unexpired term. 


 


A copy of Reverend Culbreath's application and resume are submitted as support for this recommendation.


Approval of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to appoint Reverend John Culbreath to the McIntosh Trail Community Service 


Board for a term to begin immediately and to expire on June 30, 2014, in order to fill the unexpired term resigned by Ms. Terri Willis.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013





















































		Commissioners- John Culbreath Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- John Culbreath Backup










COUNTY AGENDA REQUEST 


Department: Presenter(s):


Background/History/Details:


Wording for the Agenda:


What action are you seeking from the Board of Commissioners?


If this item requires funding, please describe:


Has this request been considered within the past two years? If so, when?


Is Audio-Visual Equipment Required for this Request?*


Administrator's Approval


Backup Provided with Request?


Approved by Finance


Approved by Purchasing


Reviewed  by Legal


County Clerk's Approval


Type of Request:


Staff Notes:


Meeting Date:


*  All audio-visual material must be submitted to the County Clerk's Office no later than 48 hours prior to the meeting.  It is also  


  your department's responsibility to ensure all third-party audio-visual material is submitted at least 48 hours in advance.


Commissioners Commissioner Allen McCarty


Consideration of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to appoint Ms. Linda Lane to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board 


for a three-year term to begin immediately and to expire on May 23, 2016, in order to fill a new position on the Board.


The McIntosh Trail Community Service Board (MTCSB) is a public entity created by the Georgia legislature in 1993 to provide mental 


health, developmental disability, and addictive disease services.  Services are available to residents in Butts, Fayette, Henry, Lamar, 


Pike, Spalding and Upson Counties.  The agency is headquartered in Griffin, and works under the Region 3 Board and under the statues 


of the Georgia Department of Behavioral Health and Development Disabilities. 


 


Each county serviced by the MTCSB is given one seat on the board.  Additional seats on the MTCSB are afforded each county based on 


that county's population according to the most recent United States decennial census.  A county with a population of 50,000 or less is 


afforded one seat, and counties with populations of 50,000 or greater "shall appoint one member for each population increment of 50,000 


or any portion thereof. 


 


Based on the latest census, Fayette County has been afforded one new seat at the MTCSB.  Commissioner McCarty has interviewed all 


three applicants who have applied for the vacant positions on the MTCSB.  He has recommended Ms. Lane to serve the three-year term 


on the MTCSB with said appointment beginning immediately and expiring on May 23, 2016.


Consideration of Commissioner McCarty's recommendation to appoint Ms. Linda Lane to the McIntosh Trail Community Service Board 


for a three-year term to begin immediately and to expire on May 23, 2016, in order to fill a new position on the Board. 


 


A copy of Ms. Lane's application and resume are submitted as supporting documentation for this request.


Not Applicable.


No


No Yes


Not Applicable


Not Applicable Yes


New BusinessThursday, May 23, 2013

























		Commissioners- Linda Lane Agenda Request File

		Commissioners- Linda Lane Backup







